
 
Regular and Closed Council Meeting Agenda 
for Tuesday, October 10, 2023, at 1:00 p.m.  

to be held in Council Chambers at the,  
 Municipal Office at 4512 – 46 Street, Olds, AB  

 
This Regular Council Meeting will be conducted in Council Chambers at the Municipal Office at 
4512 – 46 Street in Olds, with the public body present at meeting location and will be live 
streamed out via the Town of Olds website. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
 
 A.) ADDED ITEM(s)         
  
 B.) ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
2. ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES        
Page 3  2A) Adoption of the previous Council meeting minutes  
      
3. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
Page 6  3A) Citizen Budget Survey Presentation 
 
4. BYLAWS 
Page 125 4A) Bylaw 2023-22 Land Use Bylaw 01-23 Amendment 
   (Public hearing and consideration for second and third reading) 
Page 128 4B) Bylaw 2023-32 Vistas Area Structure Plan Amendment 
   (Public hearing and consideration for second and third reading) 
Page 158 4C) Bylaw 2023-34 Land Use Bylaw 01-23 Amendment 
   (Consideration for first reading and set public hearing) 
Page 164 4D) Bylaw 2023-35 Council Ad Hoc Committee  
   (Introduction and first reading) 
 
5. NEW BUSINESS 
Page 167  5A) Council Policies and Priorities Committee 
Page 168  5B) Sponsorship Request – Chamber of Commerce  
Page 169 5C) Olds Housing Needs Assessment 

 
6. CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S REPORT  
Page 240 6A) Chief Administrative Officer Report  
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION 
Page 241 7A) Correspondence and Information 
 
8. CLOSED SESSION  
Item #1  
FOIP Section 16 Disclosure harmful to personal privacy 
(Personnel)  
 
Item #2 
FOIP Section 17 Disclosure harmful to business interests of a third party 



Town of Olds Council Meeting Agenda for October 10, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 
(Real Estate) 
 
9. RISE AND REPORT  
  
10.    ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION: 
Media Scrum: any questions arising from the media can be sent to communications@olds.ca and they will be forwarded on to the 
person addressed. 
 
CLOSED SESSION INFORMATION:  
When the Council goes into a CLOSED SESSION, for continued participation in the virtual Council meeting: stay online in the live 
stream meeting platform, and the meeting stream will be replaced by a graphic and music will play. When the music stops, the 
meeting is reconvened.  
 
If you choose to shut down your live stream, watch the Town of Olds social media feeds where the reconvening time will be posted. 
The social media feeds can also be found at the bottom of the homepage on the Town of Olds website. 

mailto:communications@olds.ca


 
PRIOR TO ADOPTION 

 
Minutes of the Town of Olds Regular Council meeting held on Monday, September 25, 2023 at 
1:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, at the Municipal Office at 4512 – 46 Street in Olds, with the 
public body present at meeting location and was live streamed out.  
 
PRESENT – ELECTED OFFICIALS:  
In the Chair, Mayor Judy Dahl  
Councillor Wanda Blatz, Councillor James Cummings, Councillor Dan Daley, Councillor Harvey 
Walsh, Councillor Heather Ryan, and Councillor Darren Wilson. 
 
ABSENT– ELECTED OFFICIALS:  
 
PRESENT for the Regular meeting of Council – STAFF:  
Brent Williams, Chief Administrative Officer; and Marcie McKinnon, Legislative Clerk. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
Mayor Dahl called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 A.) ADDED ITEM(s)         
Nil 
 
 B.) ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Moved by Councillor Wilson, “to accept the Council agenda for the Monday, September 25, 
2023, Regular Council meeting as presented.”   
Motion Carried 23-362 
 
2. ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES        
2A) Regular Council Meeting Minutes 
Mayor Dahl confirmed consensus to adopt the September 11, 2023, regular council meeting 
minutes, as presented.  
 
The minutes were adopted as presented by consensus of Council. 
Motion Carried 23-363 
 
3. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
None scheduled. 
 
4. BYLAWS 
4A) Bylaw 2023-33 Mountain View Power Committee 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that the Mountain View Power Committee Bylaw 2023-33 be given 
first reading, as amended.” (Amendment is to delete clause 3.6.) 
Motion Carried 23-364 
 
Moved by Councillor Wilson, “that the Mountain View Power Committee Bylaw 2023-33 be 
given second reading, as amended.”   
Motion Carried 23-365 

 
Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that the Mountain View Power Committee Bylaw 2023-33 be given 
unanimous consent for presentation of third reading, as amended.” 
Motion Carried 23-366 

 
Moved by Councillor Daley, “that the Mountain View Power Committee Bylaw 2023-33 be given 
third reading, as amended.” 
Motion Carried 23-367  

3

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Minutes for September 25, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 
  
5. NEW BUSINESS 
5A) Coffee with Council Update 
CAO Williams spoke on the inaugural coffee with council sessions (6 in total) were held during  
August and September and was seeking council’s input on the event. 
 
Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that Council accepts the ‘Coffee with Council’ administrative update  
as presented.” 
Motion Carried 23-368 
 
5B) Council Committee Review 
Mayor Dahl noted on the request for decision there was a typo as follows: Inter-municipal 
Coordination Cooperation Committee (ICC).   

Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that Council accepts the information as presented on the council 
committees of the Town of Olds.” 
Motion Carried 23-369 
 
Moved by Councillor Daley, “that Council dissolves the Olds Policing Advisory Committee, 
effective immediately.” 
Motion Carried 23-370 

5C) Parkland Regional Library 2024 Budget Proposal  
Council appointed representative, Councillor Wilson spoke on the 2024 budget proposal; and 
noted that the Board is planning to review the number set used to do calculations. 

Moved by Councillor Walsh, “that Parkland Regional Library Proposed Budget for 2024 be 
approved.” 
Motion Carried 23-371 

6. REPORTS FROM COUNCIL, BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS   
6A) Reports from Council, Boards, Committees, and Commissions 
Mayor Dahl and Councillor Wilson’s reports are contained in the agenda package. 
Councillor Daley and Ryan have provided written reports that will be held with the meeting 
minutes.  
 
Councillors Blatz, Cummings, Daley, Ryan, Walsh, and Wilson all spoke to attending regular 
council and appointed committee meetings along with local community events.  
 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that the reports from Council, Authorities, Boards, Committees and 
Commissions ending September 25, 2023, be received for information.” 
Motion Carried 23-372 
 
7. CAO REPORT AND ACTION LIST 
7A) Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) Report  
CAO Williams spoke on the following: 

- Report a Problem statistics (attached) 
- Health and Safety Incident and Near Miss Report (attached) 
- Council Action List (attached) 
- The Budget Survey has been completed with over 300 responses. 
- Oldstoberfest was 2 weeks ago, perhaps a few traffic minor issues otherwise everything 

was a success. C5 Rodeo is happy with the event, the CAO thanked them for hosting 
the rodeo in Olds. 

4

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Minutes for September 25, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 

- Aquatic Centre: the CAO will provide more information at the October P&P meeting. 
 

Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that the Chief Administrative Officer Report be accepted for  
information.” 
Motion Carried 23-373 
 
8. CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION 
8A) Correspondence and Information 
Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that the Correspondence and Information Report ending September 
25, 2023, be received for information.” 
Motion Carried 23-374 
 
9.    ADJOURNMENT  
Mayor Dahl adjourned the meeting at 2:32 p.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________________   ________________________________ 
Judy Dahl,       Brent Williams, 
Mayor        Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
These minutes were approved on the ___ day of October 2023. 

5

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Citizen Budget Survey 

Request for Decision 
Citizen Budget Survey 
October 10, 2023    

 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the 2023 Citizen budget survey be received for presented. 
 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our residents and town staff actively communicate and engage with us through open dialogue. 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance. 
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships. 

BACKGROUND  
A public consultation regarding the 2023 Town of Olds budget was initiated from August 15, 
2023, to September 18, 2023. The purpose of the citizen budget survey was to help the Town 
understand what is important to citizens and allow us to direct funding accordingly.  Participants 
were asked to rate the effectiveness of various department areas and the specific services they 
offer. There were open-ended questions asking citizens to highlight what department areas 
were doing well and what could be improved. There were service level specific questions 
related to snow clearing, solid waste, recycling, and O-NET. 
 
The 2024 operating and capital budgets will be presented to Council at a future date.  
 
The information from this report is another source of information that Council and Administration 
can reference when making budget decisions.  

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☐ Operating  ☐ Capital ☒ Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Citizen Budget Survey 2023 

 
Approved By: Sheena Linderman Date: October 3, 2023 

CAO Review: Brent Williams Date: October 5, 2023 

 
 

6

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



CITIZEN  
BUDGET  
SURVEY 2023 

  7

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



  CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 

INTRODUCTION 
From August 15 to September 18, 2023, the Town of Olds ran a citizen budget survey. There were 42 questions 
with 14 areas for open comments. The purpose of the citizen budget survey was to help the Town understand what 
is important to citizens and allow us to direct funding accordingly.  

• Participants were asked to rate the effectiveness of various department areas and the specific services they

offer.

• There were open-ended questions asking citizens to highlight what department areas were doing well and

what could be improved

• There were service level specific questions related to Snow clearing, Solid Waste, Recycling and O-Net.

*Any comments are in original form, they have not been modified in anyway. Any comments pertaining to specific staff members or of an inappropriate nature have been redacted. 

8

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



9

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

When thinking back on the past two years, which services, attractions, or activities have you most appreciated 
or most used? Please select 5. 

 

10

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



  CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 

To ensure our community’s continued improvement and development, we want to know what areas are 
important to you as we allocate these finite resources. Please prioritize the types of community values you 
envision for Olds, from most to lease important. 

11

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Was there a community value that was missed? 

Affordability  
Good infrastructure and maintenance 
Inclusive, social safety net, food security, mental health and addictions 
Esthetically pleasing - well looked after 
Diversity  
more traffic enforcemenr..loud vehicles and speeders 
seniors housing 
Truth 
Strong Protective Services (Fire, Police, EMS) 
Ecosocial 
Education, and Senior Fitness 
More activities for seniors 
Environmental care  
GARBAGE AND RECYCLING 
Safe and accessible (eg public transport, bike lanes), opportunities for youth and young adults 
inclusive community 
Programs for Seniors 
Quiet, orderly, sightly, safe neighbourhoods 
I don’t think the options give for the question are conducive to receiving good useable feedback. Many of these are not really values. In many 
cases more than one item is lumped together or one response (such as livability) is connected to many different values. If a town is not “liveable” 
everything else is irrelevant.  
Up town shopping there's nothing up town, we need stores  
Environmental concern...like offering recycling stations 
Enough doctors for all residents  
Accessibility; many of these other values follow naturally from accessibility. Car-centric town planning is inherently inaccessible. 
Sustainability and accessibility 
Housing 
Lower taxes 
Seniors  
Seniors housing  

 

12

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Probably but I won’t address this now 
Activities for seniors 
Treating the customer (residents) with respect as we are the customer and need to be heard 
Sound and well developed/maintained infrastructure  
Seniors free activity 
Personal health 
Leadership and innovatiin 
transportation 
upkeep with streets and holes repair quicker 
Safe and respectful community 
Community involvement... friendly supportive neighborhood. Godly values. Safe neighborhoods 
Easily Understood and Efficient Transportation 
Focus on community spirit and activities. Small town feel. 
Transparent government spending 
The town supporting active volunteering and their groups 
Walkability 
Safety 
Park Trails and walkability  
Age friendly  
Security 
Investment  
Crime prevention 
Recycling  
Clean - proper garbage removal and street cleaning 
Plowed residential roads 
Attracting young families instead of what seems to be always catering to the elderly 
Extra-Curricular activities 
safe community 
Safe and protected  
Crime reduction and public safety 
We need a center like the collicut, more activities for kids and families  
Community events is lacking and has been for awhile. No rodeo in olds? 

13

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



  CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 

That we take care of our local businesses first. Such as the Town should use Local contractors, not those from the city. 
Safe 
Inclusive. Diverse. Anti-Racist. Be brave! 
Safety/public service 
The ridiculous expenses associated with O-net spending. The garbage being picked up ONCE a month!!!!!!! 
Green, environment 
Seniors Living 
devotion to jesus 

14

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

PROTECTIVE SERVICES 
How would you rate the effectiveness of these services? 

 

 
 

Total Responses Above Average Average Below Average 
290 23% 61% 16% 

15

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

BYLAW ENFORCEMENT 
Do you think the Town should invest more in Bylaw Enforcement? 

 

 
 

Total Responses More Enforcement Keep it as is Less Enforcement 
289 37% 47% 16% 

16

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
You need to stop the bylaw officers giving out notices for thinks like tree branches over hanging sidewalks to some residents and not others that 
have a much worse problem.  
Fire Department excells. 
Regular patrols of community areas example centennial 
Police presence seems adequate, but some speed enforcement would be nice 
Fire Department impressed with…Community Policing I feel we need more attention placed on distractive driving, very loud vehicles stunting and 
speeding .  
Bylaw needs to follow through with the rules that our council has made. Especially enforcing pet rules.  
Keep adequate staff 
Could do a better job enforcing weed issues on vacant lots and sidewalks not cleared of snow 
No issues 
I have noticed the parks, etc are not as well maintained as in the past.  For example, weeds, long grass etc.  
Love low involved the fire dept is in the community events 

 
we need more cell phone, speeding, etc., tickets. 
Do not see any community policing in our area 

 
I don't see our Bylaw Officers out very much. I feel they could be enforcing speeding, running red lights on the highway through town, enforcing 
traffic laws (speeding, illegal u-turns uptown, monitoring and enforcing school zones). 
The Fire Department is a phenomenal group of women and men who dedicate themselves to the safety of our town. THANK YOU for all you do to 
keep our town and surrounding area safe. 
Need more police presence  
I am ok with standards that are kept now 
Community events 
It good  
Doing well in all areas in comparison to available resources 
More bylaw engagement. There are known ‘hot spots’ and they need more attention and proactivity.  
I think overall, especially emergency response, is excellent.  

17

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

RCMP are doing a great job.  Town by-law dept should be shut down as they are unwilling  to respond to any calls for service.  .  
Fire dept is great, community bylaw police is a waste of money. They DO NOT monitor speeding n racing at all!!! Is there a cat bylaw they can 
enforce??? Dogs are NOT the problem! Do they work until late like midnight?? Are they always daytime hours n together??  
The people in general do their jobs just fine its the fact that they have their hands tied when it comes to actually being able to convict criminals. 
So far i think the fire department does their job. 
Ithink its pretty good 
No complaints  
More Bylaw enforcment educate dog and cat owners on there responsability as pet owners,Truckers using Jake Brakes. 
Bylaw seems to be a cash cow, focus more on the needs of the community and not on giving out tickets. ie, snow removal tickets 
How about enforcing then instead of putting up stop signs (4-way, 3-way) to slow down the traffic? 
Also the new playground zones instead of school zones... was there a problem before? Why the change? If we have a problem, then enforce it! 
You should be thinking of keeping the traffic moving instead of slowing it down. On one hand you talk about saving the environment then you 
put up barriers (4-way stops) that pollute the same environment you are trying to save. If anything, you should be building roundabouts/traffic 
circles instead of 4-way stops; that would slow down the traffic, but still keep it moving, while saving the planet... 
Safety on sidewalks in winter needs to be improved, enforce the bylaw of clearing the sidewalks of snow and ice 
As a town I feel we are doing the best we can when it comes to disaster services and such. It would be nice if we can focus on the theft but I 
realize as times get tough it will just get worse  
Not much experience with these services 
We need to work on actual crime and not worry so much about people's lawns being 2" long  
Fire department is excellent and their investment in the Lucas is great  
By-law officers often do not know the by-laws.  Suggest requirement for them to familiarize themselves with by-law before responding. 
Everything is fine except after the last tornado Disaster Services could make sure more is known about what to do and where to gather for safety 
in the future. 
Overall very good 
The service response is very fair considering the business and needs of our community. I would be an improvement if there was more speeding 
and distracted driving enforcement. it is getting very bad in our community.  

 

 
For volunteers, the fire department is wonderful  
Bylaw all the overhanging shrubs and branches and hedges on the east side of town.  

18

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Deal with reoccurring known criminals harder 
More presence of police via foot/bike patrols .  We know they are there, just don’t see them very often  
If you have policies regarding trailer parking on the street then adhere to your policy or revamp your policy we have a large cattle trailer parked 
on our street approx. 5 days a week in a very busy neighbourhood and nothing gets done‼ 
Need to be present more at the right times  
I think we are well protected with good people. 
I have not had to use these services, thankfully. I am glad they are available. 
Seems good so far.  Haven't personally used any 
Bylaw is unavailable on weekends and evenings when most issues exist. The Nega Dome consistantly is allowed to get away with disturbing the 
peace 
Monitoring of unsightly properties (both private and town) and making sure they are cleaned up, 
More patrolling and put the machine that records speeds into other streets such as Briegel Road.  
More police presence in areas that are prone to encourage unlawful activities. 
Bylaw Enforcement responsiveness in a timely manner when a complaint has been addressed. 
I dont think I'm qualified to answer this question. I do know that in the past, break ins were very high and I definitely felt that not enough was 
being done to crack down on it 
Police are here to help the community when you are in times of need 
Night patrols . Appears to be night crime here. 
Bylaws... the walking paths are awful with dog excrement on the paths.  
Quite a few unsightly properties. Overgrown gardens..  old furniture sitting outside. 
Being consistent with playground zones and community obeying the bylaws of being quiet after 11pm 
Bylaw enforcement has been lacking 
If you are going to spend money on bylaw enforcement then the Town needs to ensure the bylaws are actually enforced! Snow/sidewalk removal 
and unsightly are two of the worst! 
Community policing should be more visable given the number of personnel 
There needs to be more enforcement of bylaws especially in regards to traffic offences around playground and school zones and along residential 
streets. 
Community overall feels safe and I love that the protective services are involved in the community. Could improve on enforcing traffic related 
offences, in particular people speeding through the playground zones. 
I assume bylaw would show up for specific complaints but I have seen zero bylaw enforcement action taking place on their own accord. I could 
walk down any street or alley in town and point out numerous bylaw infractions. This is fine though, bylaw can stay out of people's business.  
Thankfully never had to rely on any fire or disaster services in town and only hope these are in place. Not much information is provided to the 
citizens about these services. 

19

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



20

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

There is a major speeding/racing issue in town. Residents are aware and are threatening to take matters into their own hands because of lack of 
concern from police. There is not alot of police or bylaw presence in town to deter speeding, racing, break and entering etc.  
More full time members 
Better visibility would be nice and later in the nights other than 8-5 hours  
More enforcement of playground zones and residential areas. Drivers fly through some of these areas at high rates of speed and when I have my 
grandchildren walking with me I fear the vehicles would not be able to stop if needed. If people are needing to speed they should leave home 
earlier 
By law enforcement  
bylaw enforcement is too loose. So many speeders on our streets. Cat owners need to be more accountable for their off leash pets. Complaints 
don’t lead to any results from the pet owners  
Great presence. Love the relationship with the schools 
Everything seems safe. No issues is good  
The area of the park should be monitored. Whether this is local patrol or RCMP. A lot of shady stuff goes on there without any repercussion.  
The fire department is great  
All good 
I called during winter due to my neighbor not chipping away the ice in their sidewalk. The results were that my ice once it melted had no drain to 
go to because it was blocked by their huge ice rink so my house had a huge ice rink in front of it even after I chipped away at it. Nothing was ever 
done about it. 
The RCMP are rarely around to hand out excessive speeding and stunting and excessive noise at all hours of the day and night from vehicles on 
57 ave.  
The new playground signs and slow area signs are too small. They should be regularly marked 30km per hour signs at each area.  
Would like to see more night policing to prevent theft and break ins.  
More speed control. Especially in the vistas and 57th avenue coming south into town towards the hospital. The speeds are way too high.  
Fire/rescue is excellent. Law enforcement needs more resources. ($) 
More presence in the newly marked play ground zones. Many drivers simply ignore them.  
More police patrols at night. 
We need more policing within the town, fire dept is doing awesome  
Consitently hear of damage to property. Increased presence would be an asset 
Rcmp in schools! Interaction with the public.  
Increased police presence or bylaw officers. Something besides waiting to ticket someone going through a school zone during peak times. 
Vandalism seems to be increasing   

21

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

An effort is made to be visible within the community. More effort needs to go into protecting neighborhoods from ongoing vandalism and theft.  
Bylaw enforcement is a joke.  Ie.  hedges overhanging the sidewalks around the city make the narrow sidewalks so narrow 2 people cannot walk 
together in many cases 
When I have called for police assistance, the officers have always been dispatched in a timely manner. Improvement could be in the dismantling 
and diminishing of the nuisance activities that take place behind the arena/library. As well, as the people driving the wrong way on 53rd St. (One-
way), it has increased significantly. 
Bye law enforcement 
Hard to know since I haven't been in need of these services so I don't see any deficiency  
seem to be doing fine 
More full time firefighting staff 
this department does a fine job - i think the rural (farms) have issues with so much crime and have heard the response times are not so great  
Have had a bylaw issue on our street for the past five months. Six calls made to bylaw by four different homeowners. Nothing has been resolved, 
total lack of enforcement. 
Communication between and within the services is needed.  
There seems to be good connection between departments.  These services work hard to be community connected and provide quality events to 
maintain a positive presence in town. 

Need more enforcement on barking dogs and traffic enforcement, people in this town drive like IDIOTS ! 
Enforcement of any road laws or general complaints  are lacking 
Everyone is doing well. We just need more speed enforcement. An actual person out and about. More patrols of residential areas would also be 
welcome.  
Police are always available but ems we need more 
Could use more patrolling in residential areas for rural crime.  
More RCMP Officers Please 
The Bylaw Enforcement needs to be improved 
There needs to be more enforcing of speed limits, stop signs, handicap spaces, and crosswalks on the road in front of ecole olds elementary.  
Someone is going to get hurt. 
Using a paid volunteer fire department is a solid approach.   I would be interested to learn more about how much is paid for RCMP and what 
value we get for RCMP.  Also a report on the number of calls that bylaw officers deal with each week would be valuable.  
never see a Bylaw officer must be nice working 9-5 Monday-Friday 
Thankfully, I have had no need for fire or disaster services, so don't feel I can comment.  Community policing of the speed limit on 57st east to 
Briegel Road needs to be increased to daily drive bys and enforcement. 

22

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



23

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

  
You should have separated your questions better. Would have loved to comment on the lack of Bylaw Enforcement. Too many paid people at fire 
department RCMP rarely around town. The list goes on. Town does not need more paid staff they just need the right people to do their job   
Push AHS for another full time 24 hour ambulance so our volunteer firefighters don't have to respond to so many medical calls.  
Police & By-law visibility presence is non-existent.  
Bylaw should spend more time enforcing bylaws,  the arena high traffic student areas such as behind the arena are in need of patrolling and 
monitoring.  
You never see bylaw or police.  Would like to see more patrolling in communities.   
Community engagement has been great this year. Emergency response and have noticed more patrol  
Fire department could use more full time staff I hear. 
Not really sure that the bylaw do anything didn’t take me long driving around this town to find unsightly properties that never change 
Fd is doing a great job 
Bylaw needs to spend more time enforcing speeding texting bylaws. Littering.  More enforcement of young drivers that have zero respect in the 
parking lots by the arena.  
Having a fire hydrant out if service with a garbage bag draped over it for months on end was very concerning, especially given the number of staff 
working within Protective Services department. 
I'd love to see something done about the drag-strip that 57th ave has become, south of the 54 street stop intersection.  
I don't see a presence of any of these areas except when ticketing for snow on sidewalks 
All is good, don’t spend any more money on it.  
Fire is doing great!  Need more bylaw enforcement  
They appear proactive and involved in the community. I think they do a good job.  
We need our own EMS service. AHS is brutal 
Traffic infractions. Especially speeding. 
Patrol the cow palace parking lot and the constant safety issues,harassment and noise the public’s has to deal with 
Faster response time.  
The fire department has continuously done an amazing job. I am interested in supporting more fire employees.  
The Bylaw services are a waste of taxpayers' money. Whenever I had dealings with the bylaw officers they did not go anywhere. 
Good fire department. Could use more law enforcement as the policing is not 24 hour and the town would benefit from 24 hour policing as there 
is an influx of crime during the hours the police are not working.  
Increase in Bylaw Enforcement 
enforce the laws with sever punishment. 

24

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Speed limits in Uptown.  
Fire Department is good, community policing needs more of a presence, no comment on disaster services. 
More community presence of bylaw offices and RCMP. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

CORPORATE SERVICES 
How would you rate the effectiveness of these services? 

 

 
 

Total Responses Above Average Average Below Average 
288 11% 74% 15% 

26

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
All need improvement also closing town office before the day is over. 
Easy access online, good staff at the town office  
no comments as haven't dealt with them 
All OK  
No issue 
Too much money spent for less than adequate results. Salaries are too high for a town this size. 
Very unresponsive to inquiries 
I really liked when you called me to let me know that my water bill increased sharply after my daughter got room mates - it could have been a 
leak. Please call for weed control or snow removal before sending out the guys to get it done. 
Inconsistent policies: if you issue a invoice with terms, follow it. 
If ONET falls under Corporate Services, you need to get this fixed. I have heard a LOT of complaints about ONET (I am one of the ones complaining 
too). I understand ONET is working to fix the issues with the delivery platform, the Town needs to ensure this highly funded service is working 
properly. 
I am ok with present standards 
Town updated information with bills 
Way to expensive for services received 
Lovely staff and so very helpful. Lots of knowledge  

  
 
Report a problem page has changed for the worse.  It's difficult to get in touch with anyone by phone other than the front reception, which isn't 
helpful many times.  CAO and directors numbers need to be more accessible. 
No problem  
Charging to much for water especially the grey water. The charge for the same amount is just wrong. 
Lower the water rates.  
No complaints!  
Accept Credit Card payments. 
We need a local waste transfer station, travelling to Didsbury is unacceptable.  

27

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Run it like a private business, not an endless money pit. Be efficient instead of taking more money from the taxpayers. Have targets and find new 
efficiencies, do things better and cheaper. Be accountable for work done and paid by the taxpayer. When I see some of the work completed I am 
ashamed and wonder who signs off on that. If I did that at me job I wouldn't be working there any longer... 
Took a really long time and several calls to set up pre-authorized debit for my utility bills. System is breaking down somewhere. 
I often contact the town by e-mail of my concerns.  I have received a reply from one counsellor on one occasions.  All others ignore my e-mails and 
do not respond. 
Questions to the town are promptly answered, trees in parks should have more care, like topping and pruning of older trees. 
Keep improving roads 
they are doing a good job, keep it going.  
All good  
Sending out bills 
Seems like alot of staff at town office before you see who you need to. Multi tasking seems to be missing. 
Customer service is friendly 
Don’t know 
I think they do an adequate job, neither bad nor exceptional  
The new town shop was a waste of money  
Unsure at the moment 
No issues 
Timely responses. 
I'm sure some people would push for online payment portal or something of that nature but it seems fine as-is.  
Water bills are much too expensive  
Good job on street sweeping, and repainting the crosswalk lines. Good job on repairing sidewalks. 
Things are fine in this area 
The recycling, garbage and compost rotation is difficult. It needs to be more frequent. The repairng of pot holes is ridiculous too. 56A Street Close 
is a mess and has been forever.  
The staff at the town office most given answer to a question - that's not my department with no assistance.  Customer service is lacking! 
Utilities are getting so expensive. Reduce rates for seniors.  
The town utility bill is terrible expensive for what we get.  
More recycling ♻ pick up   or re open the recycling area and have someone monitor it when its open to the public. 
Online bill payment system needs improvement. Need ability to I pay dog licences online  

28

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

The response time to phone messages is frequently slow. The phones go unanswered if it is 10 minutes before closing. I was at the office at 420 
and except for 1 person others had coat on and saying goodbye. The office is open for another 10 minutes...why are they leaving? I am unable to 
find the topics to be discussed at council meetings before the meeting so I would know if I will watch it, why is the topics to be discussed not 
publicly available? Why is there no exceptions for $3 / month fee for 2nd recycling bin for medical reason? Make citizens aware of snow plowing 
or removal services discussion so as citizens we can weigh in on it. 
no opinion 
Waste water based on water usage keeps people from watering lawns and beautifying our town. Need to find a way to over come this it is too 
expensive to water. 
More engaging surveys and communications 
This is joke 
Tell your maintenance crew to actually repair what is needing the repair instead of brushing it off  
Having to manually pay monthly bills is archaic. Please allow for automatic bill payments using credit cards. 
The department seems efficient. They always call me back in a timely fashion whenever I have a questions  
Office stafff are great 
Give us the services we are paying for...where's the money going 
Friendly. Helpful.  
Poor budgeting of tax money 
Easy access to down building.  
Doing well tossing random traffic circles and random statues everywhere instead of using the money for stuff that actually matters  
All good 
It's fine 
Taxes are way too high for the services we get in Olds. We need garbage pick up more often and a place to take recycling. Stop wasting money on 
extras and get back to basics. Enough with the flowers, statues, extra sports facilities while basic needs of garbage removal complaints are met 
with threats of higher taxes. And sell O-Net.  
Cutting costs of wasteful services like having 10 dump trucks waiting around to get loaded with snow.  
Online payment that’s not crazy expensive.  
More/easier online options, including forms and applications.   
All services are efficient  
Improve computer billing 
Taking some responsibility for things that have been contracted out like garbage pick up.  
Tax payments are high considering the services  

29

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Over staffed for the ice of the City. 
No issue with corporate services.  
Town Office opening hours do not work for people who work 
I haven't encountered any issues with corporate services 
Need to plan communication to reach people through a variety of means - there are people without access to computers. 
Very good customer service, no improvements necessary 
not everyone has access to computers or cell  phones and I think being charged to get a paper bill is prejudical. so much for the big kick of going 
green - like a paper straw saves the planet but the plastic cups still abound 
There had been better communication on facebook to keep people informed. If you dont use that platform, I am not sure if people are feeling as 
connected...The more person to person contact corporate has, the better people feel. They feel heard, understood and are able to get answers 
more efficiently than if a person has to deal with a computer, email or "canned" response. 
Not seeing tons of results for our increased taxes  
The town staff are amazing at answering inquiries and even let us know if there is something odd with our bills. As long as they continue to have 
the resources that THEY need, all is well.  
You could add gauges for water waste so we are not overcharged each year 
Personnel at office are easy to deal with.  
Better communication  
My engagement with this group is limited, however, when I have dealt with them, responses are prompt, friendly and accurate.  
Sending a notice if you are late for one utility bill seems a bit over the top, perhaps this could be extended to 2 months? 
Lower taxes  
Timely services, great job people! 
Get rid of paper statement fees. 
communication needs to improve at all levels trying to get a answer is somewhat trying 
How do you see closing the town office at noon and 4:00 being taxpayer friendly. I cant believe you cannot stagger lunch hours to accommodate 
those taxpayers that work and would like to pay in person. 
Being able to pay things online would be nice. 
Town Finances need improving. Debt limit too high.  
Online platform to select the paperless it wouldn’t save multiple times.  
Technology seems to be lacking. Computer always seems to be down on numerous occasions when stopping by.  
Could you possibly charge more for water? What a joke!  

30

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

I feel this part of town services runs smoothly. I appreciate the services are easy to connect with and doing business with the town is usually a 
pleasure!  
The cost of water in this town is atrocious, onet is not good and is a drain on our community, i was lied to my face at the town office,   You should 
be able to enter in to direct billing for your taxes at any time of year online through your portal.  The recycling centers were closed, the home 
garbage bins rotation is not good one, should be every 2 weeks especially now 
Seems fine to me  
I work away for long periods of time. It has happened in the past that my water bill has been applied to my tax bill (which I pay annually). Because 
I wasn’t home to pay two continuous bills. I do not want nor wish to pay my bills via giving you my credit card and having it applied that way.  
Lower taxes 
Utilities are high compared to other communities.  Is this because of the added expense of having to take over the failing O-Net company? 
Corporate Services could do better!!!!  Hands are tied with the increases that are being put on residence with Utilities, tax and now the total 
annihilation of the recycling progamme!!!  Thought we were supposed to be one of the 'greenest' communities in Alberta?!?  NOT Good 
enough!!! 
Better communication and knowing what the community actually needs to grow  
Simple things as including the newsletters with our monthly property taxes and utilities emails as it used to be. Should not have to search for it 
The Town office should be open during the lunch hour, can the front reception people take staggered lunch breaks? The reception staff are 
wonderful but hours are not convenient for working people. Enough with the COVID excuses 
Don't use often  
Don’t use very much. Pay utility bills online and only attend town office to pay annual property taxes. Staff are pleasant and helpful when 
attending.  
Need more online access.  Tax bills/utilities.   
All good  
Typical govt 
I'd like to see more listening to the people, as in the case of the Miller Meadows re-zoning. A small handful of adjacent residents were notified 
(maybe 25?) about this enormous change proposed to our area, and yet I, , presented an invalid petition to Town Council apparently, 
because I didn't have 10% of the town's population opposed (2,100 of which are children under 19). I find dealing with things like Miller Meadows 
to be so degrading and dismissed.  
People are not friendly and the water and taxes are to high. 
They answer the phone when I call 
I have never once been treated with respect when dealing with town staff.  Rude and arrogant!  Not once have you helped to solve a problem, nor 
showed the willingness to. 
No issues  

31

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Be open during lunch hour.  
Town bills are extremely expensive and the taxes are crazy for the services we receive. Ie: garbage pick up  
customer service is excellent 
Seems organized 
No notes.  
This town is managed so poorly I’m not sure where to start. The ridiculous water and services prices for extremely poor management or the fact 
that they pass the buck every complaint sent in 
Be open over the lunch hour for those who work.  
Property taxes are ridiculous in the highlands way too high. 
We get taxed a ridiculous amount. Above many other municipalities and see very little return. Garbage, recycling, snow removal? What is going on 
here??? Where is our money being spent. I’m disgusted.  
Billing and tax payment services are average. Support services need a tune up. My requests for inquiries into out of town contractors working in 
town, street water backup, have seem to go un-addressed.  
Lower the cost of taxes when we do not receive composting. Or replace the non composting days with garbage. 
Have your phones answered by a person rather than "press 1 for ...." 
Spending money on pointless things. Onet bail out, we don’t get good value for the amount of taxes we pay. Utilities is through the roof.  
Friendly 
No problem  
Friendly staff.  
collecting taxes and spending money 

 
 
 
 

32

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

OPERATIONS 
How would you rate the effectiveness of these services? 

 

 

 

 

Total Responses Above Average Average Below Average 
289 9% 47% 44% 

33

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

SNOW CLEARING 
When considering snow clearing, how satisfied are you with our service? 

Total Responses Satisfied Not Satisfied 
289 50% 50% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Should the Town increase its investment in snow clearing? 

Total Responses Yes No 
287 57% 43% 

 
 
 
 

34

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
The use of sand on the roads less plowed or not plowed would make it easier to drive. 
Pray for a Chinook. 
I live on a mid priority road and snow removal is great for me.  
Snow clearing is also a safety issue. Should continue as is. 
Get plows out and clear all road (side roads are pitiful and poorly maintained) BEFORE people drive on them and pack it down. Scrape them. The 
side roads are always the roughest. Pay extra or schedule normal working hours so plows are out early in the morning before traffic. Make a 
regular work day for plow drivers 3 a.m. to 11 a.m. 
Continue with current program of removal and plowing as is 
The Town clears the snow with priority given to major roadways first - as it should be! It costs a lot of taxpayer dollars to consistently be clearing 
the entirety of roads after every snowfall. With our long winters, these taxpayer dollars are better spent enriching other aspects of our 
community.  
Overkill at times in residential areas. Funds could be better spent elsewhere 
The snow clearing in Olds has been exceptional.  I have noticed in many other communities snow is cleared but not removed.  I wonder if we have 
set the standard too high in Olds...hard to back up a bus :) 
They were trucking snow when it was not needed from side streets. Sure that costs a lot. 
It’s fine 
roads leading to senior homes not cleared on priority. plows drive up one side od crescent but only clear half which is in front of lodge leaving 
seniors on other end of crescent cotendind ing with unplowed road, 
I know people complain, but I also know there are a  lot of streets and very few vehicles for removal.  I think the town does well with the snow 
removal. 
We live on Sunrise Cres. The snowplow plows in front of the Seniors center, then lifts and doesn't plow our street much later yet we are all elderly 
Olds does way more vs say Calgary, but instead of clearing entire streets move to single side clearing and no street parking. Graders can push all to 
one side, bobcats to follow to scoop out buried driveways: fraction of the cost until snow is so built up you need to truck it out 
I fully understand the costs related to snow management. It is crazy to have to creep along the roads in winter for fear of damaging your vehicle 
due to the ruts and ice on the roads.  
I seriously hope you are able to come up with a balanced plan that deals with the neighbourhoods that are not on the main routes that get early 
service. Living on the north side of town (north of the Co-op), we have are forced to bounce around due to extremely uneven, snow packed 
streets. 
Residential cul de sac roads can become impassable  
You will never please everyone.  The parking you have provided on 50th Street downtown is going to be an issue in the winter 

35

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Leave openings so you can turn at intersections and into parking lots 
We have a hard enough time getting in our culdesac.  It will be impossible if you dont remove snow 
Removal in major routes and plowing on side streets  
I would like to see the removal of snow cease so that some of the lesser used roads could at least get plowed. Our area got plowed once the last 
few years. I would like that to increase at least to 2.  

 
  Snow removal is a must in this climate.  Plowing is just not 

going to cut it but if you do try that whatever you do do not plow it to the curb and block everyone's car in and cover their sidewalk up you're 
going to have a lot of upset people.  It should be all graded into a pile going down the center of the street to keep the parking open and the 
sidewalks clear.   
Removing is absolutely necessary!! Other communities also do removal, streets are narrow enough so plowing piles up n as a result more people 
are stuck downtown or wherever n causes more accidents, businesses suffer etc.  Buy more snow equipment instead of flower pots! Equipment 
continually is being fixed!!!  
The plows should have the blades down when the snow is falling not just packing it down and adding salt and sand which makes more of a mess 
then anything. Getting it off the roads makes the roads safer to drive on, and u don’t have a bunch of vehicles stuck on main street trying to push 
each other out, well the school bus is there.  
Streets need to be cleared of snow more often.  
More often and a better job. Half the time it’s scraped no where near the aidewalk 
Please consider pedestrians - eg, school bus stops, elderly, around the Cornerstone/Walmart area - to make it more accessible 
It is hard to please everyone. 
More efficient use of equipment. Use local contractors in big snow events.  
Use the town grader efficiently and when it breaks down, get a contractor to fill in... Or contract more of it, might turn out cheaper in the end. 
some of the areas that do not get cleared are driving and parking hazardous! 
I realize I don’t live on a “ high priority street” but when the winter comes our streets get done maybe twice a year. The snow drifts are about 3 
feet high along with the pile of snow they left at the end of our street was uncalled for.  
I have a problem with property owners being required to clear the sidewalks but the town is not required to clear the streets. Ridiculous. 
What are we going to pay more for? Will it actually get better because the amount it already costs for some areas to get done once maybe twice a 
year is a joke 
If you’re going to hold residential owners accountable to the sidewalks, then the town needs to be hold to the same if not higher standard for 
clearing town pathways and roads 
I was forced to buy a new vehicle with 4 x 4 so that I can get off of my street in the winter. 
we live in an area that has a lot of snowfall, we need to accept that and live with it. 

36

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

My hairdresser  had to tell her customers not to come as the street was treacherous with the 
amount of snow.  She contacted the town, but still lost a few weeks of business due to lack of snow removal.  All businesses that are serving the 
public should have priority snow removal. 
Doing okay 
Sometimes you just wonder….what are they doing? How many days till they even get started ! 
Roads which have senior complex on them need to be cleared and snow removed. snow removal is needed so parking and crossing the street is 
possible.  
It's kind of frustrating to see snow clearing going on AFTER it has already melted to the pavement.  But I have to acknowledge that the service is 
generally quite good. 
Just push into the middle and let Mother Nature take care of itself until it is required to be cleared (3-5 storms later) 
It seems the east side of olds is usually left to the end of the route schedule.  
It’s so weather dependent it’s hard to judge if we’ll need more or less next year. But if we need to upgrade or repair equipment I think that 
investment is vital. In our area we need to have it scraped all the way down when you do get to us as we are the bottom of the list and often the 
downtown will be cleared 3 times before it gets to us.  
I can’t complain  
Needs to be done more often, they come 3 weeks later  
Shoving snow up again sidewalks & more shovelling is going to be tough in an aging population. We best not be getting tickets for uncleared 
sidewalks if that happens. 
We live in a cul-de-sac that usually gets plowed last and that is just fine. We are Canadians and we know how to do snow. 
Keep the streets clear, easier for people to get around and less accidents  
When snow is cleared, perhaps it would be nice not to create a wall of snow in front of residents driveways 
Residential streets can get pretty bad at timed 
Perhaps choosing to prioritize snow clearing in neighborhoods that are frequented by elderly.  If bylaw receives a request for safety reasons, that 
area gets put to the top of the list. 
It would be awful if this service was stopped, with the college being right in town, we have an awful lot of young drivers around and it is very 
helpful to have the roads plowed for safety 
Alleyways and side roads should be cleared at least once per season; some routes currently receive no clearing at all. 
Ensure sand is put down in common ice areas 
Maybe look at other companies that may charge less.  
Snow removal sets our town apart from others 
When the packed snow on the road is higher than the sidewalk, something needs to be done  
At least get rid of ruts and ensure the gravel is removed from streets as early in the spring as possible. 

37

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Isn’t done often enough. Should be started as soon as it starts snowing, to stay on top of it. Then it wouldn’t be so much to scrape off later.  
Satisfied with the past snow removal practice as I live in a Close but could see an opportunity for snow plowing on road where town has road side 
easement. ie: Vista Dr 
Good as is. 
Response time to clear snow seems very slow an inefficient.  By the time the plows are out the snow has been packed into solid ice and the 
graders only skim the surface or don't bother at all.  The ruts in the street are allowed to get to absurd and dangerous depths before anything is 
done. 
Please make priority on the main roads, as well as the trucking routes.   
Keep drains unplugged in the spring  
When clearing roads, job needs to be more thorough, remove ruts 
Didn’t receive any last year  
More tax money spent on snow clearing and less spent on things such as statues on hwy 
It has gotten better over the years. But it still needs improving. They will pile the snow in the middle of the road and then nightfall starts and it 
gets dark and people have driven into the pile into the middle of the road. They also don't clear it very well sometimes or not soon enough so 
when they do try to clear it everything is ice 
This town has lots bins for grass clippings, snow removal was terrible last year. There has been so many cuts yet we see huge tax bills and less 
services! 
Doing an acceptable job. 
Give more jobs to the ppl to promote snow shoveling businesses or kids to do it. 
I pay a monthly HOA that includes snow removal in my community, but get no “break” on taxes and in a sense pay double for snow removal. 
What I have seen in the past is that the town isn’t very efficient with the snow. Need to hire people that know how to run the machines. And have 
better planning on the snow removal. For example don’t decide to clear snow by the schools when parents are dropping there kids off.  
The. You see the sanding truck driving around with his blade up. Need to start have the graders and plows pushing the snow into the middle of the 
road and then worry about it after. The biggest thing is to get after it as soon as it snows. It’s a lot easier to deal with before it’s packed down 
melted and frozen again. Biggest thing the management of the snow removal and operators.  
Just regularly plow the roads!  It makes all accessible for cars or ambulance or fire trucks. Any drainage issues can be solved with a lot less snow 
removal than doing the whole street. The lack of snow removal causes ruts and damage to cars, if the roads were plowed ruts are reduced. 
Plowing costs less and provides better roads 
Don’t clear snow around school streets during drop off and pick up times  
I appreciate the snow clearing, I can't imagine how terrible the roads would be without your help! 
I have only ever witnessed snow clearing, why not try  snow plowing in some areas  
I carpool and driving down the side streets such as 48 street East of the tracks is damaging to my car, ruts and snow make it almost impassable at 
times 

38

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Snow clearing could be useful on main roads but plowing should be utilized. Smaller roads get cleared maybe 1-2 times per year after all is said 
and done. Roads are horribly packed with ice by this point and also causes drainage issues. Snow clearing should be replaced or supplemented 
with plowing immediately after larger snowfalls instead of waiting weeks+ to clear roadways. 
The town is supposedly saving money, put the saved money towards snow clearing 
Its tough to satisfy all. Heavy snowfalls occur often.  I am more concerned with managing slippery streets.  More ice management  
Senior struggling with the lack of downtown snow removal. As well as travelling through ice rutted roads. I’ve heard counsellor as well as mayor 
say we are an excellent town for seniors. Not so if snow removal is part of their vision … 
Clearing more where seniors live ! Sidewalks and cleaning of streets ! 
Nothing has been done in the last year 
We are lucky if we see allow down our street one just as spring arrives. It should be done more often 
Marketing Olds as an elderly friendly community when ambulances cannot access their homes due to snow and ice seems like a contradiction. 
Rather than choosing between clearing all roads everywhere at each snowfall versus no clearing at all, perhaps bylaw can monitor neighborhoods 
and request clearing at the next possible date. 
2013. Snow removal was the best! But! That year we had alot of snow, blew the budget and have been suffering ever since  
The whole street should be considered off of main routes.  The traffic doesn’t stop because we are off Main Street  
Clear roads on a regular bases, we live close to the Catholic school and we are always the last to be plowed, we have a terrible drive to our house 
which is in the city and it should be like this.  
Crosswalk access should be cleared 
There are some roads that require attention sooner, they are dangerous, they get rutted.  
Work smarter not harder and money would be saved. If they had operators that actually knew how to run the equipment it could be done better 
and in half the time. Many times they just create a worse mess by not knowing what to do.  
Additional money towards snow clearing, and should be earlier in the morning. Everyone leaves around 8 and the roads should already be 
completed.  
How about just grading residential when road is rough  to cut removal cost and grade more often 
They do a great job already 
The snow removal is poorly planned. There is always too many dump trucks waiting around. Some areas the snow does not need to be removed 
and can be piled up. It can be organized better.  
People complain about it way too much.  
There are many culdesacs in olds with houses tight together so being able to push snow onto yards isn’t always available. We need snow removal 
to a certain extent in areas  
Welcome to Alberta.  People need to remembered that we live here. 

39

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

The town should look for a more time efficient way to clear snow, having multiple contractors lined up for hours waiting for their turn surely can’t 
be the best use of funds.  
Don't stop just because it's the weekend, and then it snows, and you start at the beginning, and then some areas never have snow removed. 
Snow clearing should only occur where boulevards are not present. All other areas would be fine as strictly snow plowing to save on spending 
There was talk of taking away snow removal. Absolutely ridiculous. It takes so long to get the roads cleaned, as long as a few weeks. Then only to 
look in the forecast and see another dump of snow. It is not well thought out  
Residents of Olds should not get stuck in the streets while waiting weeks for proper snow clearing. Of all the places we have lived in Canada 
(including 10 years in the Northwest Territories), Olds snow clearing is amongst the worst. Tax payer dollars should be allocated to driveable roads 
within appropriate timeframes…not clearing the day before another storm is forecasted.  
Not enough in residential area  
Stop snow clearing. Residents should be responsible for clearing their own driveways and walkways. When plowing streets, train operators to stop 
damaging the curbs. Our entire neighbourhood (the Highlands) has unsightly, permanent scrapes, gouges and chunks of concrete chipped away 
from the shoddy curbside plowing each spring that gets worse every year. A few more years of this damage and all the curbs will need to be 
replaced - an insane expense!!  
Removal is a waste of money on all residential streets. Plow and require residents to shovel snow onto their lawns. High traffic roads can be 
plowed to the middle like most other towns across Canada. If too narrow for parking then restrict parking in winter…like most other towns in 
canada. We get snow here…residents and businesses need to adjust their expectations to help reduce our taxes.  
Snow removal services have been reduced over the 8 yrs I have lived in Olds.  Service reduction should mean Tax reduction.  Stop frivolous 
spending/ 
Please continue snow removal in our Town. This new council continues to cut and reduce services. I am completely  dissatisfied with the recent 
decisions made by council, including the changes to waste removal and the speed limit designation in front of EOES. 
Side streets  
I live in an area that will always be cleared, so I recognize my bias when I say all is good. Still, I think that it is important for people to be able to 
drive down their streets and park at their homes easily in the winter.  
Snow removal on roads is currently fine however some of the town side walks don't get cleared, eg North side of highway 27 or the sidewalk by 
cows palace. It becomes so icy that is impossible 
The town does a very good job at clearing roads and pathways. 
#12 is a catch question  ( not a yes or no type answer)- there should be a contingency plan for heavier snowfall years - it is not a one size fits all 
solution -  
Grader operators are terrible at removing snow from our streets. Couldn’t get out of our driveways this past winter. Totally unacceptable. 
Plowing causes an issue around getting out of driveways. Snow removal addresses this 
It seems that often the snow removal takes a long time and often is alreadyelting by the time ruts are scraped down... 

40

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Actually remove the snow from the roads and budget better  
Removal/plowing doesn't seem to always be well timed to snow events.  Usually okay but sometimes misses the mark. 
I appreciate the removal. Not just plowing which can cause more problems than it relieves.  
We seldom get our streets cleared but our taxes remain the same as those who get their streets done ever time. 
Our crescent was plowed once last year. I feel it is the same routes plowed over and over and crescents never get done. 
Nothing to add. 
I think the focus should be on snow clearing key routes - especially with higher volume traffic and where business rely on street parking.  Other 
streets - quieter residential and streets without significant traffic should be snow plow only.  
Reduce Cleaning of Uptown. little bit of Snow money wasted there and Residential street see nothing 
I'd be happy with snow plowing without removal in residential areas with low traffic priority. Last year the town removed snow once in our area 
late in the season but the we're several times that people were getting stuck on the road in front of there houses (my wife included and we have a 
4 wheel drive SUV, with studded winter tires). I'd put up with the berm of snow if the roads were decent. 
As a Homecare nurse in our community, I am well aware of the lack of snow removal on certain streets that make it impossible for some to 
navigate independently  from their home in the winter. 
Satisfied with the amount of snow plowing and clearing that already occurs. Do not increase or decrease.  
Our back alley needs plowing more often for water drainage issue and frost heaves in Spring. In Feb. 2023 we got our 4X4 truck stuck trying to get 
out of our backyard. Stuck in the ruts of your back alley. Please maintain back alleys in Winter as well.  
Better notify all areas to be cleared or plowed so that people can move their vehicles. Many Purple and Red routes do not receive any notification. 
Should be more of a priority 
put the blade down on the road instead of just scraping the top 
The red routes are the busiest streets in town and these are the ones you do not have people move there cars. You  have just stated that these 
are priority routes and should be cleared and not have the plows go around cars. declare them as snow routes like most towns and cities use our 
bylaw officers and ticket and tow and people will get the message. Why leave them parked for plows to go around.  
Increase in snow removal means increase in taxes, which we personally cannot undertake. 
Just focus on main routes 
With the seniors in this town we definitely need to do as much as we can to keep the streets drivable!! 
I think the town is doing a good job of snow removal. I wonder if putting up more snow fences would help decrease drifting in some residential 
neighborhoods like Duncan place buy the environmental reserve?  
The higher property tax areas in town should also have a priority on snow removal  
Pass 
No other places clear snow. I think it’s a waste of money.  

41

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

I feel the snow removal has been less frequent over the past couple of years. While I understand trying to save some money, lack of snow removal 
affects people’s daily lives, ESPECIALLY folks with mobility issues. This needs to be taken into consideration. I’m still not just about the bottom 
dollar 
They should plow or clear every road. Not just the ones they see fit.  
I’ve heard this year the town will reduce its snow clearing from what it currently is and I find that a bad idea 
Pushing the snow to the side of the road on highway 27 was a terrible idea considering those sidewalks ended up becoming pure ice. Seriously this 
community is full of older folks and young children and the sidewalks are completely unsafe the entirety of the winter.  
Sell O-Net, don’t spend all the money on planters for the highway that no one cares about and out that towards snow removal. 
With the Taxes that we are paying in this community, there should be better snow removal in all areas inside the town core. 
Keep removal to key areas but plow everything. Improve drainage/ 
Removal in high traffic areas and plowing more frequently in low traffic areas. Low traffic areas become extremely hard on vehicles and 
sometimes impassable with lots of snow or when snow is compacted so much.  
It’s absolutely an essential service that affects everyone throughout winter. We need continuous snow removal  
I understand that major roads and those used more like at the schools and hospital and such need to be cleared first but it would be nice to have 
the uptown area cleared more often as well and not just down the middle I work uptown and we had many complaints by customers that they 
could not easily park along the road especially some of our more senior customers felt it was unsafe. And also to have the older residential areas 
done more than once a season and five on the days it is actually scheduled.  
The Town has the correct equipment but not sure if the staff know how to use it properly. The walking paths may have snow cleared however the 
town has resources to place sand along the trails however that is rarely used as a # of paved trails are very icy in winter and early spring 
Having town owned vehicles etc to remove snow instead of contracting out services might help with costs. Also because of priority routes some 
streets never get cleared until spring meltoff. 
Need to do better, very poor job on neighbourhood roads. Left all winter to go uneven and wreck shocks and suspension in vehicles. Paths are 
poorly done.  
In my neighborhood (Highlands) we pay some of the highest property taxes in town however the snow removal service is non-existent in 
comparison to other areas 
While snow removal has improved slightly over the years, it could use more improvement. With rising costs people are forced to drive more fuel 
efficient vehicles, however the roads in Olds are far from practical for a smaller car. Additionally residential areas are sometimes impassible, even 
to emergency responders. 
The removal process was good, but I would suggest more investment on bylaws enforcement ensuring vehicles are not blocking the snow removal 
process for the one time that it’s critical to remove the snow. We had multiple issues with no enforcement, vehicles parked in front of our house 
on the day they removed snow. It took two days for bylaw to get back to me but by then it was too late and our house didn’t get plowrd. This is 
important to prevent water seepage in our basement in the spring. As well as the lack of enforcement of sidewalk clearing.  
Snow removal on roads near the elementary school was dismal last year. Really easy to get stuck in ruts/get cars stuck. Considering the number of 
people and children at drop off and pick up, this is so dangerous. 

42

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Alot of areas get ignored  
If the snow plow would actually plow to the edges or sidewalks on the roadways there would be much less impact from freeze and thaw.  
It snows in Alberta. Slowing down on side-streets helps with the discomfort of bumpy/icy roads. I don't want to pay more property taxes for snow 
removal. I'd rather spend that money on better snow tires.  
I think snow clearing should be done when it snows right away, all you have to do is pile it yo the end of the road and get the skidster to flat it 
down a bit. That way the snow don't pile up and turn to ice and it wouldn't cost as much as a once time snow removal like you do. 
I have a rental house on a main route that needs to stay as it has a school but I also live in a residental area that maybe gets plowed 1-2 times a 
year. This is crazy, it becomes so rough and also causes so much snow build up which causes water issues when melting 
DO NOT CANCEL SNOW REMOVAL!!!!! 
The snow doesn’t always need to be removed, it can just be plowed. In my court we have a big park, they come and remove the snow off the grass 
and haul it away? Snow is free water, pile the snow on the grass vs hauling away and you get free water and save money on trucking costs.  
I feel they do a good job. 
would like to see more effort clearing public sidewalks of ice. I'm fine with the current clearing policy of the roads 
Is it cheaper to contract it 
Yes and no is too broad.  Yes,  if it doesn't take away from other services or increase taxes.  Otherwise,  no you're doing fine.  
Find proper services at better prices or make your employees actually do their job 
No more tax dollars should be allocated toward snow removal than what has already been.  
Takes forever to get snow removed throughout the town. The fact is, some winter days I struggle to get my vehicle out. How can I work if my 
roads are not properly maintained? 
The way the snow clearing done has to be addressed. . 
It’s appalling how atrocious the snow removal and plowing is in the community, especially how long it take with the plowing on side roads and cul 
da sac. With the amount of taxes we pay (which is higher that Fort Saskatchewan) I would expect better service.  
rotate the priority of snow clearing in residential areas.  East Olds feels like the forgotten child 
Increase in snow clearing would help everyone get around 
Push to curb. Leave to melt.  
I think they do a great job of snow removal in town. 
Stop picking up so much snow. It is a waste of money and time. Plow it or leave it.  

 
 

43

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 
When considering Waste Management, including garbage, recycling and community grass dumpsters, how would 
you rate the value of our services? 

 

 

Total Responses Above Average Average Below Average 
290 9% 46% 45% 

44

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
Confusion over why composting goes into garbage in winter but is separate rest of year 
Removing waste management has already had an impacted on the environment. With most of the garbage disposal being removed from store 
and alone steet I have noticed more garbage along streets and ditches. 
We need black and blue bins emptied every two weeks maximum. 
Loss of recyclj f area. Recycling and garbage being disposed of in the same area. Makes no sense to tax on carbon taxes when the taxes paid to the 
town of Olds doesn't get used to make a difference in the carbon footprint.  
I would like to see an extra pickup for the blue bin during Christmas holidays. We have a large amount of paper and cardboard, with the removal 
of the drop off recycling I would imagine more of this will go to a black bin. 
Three week rotation is good. 
Blue bag (recycling) can be improved. The removal of the central collection area was a major step backward. The issue was the collection was 
extremely poorly managed. The bins were always full (empty them more regularly!) and collection was overly complicated. It was glass bottles 
here, plastics there, flat cardboard way over there. It was convenient to bring recyclables to the location on a regular basis. Now we went from 
complicated to throw everything in to same blue bag, hold it for a month and then put it out. Very poor. A recommendation comes from a 
community I used to live in. Every Saturday morning, a site was open from 7 a.m. to 1 p.m. There were several huge dumpsters that people put 
there bluebags (all sorted by plastics, paper, etc) and flat cardboard in those specific dumpsters. What made it very successful is that there was a 
staff member to help ensure people put everything in the correct large dumpster. Nothing was loose (like the collection area that was shut down) 
so no waste landed on the ground and the bins were trucked out that day (because it was  paved parking lot). In and out in one day. The incentive 
to use it was it was an opportunity every Saturday to not collect and store your recyclables for a month (and not be tempted to put in the regular 
trash). It worked. Contact me to know more. 
Continue with current 3 week rotating pick-up schedule and eliminating compost pick-up during the winter months. Would be nice to have a 
annual drop-off for paints, used oil, similar products once a year ? 
Our current waste management system has promoted sustainable practices and made me and my family more conscientious about what is waste, 
recyclable, and compostable materials.  
Liked the green bin pause in the winter. Let’s make sure our sorting and separating recyclables is actually being handled appropriately. No point 
separating and collecting separately if it all goes into the landfill  
every 3 weeks is not enough for families  
Tax dollars are used! Just because it is not property taxes, it is still a tax. Levied monthly. 
The big green dumpsters at the entrance to Imperial drive has been full of garbage that does not belong. This will probably continue at tax payers 
expense. I’m sure its not people in Imperial dumping that garbage.  
I love the big bins, but I’m a person on my own and do not fill a large bin,  
I believe it was mistake to remove community recycling bins. This will result in an increase of garbage 

45

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

I'm not sure now where all our recycling/compost goes so if it's not in the town of Olds, where does it go, and why can't a town of this size 
facilitate that? 
I love the grass bins, could not maintain my yard without. Sad to see them being misused for other garbage. It appears that often blue bins are 
under-utilized, maybe we can use them too for greens in the summer months? 
A) I called the Regional Waste authority, they told me they dump the recycling in the landfill. 
b) If A is true, why not just have more garbage and no recycling? 
Oh boy, where to start. !!!!!!!!!!! 
Blue bin / recycling - we hear that these items are recycled - apparently NOT TRUE!! I have heard stories of people following the blue bin pick-up 
truck to the Didsbury landfill and dumping there. We are paying to have our recycling sent for recycle purposes and it appears this is not 
happening. PLEASE find a market for these products so they do not end up in landfill. 
 
GREEN BIN - I am very disappointed that the large green bins were reduced. We live in a neighbourhood with seniors who still cut their own grass, 
and now they have to carry it to the north side of Frank Wong park. The small green bins have a purpose, however during the spring/summer/fall 
season, sometimes it is not enough. We need to have at least one big green bin along Silverthorn at the entrance to Frank Wong park. 
Need more black bin dumps 
We need keep green bins all year and if there is no recycling stop that pick up black bin more  
Need the blue/black bin picked up more often.  
I have no issues as we are just a family of 2. I do agree that larger families need pickup more often or more bins. But if you choose to have a larger 
family, there are costs associated with that and if it costs more for pickup, then that’s a price that needs to be budgeted for.  
I would also hope that there could be exceptions made for single-parent households, or people just struggling in this day and age.  
Since the closing of the recycle bins in town I'm noticing a lot of people either rural or Urban dumping their cardboard and recyclables in the alley 
in behind residences bins etc.  We should also get rid of the contractors and start doing the waste ourselves as the services absolutely deplorable 
that we currently have.  If the driver doesn't like you or feel like dumping your garbage he just doesn't. 
Stop green bin pickup in winter but supply dumpsters as have been around town for grass 
Now that all recycling has been removed from the town and all we have now is our blue bins they will be filled faster or it will be going to the 
landfill anyway. So we are not helping the environment at all, and probably not saving anything either.  
 Black bins need picked up more often. We dont need green bin pick up in winter.  
We need to have bins picked up more often now that you’ve taken away our recycling facility. Garbage is piling up around town because no one 
has anywhere to put it  
The black/blue bins need to get emptied more frequently  
I wish they picked the bins up more than every 3 weeks.  And wish they still collected the green bin during the winter 
We need pick up more than once every three weeks. Garbage, compost and recycling pile up very quickly especially now that you've removed the 
Town recycling centre off Main Street. It is especially gross in summertime. We want to support recycling and composting household waste but 
you are not making it easy at all. Please seriously reconsider the once every 3 weeks schedule and reopen the recycling centre.  

46

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Good as it is. 
Bins too small for families, have a local waste facility for residents so we don’t have to travel to Didsbury. The one we had in the past worked. 
Town shut down due to mismanagement  
With the community recycle facilities being closed I feel we need more of blue bin pick ups and black bins 
I said it before and say it again. How about pay per use? We hardly use our black garbage, but still pay same as the   neighbors that have them 
heaping full every time and don't recycle much... For example in Switzerland I saw that people would buy stickers for different size bags and then 
stick it on it in order to be picked up. You pay for what you use/waste. 
With 6 people in my family, it is really tough to have each bin picked up only once every 3 weeks. Probably works well for 2 person homes, but 
really tough for our family. During the winter this year our bins were always overflowing when we didn’t have the 3rd bin (compost). 
A 3 week cycle does not mean less waste is going to the landfill people still have the same amount of garbage they just dump it in other people's 
bins 
Each bin should be weekly all year round 
Residents with suites in the basement are a  problem.  Landlord provides only one garbage bin, leaving residents to stack up garbage outside.  
Perhaps landlords should provide two bins if two separate tenants in the house.  Otherwise, perhaps by-law could pay these residents a visit to 
encourage them to get a second bin. 
Garbage should be picked up every second (every other) week.  Many say recycle actually goes to the landfill and if this is true the town should 
discontinue recycle bins completely.  Olds should go back to having it's own landfill, not using the Didsbury landfill.  Green bins pickup is fine as it 
is now. 
We had the big green bins in our Cres., but they were removed. Yet they were always well used. 
Biggest complaint is having to move my bins to my neighbour’s yard across the back alley.  This has caused bad relations between many that I 
know of.  Also, can we not encourage people to keep their bins in their yards and not all over the alley ! 
Bring back community central recycle deposit locations.  
Walking 4 blocks away (x2 each time--there and back) to empty our lawn mower bag 3 times per mow is too far.  Might as well leave our grass in 
the dumpsters. 
I would like to see black garbage by weekly and then green and blue on the alternate weeks 
Garage and recycling need to be picked up more often  
We need a more rotation for black bins for larger families that create more waste. 
I know my neighbours are not satisfied with the lack of grass bins but overall I’ve made it work for me this summer. The 3 week rotation does 
work for my family as well but I think our bins are a 
But bigger in our older area of town. 
Blue bins need to be picked up much more frequently. It will help cut down on black bin waste too!  
Comm grass bins in our area are always full or overflowing due to big yards . Please continue making them available  
Going to didsbury for a dump is ridiculous  

47

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

No green bins in winter is working good, I think. I could use black pick up once a month with blue bin more often. 
We end up with more garbage in the winter now with no green bin taken out. 
I would like to see the black bins and blue bins get picked up more frequently  
Would benefit large families if garbage went every other week 
Removing recycling stations was a huge mistake. Compost could be reduced 
Compost needs to continue all winter! If it can’t, then we need an extra garbage pick up (every second week). Families can hardly manage one 
garbage pick up every three weeks if you take away compost services again this winter.  
Don’t like not having green bins from October.  
Need the black and blue bins more often 
I have been hearing that all of the waste, regardless of whether it is blue bin, green or black, is all going to the landfill.  Now the recycling center is 
closed so there isn't any place to take our extra recycling to.  If everything is all ending up in the landfill, then perhaps we go back to one bin that 
gets picked up each week. 
Having a 3 week rotation is ridiculous,  I could get behind a 2 week rotation alternating between recycling and garbage, you've already removed  
our recycling centers and your going to find a garbage increase due to that. I can even understand removing the green bin in winter, but then... up 
the garbage and recycling services 
I do not use the Green bin very often and definitely not in Winter 
Please provide a place where recyclables can be put in times where you have excess recyclables  
No you have taken away the community dumpsters over the Tracks and Co-Op. .. We need blue bins emptying more often. If feel there will be an 
increase in fly tipping and then the town will look even more unsightly. 
We need consistency and also 3 week rotation does not work for most. I would pay the extra anytime to have garbage more than on average 1 
time a month  
I agree with cutting out the green bin service over winter months! 
We need town recycling bins 
Garbage is not picked up often enough. It gets full and reeks. Biweekly should be the minimum time it is picked up. Blue bin also needs to be 
picked up biweekly, especially with the recycling centres closed. I understand that blue bin does not even go to recycling. If this is true, just 
increase black bin to weekly and stop blue bin.  
Would like to see a recycling center in town again.  
Agree with stop the green bin pick-up during winter months, 3 week rotation is OK 
Monitor the community bins more. Seems that a lot of companies (landscaping, etc.) and out of town people dump in them. 
It's really disappointing and seems to be getting worse.  Even with a very small family we seem to overflow bins in the 3 week timeframe.  
Especially now with recycling centers removed we need to stockpile cardboard recycling to haul to Didsbury.  
Garbage pickup needs to be more often  

48

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

We have more recycling then our blue bin can hold. With the yellow bins gone I don’t know what to do with the access? We don’t recycle 
anymore as a family and I just take it all to the dump myself. We have more garbage than our black bin can hold as well. We are a family or five 
and I run a small dayhome. We hardly use our green bin except for when we do yard work.  
I really wish that the schedule would be a bit better for the black bins.  It is really a problem with families with more than 3 people.  Recently with 
the removal of the recycling depots, this issue needs to be updated and improved.  Perhaps a few "overflow" bins should be put at the old 
recycling location for any community members to put that one or two extra bags of garbage.  It is difficult and annoying issue now that some of 
the recycling options have been changed.  Please help revisit this issue, and resolve the new issues that have transpired. 
Bring back the town recycle centres 
Being a 3 week rotation is hard. I agree with stopping the compost in the winter and that worked well but then maybe the blue and black bin 
needs to be rotated more frequently  
3 weeks for garage is just ridiculous! Why do we blue bun when there is no recycling? 
Discounts for seniors. 
Terrible service level and quality  
Rather have more recycling pick then snow removal on my street  
Not happy with removal of recycle Center. You will need to increase black and blue bin pickup now  
I don’t use the grass/compost services but still have to pay the same rate - I don’t even have a bin! 
Need better recycling systems in place  
My biggest complaint is in the summer the placement of the grass bins. For insomuch day is pushing 70 years old and he had to take his grass 
clippings 5 blocks down the road. He doesn’t own a truck. So it was very difficult for him to get it to the bins, and he would get one cut of his grass 
and his green bin would be full. I believe the house hold green bins need to be picked up more in the summer.  
Then not to sure how things are going to work out with the town taking away the recycling centres in town. That is going to create more garbage 
in your house hold bins. And more littering around town and the country.  
It would be nice to find more ways to reduce costs. 
no opinion 
Blue bins need to accept more recyclables, bins need to be picked up more often.  
Getting rid of town recycling facilities drastically changed the satisfaction and effectiveness of our current program. There is no way to reduce 
waste when there is nowhere for it to be recycled and blue bins are full. Facilities should be available or blue and black bins should be picked up 
bi-weekly instead of once every 3 weeks. 
You collect every 3 weeks.  Compost and garbage bins reak in the summer.  Most communities pick up more often.  Have more central compost 
locations and get rid of individual bins 
The mess surrounding community green bins speak for themselves!  
Now is more garbage placed into private owned bins and costing us more in fees to have them dumped? I think the town should own a few paper 
bins and place them around so other residents can put their cardboard in not into a private bin !  

49

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Bring back the bins you took away no savings here 
Poor services, regular missed pickups. Over flowing green bins placed in the neighborhood for grass and leaves is being filled with stuff that is non 
compostable, landscapers should have to take their business compostables to the dump and pay for it. It should not be allowed to be put into the 
big green bins and the regular household bins should be weekly for garbage and the green bin should go alternating weeks with the blue bin in a 
different truck behind the garbage. Better yet have it all picked up weekly because it goes to Didsbury dump anyway 
Bulk Recycle bins need to come back 
why is blue bin in use when there is no market for recycled  products!!!!???? 
Picking up bins more frequently. Every three weeks for a family is absurd.  
Need the recycling depos returned 
More black bin days 
Green bins should be discontinued in winter months. Coming from didsbury, which has every second week removal of blue and black bins, the 
three week rotation is difficult for families. It may be sufficient for seniors and homes without families but for homes with families it is below par. 
Reducing green bin can allow more funds to be allocated for black bin. Perhaps an inquiry into town management from surrounding areas may be 
helpful in maximizing our funds.  
Rotation needs to be better, every 2 weeks with Black going out weekly.  Blue and black one week, Green and black the following.  this will help 
the overflow  
I’m happy with the services  
Need more frequent garbage collection (black bin).  
Compost pick up ends in October. Should there not be a reduction in our billing to reflect one less pick up? 
Agreed green can stop for winter. Advertise a second black bin to more people (for the fee) as many don’t know it’s an option 
Every 3 weeks is acceptable without stopping service for green bin in winter. But the cost is very high for only 1 bin being collected a week. Other 
communities pay a fraction of the cost and receive twice the service.  
Garbage should be picked up every other week.   
Leave as is unless you can find cost improvements. Happy with what we receive now 
The garbage men are lazy. Knocking bins over, not getting out to pick them up. Not picking up garage bins with excuses of the snow being too high 
in the alley. But really the snow wasn't high at all. 
Pick up garbage more often if you’re going to get rid of recycling bins and still give people a place to take recycling. Stopping green bins in winter is 
fine. Making thousands of vehicles drive to Didsbury to recycle is not only environmentally catastrophic it’s a waste of time.  
Would love to see the recycling come back by the tracks. Also would like a more frequent than 3 week pick up for garbage.  
I think people need to utilize the bins they have and quit complaining. If you make the effort to compost and break down your cardboard recycling 
before throwing it in the blue bin there is no reason you should need your garbage picked up more frequently. The recycling facilities were a 
disaster. I used to use them for our businesses cardboard but after seeing the constant supply of trash shoved in there we ended up getting a 
recycle bin at our business. 

50

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

We need to get some form of recycling centres back. I know this is difficult as they were abused and people ended up throwing garbage in them 
but I feel there needs to be some option to recycle other than just throwing cardboard into the garbage.  
Recycling is not the do all be all of environmental protection, when it all goes to the landfill anyways.  I'd rather know the truth then live in a green 
dream. 
These services are not sufficient for families which make up a large portion of the community. I feel as though only older folks fill out these 
surveys as they do not have the same needs as families. Rather than offering a second bin at a cost to families, offer a smaller bin at a discount to 
households who do not need the collection as often. Every second week is reasonable, coming from blackfalds and having weekly everything plus 
recycling sources at a free dump. Olds is severely lacking for more property taxes being charged.  
If compost collection is stopped in the winter, they could alternate between garbage and recycle every two weeks instead of three. 
Took away green bins in the summer and they are always full and impossible to use 
Needs to be more often 
The black bin is consitently full, as well as the green bin in the spring.  
Needs to be more then cycled once every 3 weeks. If you remove green bin in winter add an extra week of blue/black then.  
You got rid of out dumpsters to put cardboard in, and we now only have one bin for recycling which now fills up much quickly. You can’t remove 
the recycling bins and not expect each household to now have an increase in their blue bin. Or drive to Didsbury, which people aren’t doing on a 
regular basis  
The removal of community recycle bins has been a negative blow for the community. The three week rotation does not allow for any supports for 
larger boxes (and most people receive multiple boxes by mail) and now there is no local resource for disposing of cardboard. Taking it to the dump 
in another community jurisdiction of Didsbury is not a well planned decision for many people in this community.  
Black bins need to be picked up weekly or bi weekly. Green bins not in the winter. What happened to the recycling depot? Will need blue bins 
picked up more often if there’s no recycle depot too 
Garbage collection should be taking place weekly. It’s unacceptable for a modern community in Canada to have trash picked up every three 
weeks. Community bins should all be removed as non-tax paying folks from outside town are using and abusing this service. 
Black bins should be every single week, period. I don’t know of any small community that doesn’t pick up garbage every singe week. Green bins 
are fine on the new April-October schedule but should be  picked every week and eliminate community bins that are used and abused by non 
residents of Olds who do not pay for them. Blue bins should be every week as well. The community bins now gone throughout town were used 
and abused by non-residents of Olds not paying for them so I’m glad they are gone now. The waste management company being used is not 
efficient and alternatives should be discussed or at minimum they should be held accountable for their poor service schedules. 
Why were there 4 green bins placed at the North End of Winter Drive when the roads have not been opened to the public. 
The question included in this survey was vague and unclear. It should have been, are you satisfied with the level of services the Town now 
provides regarding waste management. There are a lot of people dissatisfied with the removal of the community recycling bins. Instead of 
removing them completely,  maybe the Town should have looked at alternate formats that would have reduced  people dumping the incorrect 
material in the bins. Town council continues to cut more and more services. I am fully supportive of paying more taxes to maintain these services. 
Everything in life has increased in price  so we should expect to pay more. Stop cutting everything from our Town. 

51

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Garbage every two Weeks. Compost every month.  
Need places to drop off cardboard 
I feel that having an easy and robust recycling and compost program is a must. If the bins will be removed around town, then there needs to be an 
option for residents that don't have bin service (i.e. apartments in the uptown.) Bin services should be an option for renters that wish to pay for 
the service. 
The current 3 week schedule is sufficient for our household 
It would have been helpful if the Council of the day considered markets for recyclables when purchasing the oversized blue bins. Much money was 
spent and now the absence of markets to sell recyclables to, have made this a costly service. Smaller bins and planning for downturns in markets 
may have saved taxpayers the $$ it now is costing. 
The three R's of environment protection are Reduce, Reuse and Recycle...  
 
Education initiatives to help teach reduction and reutilization of waste products could be implemented. There may even be grants available for 
this... 
Recycle is a waste of our money, so many contaminated loads, make black bin pick up more frequent or get rid of blue all together  
Black garbage pick up feels too tight at once every three weeks. Now, without our recycle facilities, so will the blue bin. It’s going to cost me fuel 
and fees to go to the Didsbury dump anyway, so I would be willing to pay more.  
Garbage disposal should be every two weeks. Every three makes people dump garbage everywhere  
If we are paying for green bins year round, they should be collected year round. Black bins need to be picked up more frequently.  
I question the viability of the Blue Bin.  I do believe in recycling but realistically does this actually bring revenue back to the town or does all the 
money go to the company that picks up the bins?  All indications as of late says that there is no real market for recycling, so is all this product 
going to the landfill? 
I’m thankful that there is only 2 of us in our home, can’t imagine going three weeks without getting the bins dumped with a larger family. 
It is very overpriced for the level of service. 
Where does the compost material go?  How is it used? In other locations, branches and other organic materials can be put into compost bins.  In 
time, you can pick up organic compost materials if you live in the community.  I would like to know if this option exists with the current Waste 
Management approach.   
The recent removal of the large community bins is a concern.  I expect a side effect will be full/overflowing blue bins or local dumping of excess 
material in other commercial containers.  I think the entire program needs a revisit in how it is managed, what services are provided, and where 
everything goes/is used/reused.  
Question 16 related to the bins that were removed.  See my comment about where everything is going for disposal / reuse.  I think more 
transparency is necessary.  
We pay for a second black bin as our family with 2 kids in diapers can't keep up on a 3 week rotation.  We find the cycle works fine with this setup 
I am still in favor of stopping the green bin pick up in the winter.  

52

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Losing green bin service in the winter increases the amount of garbage a household produces. Perhaps a community compositing resource would 
be helpful. Citizens can drop their own household compost/Christmas trees/pumpkins etc.  
Limit green bin pickup in Winter months.  
3 weeks is too long for garbage (black bin) 
grass bins should be emptied more in April and May when yardwork is being done and later on weekly 
If it will cut costs take away the spring clean up  
I liked not using green bins over winter.  
3 week service is far below other town/city services.  
Town operated recycling center. Houses look awful with too many bins. Change garbage pick up/recycling to every two weeks in winter when 
green bin not getting picked up. 
Please increase the number of grass bins again! Green bins fill up too quickly in non-winter months! I’m fine with halting green bin pickup in 
winter months though  
You should be working with mountain view county to assist with funds for these bins. Also cut out some of the other crap being purchased and I’m 
sure the bins could have stayed. I don’t want to pay more as my fees are already crazy. Just direct the funds properly. 
We need the waste bin picked up more and the grass bins set up more locally (vistas) 
It was better having the decreased Green bin pick up during the winter.   But can we add an extra Black and Blue bin pick up?  Now that the larger 
recycling centres are closed it’s going to be tough fitting everything in the Blue bins.   My household used the centres all the time!! 
Not often enough 
Having community recycling centres would be very helpful  
-lack of recycling in town. Would like the big areas back. No where to recycle glass. 
- or weekly recycling pick up 
- more frequent garbage pick up schedule. 
-weekly organic pick up in summer.   
The big metal green bins are a waste of money and frequently abused.  
Typically I would have rated services ‘average’. I never minded the 3 week rotation and I loved how our community promoted recycling.  
I am disheartened and disappointment with the decision to remove the larger recycling centre’s in town. I feel that people are going to get sloppy 
and not ur beautiful town will become a dumping ground.  
Not all citizens have the resources to travel out of town to the landfill, and with a town the size of Olds, we shouldn’t have to. We need to do 
better with this. Lack of recycling is going to be a problem. It already is for me.  
The recycling centres need to be reopened and treated respectfully 
You have reduced the amount of grass Bins but have not spread out where the bins are located. (Frank wong park) has two and the rest of 
shannon drive to the west has zero. I am currently emptying my green bin plus two elderly neighbours as my grass cuttings won’t make the 3 
week rotation.  

53

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

If during the winter your skipping the green bin then pickup black twice and blue once in that three week rotation.  
 
You closed down the recycling areas due to illegal dumping which I believe will increase as now there isn’t even a local place to take cardboard, 
glass etc. I now believe that our household blue bins I’m sure are being dumped in the landfill 
Increase black/blue bin pickup, reduce green bin pickup and eliminate during winter.  
Wow!  What do you want us to say?  You have completely closed the recycling drop offs in town without a plan B and you expect us to give you 
ideas?  That's what we pay you to do!!!! 
3 week schedule is not sufficient, especially in the summer months when compost and garbage are sitting for 3 weeks in 30 degree weather  
I like the 3 week cycle. Please keep compost all year.  
Black bins should be picked up more frequently - every three weeks is not enough for most families 
We need more scheduled pick ups. We need to be able to recycle all the cardboard we all have to constantly use. Taking away the green bins for 
part of the season leads to not using them at all. Let’s get this major waste management problem fixed. We only get pick ups every 3 weeks and 
now we have nowhere to take the excess cardboard it’s becoming a massive problem for everyone. Incredibly irresponsible as our taxes increase 
and we get less services 
I agree with halting green bin services in the winter months but feel that the fees should reflect that. Also I recently had to get a new black bin. It 
is a fraction of the size and yet I am still paying the same amount for pickup. We are a family of 5 and this new bin barely holds 2 large garbage 
bags. And on a 3 week rotation we are constantly have to make runs to the landfill which adds even more cost to our monthly budget. We do 
recycle and compost a lot to help reduce our waste but still these new smaller bins are ridiculous  
Need more frequent pick up days, and to resume green bin pick up in the winter.  
3 week schedule makes for disgusting bins and more bugs in summer  
For alot of bigger families only having the black bin taken once every 3 weeks is to little, we are holding onto garbage for the next time our bin is 
empty and not able to catch up until community clean up week or are forced to make a dump run ourselves. This problem can run over into green 
and blue bin use as well and having those extra bins around town to help with that waste disposal was great. 
Green bins need to stay not picked up in winter. With that, alternating 2-3 week cycles with that open week for garbage would be tremendously 
helpful 
Hate the current 3 week rotation.  For a family of 4, our blue and black bin are full or over flowing ever 3 weeks and we recycle as much as 
possible. In the winter when the green bin is not being picked up, should incorporate another black or blue bin pickup in lieu.  
Increase pick ups  
The waste management plan in this town is far from adequate, despite the above average costs to live in Olds. There is not enough room in some 
alley ways and garbage is rarely collected. At best, pick up every 3 weeks is insufficient. Bins in the summer are seen crawling with maggots. The 
removal of the recycle bins will further increase the garbage issue.  
3 week garbage is horrible.  Our family of 4’s recycling bin and garbage is overflowing. In the summer it is awful for smell with the heat.  Birds get 
in your black bin as it is over full.  There is now no where to take overflow recycling which helped when available      A 2 week cycle would be best 
for us.   Maybe a sr family or single thinks it’s great but for families this system is horrible.   

54

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

As a young family with two kids, every three weeks for the black bin is always a nightmare. We already have two bins, and are trying to reduce 
waste. But they are full everytime. Not only that, but it attracts so many animals and the stench is awful once the third week hits. Because there 
are recycling centres provided to the town residents. I would suggest green/blue bin once a month or every 4weeks and the black bin on a 
biweekly schedule.  
The loss of recycling sites is a major concern  
I agree with the 77 percent of taxpayers. Eliminate green bin pickup during winter months and either save the money or add additional green bin 
pickups during intense growing season. 
The schedule should stay the same and no green bin pick up in winter 
I'm just going to throw my excess garbage into the recycle bin.  Blue bin just goes to dump anyways.  Am tired of asking for change in this matter.  
You say reducing pick up reduces garbage??  I don't think so.  Didsbury dump is a long way off and is expensive!  I'm already paying for garbage 
removal!! 
I agree we don’t need the green bins in the winter. But the 3 week rotation is terrible. I have not heard of any other place in Alberta that only gets 
there garbage picked up every 3 weeks. It’s terrible. Now that the community recycle bins have been taken away how are people supposed to last 
3 weeks. For example if someone buys a new tv, where are they going to put the tv box? Cut it up and put it in your blue bin, sure, then your bin is 
completely full with one item and you now have to wait 3 weeks before you can put anything else in it. Budget needs to be increased for garbage 
and should be picked up at a minimum every 2 weeks.  
3 weeks for garbage pick up is absurd. It smells in the horrendous in the summer months, and for households with more then 3 people its difficult. 
Cancelling the green bin in the winter is a great idea, however the black bin should be picked up instead, not alternating with the blue.   
would like to see more education on what residents are allowed/not allowed to put in each bin, like distributed hardcopy leaflets 
The community green bins are a ugly liability  
The previous survey about collection was done before the community bins were taken. It might be beneficial to do it again. Nobody wants more 
bins to store in their yard.  
Worst water management I’ve ever seen, I can imagine a family being able to comply with the small amount of scheduled servicing supplied.Get 
rid of o net and help your town out where it’s needed  
Very unsatisfactory. Garbage pickup is very 3 weeks is pathetic. It should be like the city where it is garbage one week and then recycling and 
compost the next together on a two week cycle. 
Have garbage picked up more than once a month. This is ridiculous. No other town does this. For how much we pay in taxes, get real.  
We are still paying for green bin removal during the times we no longer have it, replace the days we don’t have green bin with garbage  
As a family of 5 the waste collection is a joke. We spend way to much money on garbage collection for the service we receive. We should be 
getting weekly black and blue bin collection. I visit the didsbury dump minimum of once a month, to take the extras that don’t fit.  
Not everyone is given the same size black bin either. Some fit nearly 2/3 more capacity then the others. How is that fair? Is this the 65 percent of 
the population whom don’t want the collections to change? I know multiple small communities across the country who have these fees included 
into there property tax and also pay less tax, and are given weekly collections. Olds need to step up.  
No additional ideas 

55

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

We need more frequent pickup of the black and blue bins. 
put all green bins in one location. 
bring back the recycle centres so i can feel good about my stuff going to the dump. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

RECYCLING 
Are you willing to pay more to continue a recycling centre in Town? 

Total Responses Yes No N/A 
289 30% 67% 3% 

 

 

57

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

PUBLIC WORKS 
How would you rate the value of these services for your tax dollars? 

Total Responses Above Average Average Below Average 
290 6% 58% 36% 

 

 
 

58

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
I would like to see more maintenance to roads in olds, repaving especially  
No complaints 
no comments unless this pertains to snow clearing of sidewalks and that could be improved as well 
All OK 
No issue 
I have two cars in my family damaged by a couple of the severe pot holes in Olds 
The roads in this town are minimal at best.   Driving through town should be a smooth ride but it's a bump bump bump bump bump bump.  It's 
horrible.   There are fissures and potholes everywhere.  The roads in this town are horrible. 
I walk and there are a lot of sidewalks in need of repair 
Compare to other towns, pretty good 
BLUE BIN / RECYCLING - If there is nowhere to take the blue bin to for recycling, why would we pay more to have the program. Unless Town 
Administration has a viable, consistent user for the blue bin contents, why would we pay more in the likelihood the recycling will end up in landfill 
anyway. If we don't have a viable, consistent and reliable recycling program, let's dump the blue bins and using only the black bins. Then we can 
have a more realistic waste management program. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS - It is amazing that each year, we seem to get farther behind on maintenance. Crosswalk lines should be done yearly if needed as 
this is part of the safety for people crossing the street. I have seen some that have not been done for a few years and it is hard to see that the lines 
are even there. 
Pot hole repair seems to be non-existent at time but I see staff out with the portable filler/sealer, but there are still a lot of holes to go. 
it is an ongoing job that the town is doing a fair job of 
It's fine 
I feel that some of the priorities seem out of kilter. But I am not privy to the planning so perhaps it needs to be that way. I trust the department to 
do what they think is best.  
They're pretty slow at getting to it all but it looks nice once they do.  However I've reported potholes for many weeks now and none of them have 
ever been filled. 
Our streets are a disgusting mess!! Patches over patches over more holes!! I'm ashamed to say I live in olds!!! Where is the machine to fix holes? 
Hire more guys to fill holes instead of painting sidewalks that are all crumbling!!!! Flower pots don't cover the streets sadly.... street painting is 
useless as street sweeping n winter plugging scrape it off, reduce painting. Concentrate on fixing HOLES!!! Pave the street north of the encore 
instead of more gravel constantly!! FIX IT 
When the get done they are good their new pothole patcher works good 

59

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Paint some lines. Fix potholes.  
Street sweeping is not done properly or often enough  
Lots of potholes. We need more sidewalks in newer areas and fixing up sidewalks in older neighborhoods. Road paint could use a touchup 
Good as it is! 
Streets seem to be in average shape, some sidewalks are in need of repair. Overall not bad.  
Very sad state of affairs there... Just like I stated above, who approves this pathetic work that is done? I would be ashamed and fired as well. Why 
don't you demand quality work for the money we pay (talking about pothole repairs)? How about someone accountable checking on the work. 
Street sweeping is another good example; why don't they work as soon as the weather is favorable? There is so much dust in the spring and no 
sweeper in sight. You have then use them, don't wait for a certain time or month (not sure if it works that way, but it sure seems that way). 
some of the streets in Olds are in grave disrepair, potholes making for a terrible ride and hard on car suspension, 
some of the public sidewalks need better maintenance 
They seem to be on the ball 
If the Mayor and council thinks are roads and sidewalks are properly maintained maybe they should get out and see the town they live in 
Average  
I think it is good enough right now.  This issue I have is with the road access to the businesses located close to the Brick store, it's confusing and 
not easy to get to those businesses. 
Roads, pothole fill is critical 
Seriously, you need to ask ! 
With the aging town sidewalks, it would be good for the Council to begin on a 5 year plan and budget for sidewalks and continue to improve the 
town sidewalks. 
The Town is always on it--good work! 
Steaming sewers more 
The traffic circle outside town is useless and need a set of lights at high school corner  
There are way to many potholes and broken roads in this town. 
The repairs to our street this summer really helped with the man hole covers but created a big speed bump too! Our sidewalk has been repaired 
multiple times and it cracked again. Sometimes I wonder if our neighbourhood is sinking! 
Public works is often poorly organized as evidenced by timing of projects.  Sooo many terrible sidewalks :  even though they’re supposed to be 
wheelchair accessible, so many have a sharp  access point or lip and makes it difficult to navigate.  When street/sidewalk lines disappear, seems to 
be a long lapse before they’re redone.  Intersection of 57Ave & 46 St horrible.  It’s just wide enough for motorists to think it’s double lane but 
without clear lines delineating the proper lanes, it’s an accident waiting to happen.  
 
Repaving of 52 St :  we had the best summer ever, why wait so late in the year to commence ?  

60

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Streets need fixing  
Pothole repair is very limited. Street sweeping is a waste- just moves the dust and rocks around- no cleanup happening. 
Painting had been terrible - please paint curbs where parking is not allowed  
Need more street cleaning  
Pothole repair is not done in a timely manner.  There should be a designated team to check for these issues and maintain them asap. 
Potholes here are often quite ridiculous and the town sure takes its sweet time getting to them 
Sidewalk maintenance could be improved; some are in poor repair, especially in the older parts of town. 
Street painting could be a bit better 
Street sweeping happens once a year in my area, after the snow has gone. 
The roads a full of potholes in some areas, which could be a danger to road users. 
Needs improvement  
Crosswalk painting is a yearly job. Why are they painting crosswalks on the first day of school in September. If we stay ahead of maintenance the 
problems on our streets and sidewalks would be looked after. Put a plan in place! Roads in town have deteriorated and are in the worst shape 
they haven been in for years! 
Potholes are awful and take forever to get filled 
Seems like the money is squandered away on beautification projects like flowers instead of actual maintenance. Some areas of town are badly 
neglected.   
Service would be above average if the sidewalk maintenance was better 
Keep on top of potholes. Over all good job. 
Really bad. It can be embarrassing to live in a town in such disrepair.  The sidewalks are in poor shape and street sweeping is such a rare occasion 
that its not possible to enjoy wheeled sports like skateboarding or roller-blading on the streets.  There are still piles of debris from last winter that 
have not been swept up.  A parade or agricultural event will come through and animal droppings are left on the street afterwards for months. It's 
not like this in other towns I visit, not at all.  Street painting seems to take place regularly enough.  Pothole repair seems selective to certain 
neighborhoods while others are neglected entirely.  
The public works department is usually on top of things, however there are some areas that could use new sidewalks, and the truck route could 
use some street lights, as it is very dark at night for pedestrians....criminals count on having poorly lit areas as well. 
Fix the problems correctly the first time!! Just patching causes more cost in the end with more repairs needed. Waste of time and dollars. It sure 
should not take so many people to “pot holes” too many stand around doing nothing.   Wasting tax payers money 
Pothole repairs in the town are terrible. The condition of the roads are terrible. 56A street Close has been a disaster for a long time. There has 
been sidewalk repairs around the area but they leave the potholes or the ramp going to the road from the alley for example.  
I have reported our side walk is broken for 8 years. People from the town have looked - yet its still broken! 8 years! 
Takes a long time waiting for repair... 

61

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

There are town sidewalks that have not been maintained at all. There is a section along highway 27 that is covered in gravel from the winter ice 
mismanagement and was never swept all summer!  
Repair to roads should not be done near schools at peak times  
Potholes street cleaning and snow plowing is not great  
The pot hole repair finally picked up and the end of the summer. Street painting is good, only complaint is they decided to do the line by the deer 
meadow school on the day that school. Poor planning once again.  
Don’t paint crosswalks during school pick up and drop off times 
The town was painting a cross walk right by deer meadow on the first day of school during drop off, could have been done any other day 
You're doing the best you can! 
All are lacking and need repair  
no opinion 
Street sweeping just blows the dirt around since they do it dry 
Better enforcement of tree and hedge trimming on sidewalks and at street corners for traffic vision is needed. Some places you can't even walk 
down the sidewalk and some intersections you have to pull into street to see if pedestrians or cars coming.  
I am happy with progress and prioritization.  
Back to the question of paying more for recycling please. Will Olds taxpayers pay less taxes now that that service no longer exists? 
Very poorly looked after , I am a senior with a walker and some side walks have no where to come off with out have to lift the walker up ! Or the 
gutters are too deep and you have to push it up !  

 
I have had 2 flat tires due to the huge 1foot deep potholes on my street. Instead of filling them maybe resurface the road. I have been here 17 yrs 
and just being filled is not enough it seriously needs resurfacing and the manhole and catch basin need service also 
When in 10 yrs has any of the potholes been repaired properly. I highly suggest following the town Facebook pages where residence chat about 
this on going issue among other things 
Better monitoring of streets that need repaired  
street sweeping is great but pot hole repair needs improvement 
Roads are garbage. 
It’s ok 
My experience is the town does well in this area. The provincial roads (2A and 27) not as well maintained.  
The streets are horrible and littered with potholes. Sure they fix a few each summer but beside one they fix there’s 2 more that need fixed that 
are left. Roads are rough and a disgrace to the community. Either build better smoother roads to begin with or commit to fixing them completely 
and properly.  
All good.  

62

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Put stupid speed bumps right before a stop sign but not a road that has high traffic while kids are playing… 
All good 
It's fine 
They seem to miss every single pot hole on the road and the bad roads stay there for years. The boys spend 3 or 4 days patching the road when a 
paving crew could re do an entire intersection in two days. Does not seem well thought out.  
Some big potholes that were not fixed in a timely manner this spring.   
I don’t have any 
This department is and has been chronically underfunded for so long that we will all be shocked to see how much it will cost to just play catch up. 
The walking path on winter going to the tree reserve is an accident and injury waiting to happen. With small children and seniors predominantly 
making up the foot traffic. Instead of repairing the steep hill, more random asphalt was sprinkled on it making it more uneven. I fear someone is 
going to be injured there.  
The potholes in this town is unacceptable 
Spent more on the building they just built then on keeping the roads and sidewalks in proper repair.  
It has been nice to see the new pothole repair machine working great so far 
Roads are not kept up as they should be. Patches don’t always last.  
Fair  
Potholes are not being repaired well. Curbs in our neighbourhood are all destroyed from poorly trained, shoddy snow flowing - scraped, gouged - 
destroyed and getting worse each year. The cost to replace these destroyed curbs (in our case, the Highlands neighbourhood) will be immense. 
More pothole repair - but also the holes currently repaired are not being done effectively and return same season to need repairing again. More 
training obviously needed for those doing the repairs.  
Pavement patching does not provide a consistent  surface. Street sweeping without water causes dust in residences that increases resident 
cleanup costs. 
The new hwy 2 round about in a real danger to cyclists travelling through the round about.  The bike lanes do not go through the intersection 
forcing the cyclists into traffic. Needs a bike path around each side of the round about 
Again, the survey question is unclear. Did the Town consult with an expert in making this survey, as I am doubtful. The average resident is not 
going to know and shouldn't be expected to know the cost of each of these services in comparison to the budget. I.e. the value of these services. 
You should have asked if we are satisfied with the services as presented. Then ask, would you pay more/less with an explanation for the change. 
My only suggestion  for 53rd Street, please do the street sweeping before 7:30 am or after 4pm, to avoid the additional parked cars from the 
school staff parking on the street. The residents abide by removing their cars off the road, but then the school staff ignore the signs and park on 
the street. 
There are a lot of pot holes that seem to sit for a long time. Also, a lot of the alley ways in the uptowne are in dire need of resurfacing.  
My only complaint is regarding icy sidewalks in the winter. 

63

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

They maintain the streets and sidewalks. Drainage of excess water is a problem in many areas of town with household sumps having to run a lot. 
there needs to be provision of extra drains in streets with the expectation that household sumps are run towards the street. Too many people are 
running sump lines into common green spaces increasing the water level in several areas of town. 
there are still some major holes to work on in town  don't understand when they are on one street why don't they hit them up at the same time - 
at least 3 that i know of they come back two and three times to finish the job.  
From the outside looking in sometimes appears that there are alot of crew members doing a simple job and more training should be given to 
younger crews doing road work as to how to direct traffic and effectively use pylons when working. Perhaps more seasoned members could teach 
the younger ones... 
Fix our damn roads, the are absolutely horrible and its inexcusable  
Pothole repair and street painting seemed to have been subpar this calendar year.  Lots of deep cracks and missing painted lines.  There are also 
some intersections or roads that could do with painted lines to better inform traffic patterns. 
I think the town does a good job.  
Too many potholes 
Majority of tre streets in town are in serious need of repair. Too many potholes/bad roads.  
I know that it takes time to repair potholes and sidewalks, but in the 6 years I have lived here I have never actually seen a pothole repaired. 
I walk all the time many sidewalks are a hazard especially in the winter when snow hides uneven blocks. 
Not sure who maintains the sidewalk in front of ecole olds elementary but it is so pitted that kids trip on it and fall often. 
Many roads need pot hole repair, and some repaving is necessary.  How does the town plan to manage ensuring we maintain infrastructure 
without gouging tax payers.  
which pot hole repair? Crew for 5 days on the same patch has nothing to do with productivity 
Adequate  
Please maintain frost heaves and huge ruts in back alleys.  
Not quick enough on pothole repair. As with snow clearing, better notification needs to be given so that people can relocate their vehicles. 
Uptowne gets no notice, typically. 
Filled potholes turn into bumps, some residential roads in poor shape. 
need to do all the streets including our close 
Street sweeping only needs to be done once a year. Pot holes are filled but don't seem to be checked to see if they hold up and water sits in them 
Seems average, as stated above 
low service level 
I have been calling in for the last three years to get a storm drain in front of my house fixed.  The grate is only half there...still waiting. 
Too many sidewalks and roads in need of repair in Olds 

64

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Streets always full of gravel  
Lots of potholes in town  
More concerned about rainbow crosswalks than pothole repair  
I have been a resident of Olds for 19 years, and our roads and sidewalks are the worst I’ve seen them. I also need to not that the lack of accessible 
sidewalks along hwy 2A (along Olds College) is unsafe and for persons in wheelchairs and scooters and this is a safety concern. My teenage son is 
ina wheelchair and cannot safely access the sidewalk and if forced to remain on the busy highway. Accessibility needs to be looked at in order it 
Community  
Seems fine so far  
None, good job Actually the transition from county to town seems to be a issue north of the hospital and north of John Deere  
Potholes in roads for months on end before a half assed patch job is done. Roads end up super uneven and ugly.  
On the Smitty’s road, they came back 3 times to do repairs rather than just completing them all at once - that is when they finally got around to it.  
Driving in Olds is like Super Mario - swerve and curve! 
I'm sure they are doing the best they can with the money we have given through taxes.....................NOT!!! 
Ensure painted crosswalks in visible areas. Street sweeping on common routes for bikes (ie up 54th to high school) 
The pothole repair is terrible. I’m not even sure that happens.  
The amount of pot holes over the past year under this new administration is staggering. We need this problem rectified immediately  
Our roads have  never been in such poor shape, 50 Street from 57 Ave to 50 Ave needs major work  
Usually they are on top of their jobs and keep their end running smoothly.  
Paths in some areas are heaved and never get fixed. The fancy new pot hole filler sure isn't filling too many around town (consistelty 54st by the 
tracks is brutal 
Potholes are a concern for smaller cars.  
Public street snow removal was awful last winter and had many problems with . But everything else has been good 
Drive or walk around town and look for yourself there seems to be lots of town trucks driving around all the time and they don’t make a note of 
what they see 
Lived in town for 18 yrs . Only 1 piece of sidewalk in area been replaced.  Same as where I work. Crosswalk hasn't been painted in 3yrs.  
We are falling behind on road maintenance. Street sweeping was extremely late this year. 
I am thankful that Olds makes line painting, crosswalk clarity, parking lines at the elementary school etc a priority! Nothing makes a town feel 
dumpy like worn-down crosswalks, poor signage, busted up streets etc. I would like to see however, priority given to the painting at the schools... 
the center lines on 53rd in front of OES, etc.  
The roads are terrible, on Hawthorn the man hole is to far down the road, at one house every year in the spring you see water piled up they can't 
even walk of there walkway and operation do nothing 
It is fine 

65

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Street painting is sorely lacking in MANY parts of this town 
I think they do okay. There’s always pot holes, but your never going to get them all fixed.  
well done 
More focus on repairing streets and sidewalks 
Strive around you’ll figure it out 
Large pot holes are not fixed in a quick and timely manner  
Streets are average.  
It seems one has to "pull teeth" to get any action on sidewalk repair. Street sweeping needs improvement, that being in supervision and operator 
performance, street painting is very poor. 
It’s fine  
The streets are a mess.  Report a pothole?  How about staff taking a drive and they will quickly see problem areas themselves.  Sidewalk 
maintenance?  How about sidewalk installation, once again in east Olds. 
They focus too much on painting the curbs rather than painting lines on the road to clearly define where the lanes are 
The sidewalk replacement program seems to have no rhyme or reason.  
Is it make work for Olds Concrete? 
Streets are good. Sidewalks probably need more attention. 
i don't want to pay more, but want more services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
Have you used the Planning and Development department in the last 2 years? 

Total Responses Yes No 
290 15% 85% 

 

 
 

 

67

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
Improving. 
No issue 
Planning is a joke without enforcment, it's better to build illegally in olds then get a permit 
My building permit process went smoothly, the inspector was decent to work with when he came by to check the work done. 
Haven't used 
You want to much money for everything. Like how many permits do u really need. Another money grab for the most part.  
More public input required  
No interactions with them 
Thorough and professional, doing a good job. 
Do you follow up on open permits? I have a building permit next to me that next seems to close  
The process is confusing. We added a driveway/parking pad. It should say somewhere obvious that unless you’re paving you don’t need to do the 
paperwork.  
Quit building houses we need affordable housing apartments  
Two of the busiest crosswalks- the college and 54st and the elementary school and 54dt continue to go unpatrolled (both need lights!) While 
others, far less busy, get signs and lights  Foolish 
I would love to see higher-density and multi-use zoning come to Olds. These environments, by design, reduce both noise and pollution and 
improve many aspects of the sense of community. 
Please plan for more afforadable housing. Townhouses, small single family homes. (Similar to the size of wartime housing (850-1000sqft) 
It’s a pain, and not small business user friendly or focused at all. So much red tape and yet office personnel isn’t friendly and no party wants to tell 
u what is expected and what is required. 

Continue with trails and parks and keep recreational facilities in one place off of connector routes. Put a future development plan in place! 
Seems good. 
None. I haven't used these services 
Would like to see playground zones implemented in my area (Rotary Park) as well as more speed bumps and enforcement. Lots of pedestrians and 
children present with speeding vehicles. 
Don't have any comments 
I hope the planning and development department will look into more seniors buildings and at a reasonable price ! When you are on a fixed budget 
it is hard ! We need some places that supply lodging and meals . 

68

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

  
. Had to get permits for a garage in  our backyard  

. Policies 
are grey so they can approve on a "who you know" basis. So many hoops to jump through to make improvements on our property. Improvements 
that the town can tax and benefit from so bit of a joke that they have no idea what's going on to approve permits but can figure out the amount to 
tax you once things are done.  
Parks are looking good. 
Effective department  
Put the money into fixing the roads in town 
Good development of uptowne area  
They seem to be doing a satisfactory job. 
Planning to increase rules surrounding land use and permits is really offensive to people who have strived for decades to buy their properties. 
When you own a property it should be yours to do with as you see fit, "within reason". We saw during covid that, "within reason" is very 
subjective. Planning and development needs to maintain the goals and values of the town and not only the financial outcomes. My frustration 
over the zoning changes from low density to medium density was rather high. The federal government has made decisions regarding immigration 
that WILL NOT be solved by small towns. We need to grow and build accordingly but the infrastructure needed to support this growth has to be 
held in consideration. It is irresponsible and hurtful to invite 25 guests to dinner at your house and have only the chairs, place settings and food 
for 10...Planning and development must have balance...Our water, medical, education, police services, supply chain etc... must all be looked at 
and held in delicate balance with growth. 
Less red tape, more building 
They were very easy to work with. 
Helpful when engaged. Not happy with amount of time it took to have applications reviewed.  
Had inquiry but, No one called back. 
never get the same answer twice  
Better enforcement of permits and compliances. update MDP. 
Planning and Development team is always helpful.    
Figure out affordable housing for the generation that youll need in order for olds not to become a ghost town. 0 housing for young folks with pets. 
Just tons of seniors housing.  
Make it easier to fill out forms online! 
If there was less red tape on these areas, money could be used elsewhere.  
Planning department has been very quick to respond and the front staff are very good at providing assistance 
Rules seem to be to strict. There’s no need for it.  

69

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMUNITY SERVICES 
Would you recommend changing the funding for this service? 

Total Responses Increase Keep the Same Decrease 
289 25% 64% 11% 

 

 
 

70

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
Unsure  
Work with service organizations for maintenance and support. 
every established park in olds has trees in dire need of maintenance. 
Olds sportsplex could use some repairs and updates.  
All good 
no comment 
Some trails need pavement repair or replace. Rotary Park needs more trees planted to provide windbreak. Overall good. 
The Town has done a great job with the renovating the ball diamonds - many family friends who have come to town for ball tournaments have 
commented on the quality maintenance of the fields, the shelters for the outhouses, and the appealing aesthetic that the renovations provided. It 
would be nice to see these improvements carried out in other aspects of the town as well, such as at the dog park, which may benefit from new 
benches, outhouses with shelters, and landscaping to include an aquatic aspect for the dogs.  
Need preventative and proactive efforts to create affordable housing. Not enough space in town for those on a limited/fixed income.  
Olds has a good variety and many community events, especially Canada Day.  The events are organized, well run and cater to all in the community.  
I attend most events and don't have children.  
Too many flowers 
Love the development of rotary park 
Move your Octoberfest music indoors. The music is so loud that I cannot keep my door open or go to bed before 11 because of the loud 
obnoxious music coming from the grounds and this is with me living by the hospital.. There are noise bylaws for everyone but the town.  
The indoor sports facility should start indoor tennis during the winter. We can only play outdoor tennis during the Spring and Summer months. 
It would be easy to setup tennis, since there is already pickle ball. 
The splash park, and the skate park seem to be working well.  I'm not aware of other services. 
Movies in the park are fun for the kids but lots of bugs.More traffic control at fireworks 
No comment as I don't use a lot of the services aside from the walking trails. There are some trails that are starting to show their age with tree 
roots coming up that make the surfaces dangerous with trip hazards. 
Town provides enough in this area 
Still not enough ball diamonds.  Arena is not easily accessible for parents woth strollers, special needs , etc.   
I would approve more funding if it went directly to the community. More resources for mental health, more helping the homeless, more help for 
the average person.  
I think too much is being spent in these areas. 

71

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

How much is spent on social programming, n special events,?? 
The splash park seems to be a issue every year maybe u should maintain those water lines better.  
I dont know. I dont play sports.   
More childcare after-school/summer programming options 
Outdoor bike jump park 
Add security features at skatepark like lighting at night 
Public art like murals to beautify Main Street 
Indigenous celebration event and more opportunities to learn about  Indigenous peoples history in the area, and promote reconciliation 
Services and programming to increase inclusion of immigrants into our community  
Trails are great. 
Community services seem to be good 
Trails are good, keep that up. Special events we find out about after they are over. How about advertising that something is happening well 
before? We always seem to read about what was, not what is coming... 
All the outdoor sport field seem to have very little use. The skating rink was a good idea, that one is always used. 
Some of the planted tree areas at the Rotary Park are in bad shape. Money was spent to plant the areas with trees and shrubs, perhaps more 
attention to the maintenance is needed.  Too amny weeds, etc! 
Love all the trails. I appreciate that snow removal is attended to on the trails 
All are working well 
We are lacking in Preventative Social Programming.  We need a central place for our people to turn too, for example Olds Neighbourhood Place. 
what is community development and preventative social programming 
Some need more attention to maintenance, very happy otherwise. 
Doing well 
More trails and events for the general public. Love the get togethers ! 
All is most excellent. 
All good 
Extension of trail system and creation of urban forest areas as we do not have many naturally occurring. Enhanced services to sports fields 
(baseball diamonds in particular). In other municipalities town staff prepare ball diamonds for users. In olds this is passed off to volunteers who do 
not have the expertise or equipment to safely and effectively do this. The condition of OR Hedges is in disrepair and needs attention both in terms 
of the diamonds as well as parking, seating areas, etc. It would also be much to see contracts awarded to individuals who would run the 
concession at Rotary over the summer for those attending baseball games. 
Love all the walking trails  
Portapotties along imperial trail and by Rotary Park are excellent, as are thé benches .   

72

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Need more parking at centennial park  
okay 
Blocking in an entire community for cow crossings is irresponsible. The Ag Society is not paying taxes afterall 
We need another or improved ice arena in this town. Kids can’t get ice time as it is and families have to go to neighbouring towns for hockey 
practices  
Trails are well used 
Love the snow clearing on the trails.  
We need a public recreational facility  
Well, it would be nice to have a better usable football field year round instead of more soccer fields and baseball diamonds  
We need more entertaining things to do in Olds! 
I don't use any of the sports oriented events, so they don't concern me. 
I do however, hate when I go for a walk on the walking trails, that the paths are littered with dog excrement and many areas of town are littered 
with rubbish. 
It’s decent 
Comments above under Planning and Development. Rec facilities should not be located on thoroughfares with no parking. Put a plan in place! 
Great that trails are cleared of snow  
Seems to be working. 
Plant more trees. We are losing the older growth trees all over town and nothing is being done to replace them. 
More walking paths and green areas 
Make sure the soccer fields are just as well kept as the baseball diamonds. No discrimination on sports being played in the community. Soccer is 
just as important for kids to be involved in as baseball.  
The only thing that comes to mind is the Olds Splash Park.  It seems that it is not always working, and it is a shame that there are not many shaded 
areas for parents to sit (close so they can keep an eye on their children)  Perhaps there could be a few more shady spots and a few more picnic 
tables for sitting.  I have seen a few seniors trying to find a spot to comfortably sit, and they end up going back to their car, because of lack of 
benches and shady spots.   
In door training center for all sports.  
I think the parks are well looked after 
The hockey rink! It is embarrassing to have so many people come to this town! 
Good 
Outdoor dirt bike to use  and expand on the pool 
Improve off leash dog enforcement  

73

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

We need a new facility with more rinks. There isn’t enough ice for the population of the town.  
I love the walking /cycling trails in the town. My grandchildren enjoy the parks 
Making Olds a more walkable town would be nice. 
no opinion 
The arena needs a major upgrade  
Seems ok to me 
Can’t use them as the ball groups think they own them my tax dollars funded them  
None of it works in my opinion and is a complete waste of money just so teens have an opportunity to vandalize further 
An indoor/outdoor pool for the teens to use. Skate park expansion for the teens. Not all parents can afford hockey, dance or gymnastics  
Make them more affordable to use 
Hot water on weeds is not working parks are too weedy 
Make sure the trails are cleared of snow as more of a priority  
The Town needs more indoor floor space..... 
I’d like more kid’s activities  
We need a field house  
Don’t waste money on dumb art.  
All good. Love all of the community involvement.  
Ensure it is available for all 
More updated playgrounds for children. That are more challenging but suitable for younger kids. A playground by the splash park would be 
amazing. 
Maintain the areas we have and stop increases more areas while reducing the maintenance of the existing areas.  
No comment 
Unless we are willing to pay for the good upkeep of the properties we own we need to stop building things.  Parks are great but if we can't or are 
unwilling to spend the money to maintain them, then close some.  And stop diverting funds from needed infrastructure repairs to prettify the 
Town. 
Walking path on winter entering the tree reserve is in desperate need of repair. Aside from that the services are great!!  
Wish they never built that HOCKEY skating rink in the park, it was a beautiful open place for kids to play.  Now its just an eye sore  
It good 
OR baseball diamonds are under utilized. Revenue could be generated by usong the diamonds for more events or tournaments and a concession 
could be a financial asset 

74

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

No comment  
Working well  
Making bike/ walking trails that connect, not end in a dead end area. Also increase signage on the walking trails for people less familiar with the 
areas. We got lost multiple times when we moved here because there is no signage to identify where you are or where you’re going (specifically 
Highland areas)  
Please connect the gaps in the bike / walking path trail system. There are areas where we need to bike or walk across grass or down busy streets 
to get from one area of pathway to the next. Connect the city. There is also no safe way to bike from the west side of town to uptown or the Olds 
College. 
Connect the paths/trails across town. 
Early spring clean-up of the walking trails needs to be improved.  Removal of stone placed on hills, corners, etc before someone is injured in a fall 
caused by stone.  I would expect the the trails are inspected by parks and rec before a know activity takes place. 
I recommend the addition of a rink marshall on the ice during the public skate sessions. Other communities do this, as it helps to enforce the rules 
of no sticks and pucks  as well as assist with keeping people safe on the ice. 
More trails and park development  
More trails. How about linking Olds and Didsbury with a walking/biking trail 
This is a very valuable service. I feel that having special events and programs available makes the community a valuable place to live! If the 
department feels they need more money to maintain the same level of service, then it should be a priority. However, I am satisfied with what they 
are doing, so I chose keep the same.  
The rotary fields was a good addition to our town 
I would like to see some of the resources reallocated to public transportation. There are many people needing access to a public system that has 
regular routes and that could accommodate people of all ages who may not have transportation. Also it is recognized that Olds has a  significant 
plus 65 population and more planning needs to go towards this demographic. For example most seniors want to remain in their homes for as long 
as possible and would benefit from access to supports to enable them to be in their own homes.This includes transportation. 
No comments 
like the use of all of them as they are no problems with any of them  
Most are working well. Trails are great. 
We do need more preventative programing. 
To ask questions about funding any of the services the town provides assumes one knows the budget and how it is be managed... it is hard to say, 
"Yes, spend more in this area.", if one has no idea how much is being spent and whether the peoples in charge are good at managing their budgets  
They need to make more effort to keep the drug dealers away from the skate park  
More advanced notice of events, surveys, etc. are needed (first found out about this survey in the paper today (29th), halfway through the survey 
period). 
I enjoy the community events and the parks are well maintained. 

75

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Invest in lights for bight soccer and water soccer fields at rotary park 
No comment  
The town does an excellent job maintaining. 
More trails would be nice. 
It is hard to answer these questions as the amount of spend is not sufficiently disclosed so to understand what an increase or decrease in funding 
would impact.  
Please, mow and trim to the fence lines along pathways like you used to do.  
Further development of the trail system in town to interconnect our green spaces. Poor decisions we’re made when designing the outdoor rink. A 
full sized sheet of ice was not necessary and is rarely used as intended. A more practical design would have been a smaller sheet with boards for 
shinny, and a family skating area for younger children.  
Post- Pandemic, some seniors need to be encouraged to get out and be more engaged with their community for their own quality of life. Can a 
service club engage them by in person contact and encouragement to be community minded? 
Mowing more often and better weed control. Main road (hyw27) still does not look very attractive, needs proper trees! 
ok 
Snow plowing of trails!!! Also instruct staff on how to salt and sand. It is a waste of time to send someone to salt or sand if it is not done to do any 
good and does nothing to improve the safety of walkers. Also do proper maintenance on snow removal equipment as whenever we get a dump of 
snow or it is cold equipment problem is the excuse why snow removal is not done. This creates a safety issue. 
Vast improvement in 2023. They need more funding for parks infrastructure. Less special events and social program.  
Playground structure needs to be added to centennial park 
Very unhappy about the proposed expansion of pathways right behind our house on Duncan Place! One of the key concepts that came out of the 
Reserve committee several years ago was that residents bordering on existing homes on the Reserve wanted to avoid paths right next to their 
homes… or have a tree buffer between paths and their homes. Most homes have a tree buffer but we will not! (We were originally told by the 
developer and town that the Reserve would be left natural and never be made into a park.) We are concerned about noise, lack of privacy, 
vandalism, dog messes, and decreased home values because of a nearby path. Residents in the Highlands knew when they bought their homes 
that there may be paths next to their homes, the rest of us around the Reserve did not!   
The pool should not have needed a renovation of half of it's original cost after only 20 years. There are many towns with older pools that have not 
wasted this amount of money. 
Love all the community events.  
The weeds along the walking paths are the worst I’ve seen then this year.  I’ve only seen staff out once this summer in my area actually weeding 
the flower beds.   
More connectivity for walking trails.    
Figure out ways to cut costs to recuse taxes  
I would love to see a trail specific for bikes!  I would like to see an FCSS advisory board be reinstated.  

76

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

We need outdoor tennis courts and basketball courts.  The little kid ones at the middle school don’t count.   
Seems fine to me  
No comments 
More focus on community rinks. 
I order to attract young families and tournaments that will bring revenue into the community we need more robust centres.  Decent 
football/lacrosse field - better arena - a Collicut type Center where everything is all in one building and can be used year round 
Tennis Courts in town are falling apart!  We have to travel to Innisfail to play!  We pay them $20 per year for a membership!  With Tennis 
increasing in popularity, I think you should look at maybe resurfacing them and charging a fee to play, just like Innisfail! 
Trails and bike paths should be a priority. Sports fields are well 
Maintained, preventative programming is important.  
The trails are awesome although some non-paved mountain biking trails would be nice like what Sundre has. More programming for teenagers is 
essential to keep them busy and off the streets!  Other communities in the area have youth centres and events that provide more things for 
teenagers to do.  
Better landscaping maintenance  
Once again this area should have been broken down further when it comes to questions. Exactly what do the people at Community Social 
programming do besides hosting hotdogs in the park for a few residents 
Nothing currently  
Would like to see more trails 
Love all of the trails/running paths in town. It would be amazing to see the town host a fun run (5km/10km) celebrating them!  
Parks and trails are greatly appreciated, as are our sportsfields. Olds only hosts two major events that are run by volunteer groups. Perhaps more 
of the budget should be spent on actual community programming and we wouldn’t need ‘preventative’ social programming. 
I feel the Town does a great job. There's ample trash cans, and they are changed often. The special events are done well, and attract crowds from 
other towns.  
Need to have a facility with more to do for kids and families 
I like the paved paths and would like more 
Town must pay more attention to Hartman green.  There is grass not being cut weekly, there are at least 6 dead trees that need removal, large 
Lilac bush is dead, trees planted last year are not being watered, garbage cans left till full, Porta potty looks like it's not been maintained all year.  
And that's just ONE park!  It's shameful how our greenspaces are treated by the town.  They're alot more important that rock statues and planters 
all over hwy 27! 
Trails in town are great.  
I think it's great there are garbage cans and doggie poop bags available.  
The leaves that accumulate against the fence at ball diamonds- such as imperial diamonds- should be cleaned up before the season starts.  
The town seemed to take very good care of diamonds this year, they looked great!!  

77

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

our family applauds the hard work of community services immensely 
We need a new arena the old one doesn't work well anymore. 
Rotary park wasn't very well thought out. The one bathroom is located too far away from all the ball diamonds. Not great for disabled people who 
need a bathroom not an outhouse. 
More for families  
Grass cutting needs to be addressed, there is poor or little training on this topic, the supervision needs to be addressed. 
too much is being spent on social event s(block parties, etc) when these funds could be better spent elsewhere 
Unsure  
the maintenance of parks needs to be improved. 
More trails in town. Connect the imperial trail to rotary park and highlands trail to highlands pond at Duncan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

78

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

PARKS 
How would you rate the maintenance of our parks (ball diamonds, playgrounds, boulevards, etc.)? 

Total Responses Above Average Average Below Average 
287 20% 69% 11% 

 

 
 

79

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
The image of the town is diminished with less maintenance. Consider the consequences. 
Keep as is. Focus on high priority areas. 
New Outdoor Rink and pickleball courts have been a lot of fun for me and my family! Love the pond rinks as well and appreciate the maintenance 
that goes into their upkeep 
Love the maintenance of our parks  
In the past year I have noticed our parks etc have too many weeds.  
would like to see green spaces mowed once a week again 
The green space in behind us needs to be mowed more than every two weeks in the summer to keept down the number of dandelions that blow 
into our yards 
It would be good to have a regular pesticide program to reduce the dandelions. At one point, Frank Wong park this summer was yellow. The 
dandelions then spread into our yards and we have to deal with them. 
It is important to maintain ball diamonds and sports facilities if you plan to host regional and provincial activities.  These activities bring in more 
money than the public realizes 
Rotary diamonds are in awful shape.  Kids get hurt because there is no shale.  Its like concrete  
Our Town keeps looking more and more neglected and rubby dub by not cutting the grass keeping weeds down keeping the streets swept 
They seem fine to me 
I dont play sports.  
It's pretty good  
Parks are in good shape.  
I feel the mowing is done adequately, people need to be more diligent in keeping their 1 foot borders clean where the town has stated are the 
resposibility of the property owners. 
Love the parks  
Too much money is being wasted on cement "statues" on the north side of Hwy 27 across from Home Hardware and also on too many flower pots 
than are needed.  Get rid of statues and have fewer flower pots to maintain, to save money and would look just as nice. 
Well looked after 
The parks always appear to be well maintained and relatively litter-free. 
No issues with these 
Baseball diamonds need to be maintained and prepared for each use by town staff. Relying on inexperienced volunteers without proper 
equipment or training to do this work is a concern in terms of both safety and field quality. 

80

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Need to pick up the grass after mowing instead of leaving it behind. Looks terrible  
Did not use these areas. 
We did notice the grass was not as well maintained this year but we are happy the town is trying to cut costs. 
Ball field maintenance has been subpar  
I don’t use them. No idea 
Again, just to drive the point home.... football fields 
They are a good use of tax dollars 
I think the parks in town are very well maintained. 
We have never experienced windrows that need baling in our parks prior to 2023 unless in a wet year circumstance.  
Do not use, but parks are good 
Good 
Greenspace maintenance appears to be adequate 
Any and all parks really need to have either washrooms or a port a potty available.  It SHOULD be a standard when parks are built.  Children and 
adults alike need a place to use the washroom.  Especially children that are potty training. 
Olds looks beautiful along 27 in the summer. 
Definitely noticed a lack of mowing and weed removal in parks this year. 
I didn't notice a issue with the difference in the mowing , the grass cutting is fine 
I do not have any comments 
All seems good. 
Need to mow every week for the first 2 months of summer especially when it rains a lot 
Good by me 
Just drive drown highway 27 and look left , right and centre. Weeds, weeds and more of the same. 

  
I didn't use these fields so Not real sure how well they are kept up 
I would like to see more walk ways that are not pavement.  Thats all we have in this town except one 700m strip.  Not everyone wants to be in a 
cement town.  Plus its terrible for those who walk or run daily its bad for animals.  We need more green spaces thats not paved.  IF we want pave 
we will walk on the rd.   
Rotary diamonds need more attention. July was an improvement. They should be watered often and more shale 
A playground at the splash park would be amazing and a new playground at the the "Deer poop park" would be great, maybe even fenced in 
because right now it's covered in deer poop... The whole field and sand in the playground, it's disgusting. 

81

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

The boulevard in the vistas has never looked worse. It’s full of weeds and the grass along the sidewalk is full of weeds and looks terrible. I didn’t 
know there was a budget cut but reading the above, it’s super obvious now.  
Too many to maintain properly  
Weeds need to be managed better in the gardens on the paths a lot of large prickles which pose risk to the small children learning to bike. Winter 
lake is in desperate need of weed removal. Looks awful.  
Working well 
Well maintained  
Pull or spray weeds in the tree pods along pathways. 
Connect the trails and pull weeds from town planted tree pods along all pathways. Spray for weeds earlier in year and again if needed.  
Was the new outdoor arena really a good investment. 
Flower pots along 27 really do nothing for the Community, 
As the Town continues to add parks and green spaces, it should be expected that the cost of maintenance increases. I support an increase to my 
taxes for this service. 
I feel like more should be invested in things that don't need ongoing maintenance. Trees along boulevards instead of planters, for example.  
It would be beneficial to have a tree planting succession plan. 
doesn't hurt the grass to be a bit longer when it is so hot 
Could be less frequent honestly  
They are well maintained overall.  
Trees need to be better maintained  
Again - what is the current plan for mowing?  How about irrigation?  How does it get adjusted when it's wet and grass is growing more quickly, 
versus when it is dry and grass is not growing fast.  

  
Adequate 
Good job! 
Pathways not mowed enough. 
cutting a small stretch from 57 ave close to playground entrance that would take less than 5 minutes. why lift you blades and still drive over it 
Cut back on the flowers its to many and some never have the weeds pulled around them and they are more of an eyesore to the community  
Seems things have improved in 2023, keep invested in parks budgets.  
Happy with the mowing schedule in our area and around town… but not sure why the town cut the tall grass in parts of the Reserve. It looks 
unsightly, decreases habitat for wildlife and may increase the risk of fire because those areas are now more dry.  
There’s always room for improvement.   

82

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Don't use so cannot answer 
Summer staff work hard to keep town looking nice  
The parks are always well maintained  
Quit putting flower beds on highway 27. The weeds below in the cracks of the boulevard take away from anything your trying to accomplish, 
watching town employees maintaining them daily by weeding or watering is more then frustrating to watch and same with the statues on 
highway 27.  
Giant field in town behind DQ always overgrown.  
I don’t mind they let it grow as long as the weeds are sprayed  
I don’t mind less mowing. Sundre got goats. Can we get goats? 
Didn’t see any difference in 2023 to prior years.  
All playgrounds should have at least a port a potty available  
The shrub beds are in terrible condition 
The grass doesn't get mown short enough in the first place then have to wait 2 weeks for it to get cut again (balsam Cres park)  
Town staff seem to spend more time driving to and from town shop then they do mowing  
The staffing needs more supervision to get more production 
Our parks used to be pristine. I agree wholeheartedly that the sports facilities need to be kept in tip top shape but that should not be to the 
detriment of all other green spaces. 
I'd like to see weeds sprayed more, like the ones on the hwy 27 boulevard. They're unsightly to out-of-towners on a main through-road in town. I 
think litter clean-up is done well. Thank you!  
I think whoever runs a program at the green fields they should have access to a lawn mower to mower, volunteer can help it cuts cost and the 
money can go else where 
No issues 
Grass must be mowed weekly!  You have the same staff level, same equipment.  I'm sure town staff and council mow their lawns once per week!  
Sure don't leave it long enough to create large clumps of grass on their lawns.  Kills the grass and gives mosquitoes someplace to live!  Also, it 
looks unkempt.   Weekly mowing is a must!!  This is not an area to reduce funding! 
More weed spraying is required. The weeds go into seed and then they make there way onto my lawn.  
They are amazing in this town 
The mowing of these areas for example needs to be done on a "carried out as required" not on a regular scheduled time, I've seen mowing being 
done in the rain at high speed. 
Parks are well maintained  
Excellent job cleaning snow from park walking paths! 

83

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

The parks and green spaces looked terrible this year. 
New ball diamonds need to fix drainage. Soccer fields at rotary need more care and attention. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

84

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

SPECIAL EVENTS 
Which Town led or supported events did you attend in 2022/2023? Check all that apply. 

 

85

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
Sharing info with Uptowne businesses.  We are not all a part of Uptowne association. Email would be great if there was a place to sign up when 
you get your business license  
Moved to town just over a year ago and really enjoy the July 1 fireworks. 
So glad Olds puts on free special events and does such a good job 
The events are always well run, organized and good for all residents.  
As stated before enforce noise bylaw on October fest.Move the music inside and close the doors. I usually hope for rain on your Octoberfest so I 
can enjoy the evening with door or windows open and able to go to bed by 11 
I’m new to town and I did not know about the events 
Why is Octoberfest allowed to be loud enough to disturb our TV and sleep well after 11:00 pm 
The Canada Day fireworks were amazing, thank you for keeping the budget to allow this. 
They are important to keep the community united 
More fireworks 
I am just not a joiner and I don’t do well in crowds. My favourite event was Canada Day where you had to stay in your car, lol.  
They do a great job on all the events though!! 
Music with fiddlers in evergreen center. Finally something that seniors totally enjoyed!!!!!!! More programs or events for seniors at Canada day 
etc, Instead of everything for kids 
Its always a good idea to invest extra in the firework displays 
Timing doesn't work great with our busy family schedule, we don't keep up with upcoming event scheduling or are out of town in the summer 
weekends to enjoy outdoor activities not available in town  
Somehow let us know what is coming. 
Love them. Thanks for putting such a great effort into parades and fireworks 
Home Church Block Parties 
none of the above 
I didn't attend the Park Parties but think this is an excellent type of event.  I have been a volunteer at past Canada Day events.  I know seniors who 
live in the lodge and think the parades should still go past the lodge so they can watch. 
I didn’t attend any this year 
Park parties are great !  You missed the east side of the tracks this year I think ! 
The music is TOO LOUD at some of these events.  I live many blocks away and I've clearly heard the lyrics being sung with all my windows closed. 

86

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

I think we should focus on a few key events. Quality over quantity. 
I like that there is a way for the youth to get involved and help with town events. My teenager had enjoyed meeting people on the YAC 
I dont attend them because we don’t have time mostly and our interests lie elsewhere  
More parking is needed up town 
Lots of variety offered. 
Most town events gather in the Cow Palace. I cannot enjoy them as I have allergies.  
Such a great job on these 
Showcase is too long. Should be done at 7pm 
I think they are awesome and good for getting to know ow neighbors 
Oldstober fest is good 
Get more small businesses involved outside of the Uptowne area only. 
Enjoyed them 
Uptown Olds has a lot of potential and charm. Defiantly put more towards the Christmas season and attract more people. We have a very 
“instagramable” town and should take advantage of this and the potential of increasing the budget for Christmas season/decorating and events  
I love the events 
Reducing these events seems like a great way to cut costs! 
When my children were younger this was one of my favourite parts of the town. 
Special events are important just not my thing  
Too hard for a senior to get around to see some of these things  
Not sure who coordinates these events they should be replaced  
Make it better. Maybe bring back the fair we used to have 
Maybe more entrepreneurially motivated events with speakers, small business promotions (booths), networking options to attract young 
professionals to Olds? 
Christmas. Do more. Not sure what. But do more.  
Always enjoy the ones we attend 
None of these are things I would really attend.  
Special events that are celebrations, (Canada Day, Remembrance day) should be on the Town.  Those that support a particular group should be up 
to that group. 
Great events! Keep up the good work!!  

87

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Wish they used commun ity businesses to help with services for these events.  Business who's families live and work in this community, not ones 
from the city 
Good  
Volunteers do not need recognition dinners anymore than Council Members.  Using taxpayer monies to pay for volunteer recognition is an 
unnecessary expense.  The key word here is volunteer. 
Recommend focusing on finding more sponsorships to support the events, therefore reducing the financial input from the Town without a 
reduction of the quality and quantity of events. 
Special events are essential to feeling like our community is a vibrant place to live. The more we can keep people in Olds, the better off business is. 
If people have to leave town for their entertainment, they will make shopping trips a part of that trip, taking money out of the pockets of local 
business. Investment in events is an investment in business. Also, it's important to remember that not all residents are "young families" and 
"seniors" the middle aged professionals, and couples with no children are also important and should be planned for in events.  
It would not be my expectation that the town puts on many events other than Canada Day celebrations. Things like BBQ in the parks etc can easily 
be run and organised by local groups. Eg, local church group/sports teams for fundraising etc. 
there is quite a bit of money spent on this and some of it could be cut back on although the family events are important for people who may not 
otherwise afford these activities. 
They are usually quite good 
I enjoy them and attend as many as I can. 
These are important to pull the community together and engage with local businesses.  How can groups of businesses and volunteers help these 
town sponsored events so that town staff can focus on tasks that volunteers can't do?  
Waste of money. don't think we need to promote Drinking and drunk people like Oldstoberfest or Flat track racing that the whole town has to 
listen to that noise. 
Better communication of events. Often did not know of an event until after it occurred.  
Oldstice was underwelming. Won’t be attending in future. Very disappointed.  
A lot of these can be cut back. don't think we need a party in the park every month 
if events can't be support by volunteers, then don't have them.  
Canada Day event was excellent!   
Probably a waste of money in some cases 
The town led events are usually poorly planned or not advertised great,  
They are all well organized  
They are great. I’d like to see more support for events that aren’t town-led 
More community events would be wonderful  
Do away with the Free hotdogs at the park parties 

88

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

I didn’t attend any vs I don’t attend…. There is a difference to the wording. It’s not that I won’t attend, however we were unavailable for ones we 
would attend.  
More events are needed. Many travel to surrounding towns for activities 
Just good job and keep it up! Compared to other communities I've lived in, Olds always impresses with its community events. We try not to miss 
any. 
Town events are few, out dated and boring!!! New leadership with fresh new ideas 
Add new ideas…. think outside the box, as we have become stagnant and BORING! Other communities have soap box derbys, decoration contests 
for harvest (scarecrows) etc. Plan new family events that involve both family and businesses at different park locations in town and showcase how 
truly beautiful Olds is.  
Would like to see more things to do for Christmas  
cut back on these 
I enjoy Midnight Madness.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

89

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

AQUATIC CENTRE 
Last year, to control costs, the pool reduced its hours of operations and reduced what services were offered. How 
did these changes impact you? 

Total Responses Big Impact Minimal Impact Do not use Pool 
287 19% 41% 40% 

 

 

90

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
We seldom use the pool. 
The Olds pool is a staple for my kids 
We would be OK with increasing user fee costs as they are quite minimal. Need to try to increase availability for youth swimming lessons. 
Awesome 
Would love a sauna/steam room! 
I'm not sure how the cost actually impact my concerns, but lane swims are at times where they're non effective.  I get it that you don't make a lot 
of money on lane swim, but for a lot of us that are older, and possibly overweight, the times are nonfunctional.  Who exercises at 8 or 9 at night?  
A lane swim in early afternoon would be preferable. 
The pool seems to have a lot of hours, parties at the Olds Pool are very cheap compared to other towns 
No comments as I don't use the pool. 
Consider children's routines and schedules when making swim schedule. Tot time at noon is not smart.  
I can’t wait to use the pool when it opens! 
Love that we r keeping it up.  
We go to other communities for swim lessons as the instructors are rude and ignorant and nothing is done. We have no problems at other 
facilities only in Olds.  
Love the lane swim but impossible to use in the morning or at lunch hour since I work full time so I rely alot on the evening swims that were cut 
back or combined with public swim which was pretty disruptive to me unfortunately  
My son enjoys the swim lessons 
Our family loves family swim during weekends 
Hopefully you can resume swims on stat holidays as that will bring good revenue and attendance 
A hot sauna like in Innisfail would be a great addition 
That said OAC is a well maintained pool, I appreciate having it in town and the Town committing to keeping it well maintained for years to come.  
Good facility to have for year round use 
Might been a good idea, but a waste of money. Perhaps make it more affordable to use or somehow figure out how to raise more revenue. If this 
money pit continues, we need to close it or have it only open so we get back what it costs to run it. Either break even or have a hard look at 
closing it or change it to something that will be at least break even venture... 
I felt that closing the pool in August and September for maitenance was a poor choice of timing. 
They need to run lifeguard training. It’s been quite a while since the last training events. My daughters are working toward NLS certification and 
we have had to do it all in Calgary  

91

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

The pool is great. Anything we can do to make the pool bigger or better is great. 
I feel this facility is poorly managed.  Last year the hours were cut so we only had 10 minutes to get into the building, get changed, showered, and 
into the pool.  Thirty women in ten minutes?  Quite unlikely.  After enough complaints, the pool opened at 8:15.   
 
Every time I am at the pool I count at least 6 staff members, plus the instructor.  The lifeguard changes out every 15 minutes, requiring a lot of 
guards.  Is this really necessary?   
I have none, I think it's important to have a community pool. 
Look to train more staff 
Availability of instructors for both group and private lessons is a real concern. Lessons are full before I can register and I have been on a waiting list 
for private lessons for over 6 months 
The timing of the shutdown was really inconvenient. The lack of livesaving courses this summer meant we had to travel to another town for my 
teen to progress towards her life guarding goal. 
The aquatics aqua fit two night a week cancelled left a lot of us seniors  upset as it is a great exercise program for many that don’t walk or exercise 
in the winter months 
Heard it's too exspensive  
I do not use the pool but I do see it as important for the community and should have opening hours as long as possible to fit in with people's 
schedules so all can use it. 
It’s not user friendly open times for any family that works past 6pm or owned a business and not home until 7pm for a family swim.Need to find a 
happy medium. We went weekly out of town to take the family swimming cause of the lack of hours or staffing or how they treat kids at times. 
I believe the pool should be open on weekends and especially holidays as this is the only time our young families can get to the pool as a FAMILY. 
The other time adjustments to save money are fine as long as they do not impact the classes that have proven to be successful to date. 
Wouldn’t mind a slight increase in fees/costs to accommodate more program offerings. 
Kid loves the pool but it can be hard to find a public swim at an appropriate time.  
Great for our community  
Cost is high 
The management needs to change that’s why I don’t use facility 
Cutting back hours only limits people to enjoy and get exercise  
The hours and times/programs offer at the olds pool are terrible! We end up going to red deer most the the time because of it. Absolutely terrible 
if this place can’t be run properly it needs to shut down and save the waist of my tax dollars!!! 
Need to expand the size of the pool,  its always so packed  and not alot of ppl do water safety anymore  
Why cut hours? Why not increase revenue ?  
Fitness rentals ect?  

92

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

The hours should be cut back for the people that like to hit the pool for exercise I. The morning and evening. It was to bad the poop was shut 
down for the summer. For the people with kids that like to get there swimming lessons down in summer. 
I do not have any comments 
Good thing to have.  Not all communities have them 
Poorly run at a loss  
More women's only swims 
Lane swim in the mornings reduced to 3 days a week... not sure why. 
Town Need to know that the POOL is a money losing building so doing anything to help with the loss is good. 
I would pay a bit more for pool  
Don’t use the pool.  
Pool needs to stay for children to get out and exercise. Maybe a better marketing program to get more people to go? 
We need a larger Center here like Blackfalds abbey Center.  
Clean and great facility!  
Don’t use the pool often due to its small size 
Lack of pool hours for seniors caused many residents to move there membership to Didsbury 
The Town decided to close the pool on certain long weekends, which meant that we spent our money in other communities as their pools were 
open. As well, I was disappointed that the evening Aquafina class was also cancelled. Please bring these two things back. Again, the Town is 
cutting too much. I will pay more tax for this service. This new  council is cutting too much. 
More kids stuff  
Agree with the reduction of hours to reduce operating costs 
It's very hard to find time to go to the pool and have room as an adult. It feels like it's always booked for family, public (which is just family), and 
club or school swims. If I want to find a time to attend aqua-classes or lane swims, for example, it's very hard to fit into my schedule. A large 
percentage of people in our community work during the day, so having evening hours is important. Based on the number of people at lane swim, 
and the lack of space available if you try to go, it's something that could be offered nightly, (though I recognize this is not practical).  
Should be open more, longer hours to accommodate more people.  
The pool provides a means of contributing to a healthy lifestyle for all ages. 
as a caregiver, the pool is my only source of escape for personal time for me - so i have a yearly membership  would sincerely like a quick email 
when they change or close on short notice as i have respite care to factor in as well - love the pool 
Hours are so weird, hard to even go with a normal schedule  
It is a vital service to the community.  
Myself and half the town voted against the pool being built up there but as usual we were ignored, it should have been more Town centred 

93

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

I think we have to focus on break even.  How can you increase volume of usage / rental so that revenue goes up.  Overfilling the pool isn't an 
option but thinking about how to optimize usage and revenue should be an objective.  
When my children were young, we frequented the pool quite regularly.  I consider it a great asset to have in Olds.  
Reduction of class selection for kids was impactful. The pool is a great community resource. A 70% subsidy of the operating costs does not bother 
me one bit. Resources like this are part of what makes Olds a desirable place to live and raise a family.  
Keep pool open on weekends and shut it down midweek one day. We need our kids swimming on weekends. Pour more money into this pool. 
Having the pool shut down Sundays is crazy.  
It would be nice to see some if the paid programs back in the pool like cardio kick 
The pool has been a huge benefit to our family over the years. 
Reduced hours are fine. Make service level as cost effective.  
Decrease in lane swim times has stopped my ability to swim often and regularly. I feel like you could be open more hours if you cut the number of 
guards. I have worked major city center pools with only 2 guards during lane swim and AM public events. There is no need for the amount of 
guards (4 to 5 is what i have seen) on at night during lane swim hours or college swims. Decrease the amount to pay for more open hours.  
Adult programming is needed later in the evenings too accommodate working parents.  Deep water aquafit in the evening should be brought back 
Many of the renovations on the pool were not necessary.  It is not an old pool, only the ones to improve energy efficiency should have been done.  
Too much cost for too little value 
Not enough lane swim times 
Seems like closing the pool could save lots of tax dollars 
Thank you for maintaining our pool!  
Love the pool 
Shutting down the pool on stat holidays while kids are out of school is a huge missed opportunity for our children. I have been there and turned 
away in the past because the pool has reach max occupancy. Perhaps weekday closure would be more beneficial.  
Keep er open.  
The pool is a vital service. It is an important place for all parts 
Of our community. Can we extend the hours? 
If this device isn’t being used enough to cover costs perhaps you should look at changing the services provided to bring more people in, thus 
increasing memberships. Again not enough services for families or working adults in the evenings!! 
Town staff need to start thinking out side of the box and start promoting pool more 
We love using it and love how affordable it is to bring my family. 
There are almost no compatible lane swim times and when there are it is half pool and crowded.  
I never use this pool along with many others. The pool is too cold and not a pleasant experience. I have heard similar from others also. 

94

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

I do wish there was more lane swimming access early in the am or later in the evening.  
The pools should not be closed for every long weekend to cut costs  
families with small children are impacted by the long weekend closures as many of them work during the week and need both parents in the pool 
to supervise.   Consider closing weekend mornings and leave the pool open for afternoons and holidays. 
We love the pool! Can't wait to see the improvements!  
Another important community facility that needs to be taken care of.  It's understood the pool is not a money maker.   
Running the pool / a business at a 700,000 each year sure doesn’t make sense. I understand the town needs a pool, but the numbers gotta add up. 
Changes need to be made.  
Our family loves the pool 
It is a vital part of a vibrant community and needs to be affordable for young families and accessible 
More advertising and fun community activities to attract visitors. 
Maybe more large swimming events to get people interested in swimming as a sport. 
We love the pool. It’s a great option to keep kids advice and reduce prices. We’re all struggling with taxes and increased living expenses… 
swimming gives everyone an opportunity to do sports. 
Excited for new updates  
Restore the Deep Water Aquasize classes to pre-cut levels.  
Investigate a steam room and sauna. There was some money given to the town for this some years back. It should be a project that is at least on 
the books when money becomes available.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

95

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMUNITY CONNECTIONS CENTRE 
In your opinion, how valuable are these services to our community?  

Total Responses Highly Valuable Reasonable Value No Value 
286 36% 53% 11% 

 

 
 

96

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
Agree this is valuable 
Hooray for uptown accessible service! 
Awesome initiative  
We will have to wait and see what value it actually brings to the town. 
Too early to tell 
It's too new to comment 
Nice to have wish we didn’t need such things but nice to have 
Builds a shared sense of community and signals the Town's dedication to an inclusive, accessible community  
What percentage of tax dollars are being allocated to this Center.  
Another money pit, just to make somebody feel good. 
I don’t use any of these services, but I am glad the town provides them for those who have the need. 
We need to keep expanding this facility.  Get us back to where a person could go to Olds Neighbourhood Place and get the assistance they need.  
We've got to start dealing with our homeless situation too.  The same lady has been parked behind the Smitty's mall for three years now.   
Do they not have their own space to conduct their meetings.  Do we actually supply staff to operate these entities. 
I hope it serves the community well. 
Worthwhile service 
More seniors are moving from the cities so we need more to keep them occupied  
I use the sunshine bus occasionally for elderly immobile parents.  I wish it was avail on weekends for church services , such a HUGE spiritual 
loss/connection for many 
Need a drop in centre 
Can’t wait to see this grow and flourish in town  
Do not feel the Town needed yet another facility when room exists in facilities we currently have. Town office, new Ops Centre, old abandoned 
fire hall, arena, library etc. Do not waste taxpayer dollars when other spaces can accommodate this! 
.None to share 
I dont use these services or know much about them but I'm sure they are vital for the individuals that do 
Good idea. 
My kids go to the BGC teens area 

97

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Waste of my money 
Important  
None. Didn’t even know it existed  
All good  
The sunshine bus is needed to support seniors in our community. It’s one of the only thing olds does for transportation seniors.  
Good 
At a time of unknown Municipal Operating Costs would we be increasing staff and infrastructure. 
The Town has not done a good job explaining what FCSS is and what they offer. Suggest promoting this more. 
All very valuable services! It's nice to see them have a home. I think this will be great for communication as well.  
I have not accessed these services, n/a 
hopefully the cost of operating an additional facility does not cut into the resources for the groups using that space. 
More visibility when there are fundraising events 
Good grief another building being built!!! 
I'd be interested to learn more about this.  I think that the town needs to spend more time putting information into the Albertan and on social 
media so that people can consume information in print or in digital form.  
Before further investment is made into facility the town needs to take inventory of what is currently available and under utilized. This included 
facilities owned/operated by service clubs.  
Social services are provincial responsibility and should not  be dumped on local tax payers.  
While this service is critical, I hope it does not impact funding allocated to existing community programs  
I have never even heard of the moccasin house 
Having not heard of or having used any of these services all I can say is I hope the building they are now in wasn’t built in response to them when 
so much square footage of space is open in the mall that once had fields in it among other vacant buildings… 
First good idea in years for this town.  
Great idea, it will be useful 
To have a central location. Thrilled there’s a youth space! 
First time I am hearing of this service.  
Some of those Social programs are a provincial responsibility. Town of Olds should keep to their mandate  
Emergency Shelter especially needed 
Highly valuable if it includes more space for children at BGC. This town is severely lacking for childcare spaces.  
Time will tell if another taxpayer paid facility was necessary. 

98

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

I’m not in the situation to use it, hopefully never will have to, but others might need it. Just don’t want this to turn into a place where additional 
homeless people are coming to our town now that we have room for them. I know this has happened to other places in Alberta and I don’t want 
this to happen to olds.  
This is a duplication of the previous Neighborhood Place.  These services were being successfully delivered at the Town office, this seems like an 
unnecessary expense. 
Be sure to inform the public about these services.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

99

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & INVEST OLDS 
With Economic Development in Olds – including supporting existing business, helping them grow and seeking 
investments – how would you rate the value of these services for your tax dollars?   

Total Responses Above Average Average Below Average 
288 8% 72% 20% 

 

 
 

100

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
The town should not be investing in multi million dollar projects or companies that do not have a solid reputation or business plan.  
Additional funding in this area would improve results. 
Work with local investers and developers. 
Be good to see more new business coming to Town. Are there plans for more commercial / industrial lot development. 
Missing Olds Institutes Everything Olds 
Sounds to me you are using money that could be better spent on a touchy-feely program. 
Show me the profit and true return? instead give me the cash and I'll invest it for you, my historical returns would beat it 
I have not heard of anything that has come to town via Invest Olds. It would be good if Invest Olds were to publish a list of businesses they 
attracted so we know they had a part in it. 
Not sure of activity, but economic development is vital to any community 
I just don’t know enough about what is being done to make a comment on it.  
You can't service the streets that we already have I don't think you should be pushing for more growth and investment 
There needs to be affordable rentals for people in need, so far there is nothing available n people had to leave town! 
I don’t even know what they have done. 
I dont know 
I put Average because I have no idea what specific initiatives you are working on or the outcomes/goals you've set for the program and how it's 
supposed to improve my life  as a resident 
That said I fully support the idea 
Attract industry to create jobs and bring people to Olds 
Another money wasting idea. Let businesses do business. Create positive tax environment and they will come. 
You cannot run your own operations efficiently and you want to tell someone what is good business idea? 
Don’t know much about this. 
O-Net internet is good for attracting business’. Just need to improve their tv service  
I think the town shouldn't be managing any businesses other than looking after the town itself. 
Keep working on bringing secure businesses to Town 
The commercial space in town is so expensive it was cheaper to buy a bigger office in Calgary than continue renting our space here. I don’t think it 
matters how much we invest in trying to bring business in if they can’t find an affordable space here. 
We’ve not utilized their services and unfamiliar with it  

101

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Needs affordable housing  
Need more low cost senior housing with cooking facilities for low income seniors. Not everyone wants to live in communinal housing. 
The town is ever-growing with more housing, therefore more people. We need better business so we don't have to keep going to the city to buy 
clothes, shoes etc.  
We need a Costco and a Starbucks in my opinion. 
Consistency  
Nothing has been improved. 

 
 

More community and networking events for small businesses 
Another missed opportunity to provide better information to the citizens. Where is this being advertised and promoted other than the invest Olds 
website?  From what I can tell there is little to no interest from the community.  I like the idea of supporting local businesses but this doesn't seem 
to be accomplishing that.  Make sure the town is seeking the right kinds of outside investments.  
Housing options for development. Bringing in more franchise options give the towns people more options and makes the town more appealing  
Many business owners have no idea what invest olds is.  Perhaps someone should reach out to owners and be more transparent  
If we have a business license in town, we should be allowed to advertise and have some assistance with marketing from the Town of Olds.  
I do not know 
The chamber of commerce is a joke.  We need to do more to attract shoppers 
Lots of talk talk talk but no action in the last 3 years or longer 
You can not have economic investment when you refuse a business application. Try allowing them to operate rather than turning them down. 
Share more info publicly  
Support Aubin’s Auto Aid.  
Affordable housing is essential but most investment attracted to olds is giving reduced costs to get them here. Stop increasing taxes on residents 
to feed the corporate greed.  
This is absolutely needed 
Need more affordable homes 
Good  
There is nothing really visible to show what is being done by this group.  You could explain what the group has done.  Communication is non 
exisent 
I think there is too much focus and probably Town investment in this. I think the Town is too focused on Agricultural businesses. Why doesn't the 
Town get sponsorships for its buildings, such as the pool and arena, to offset the cost of them. 

102

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Uptown  
I don't see anything that has been done by this group. That doesn't mean that nothing has, but I have heard nothing and seen nothing. Perhaps if 
there are things going on and efforts being made a monthly newsletter sent to everyone who has a business license would be beneficial 
communication. 
The addition of the marijuana plant in Olds has lowered the class of the town and done little for it's economic benefit 
More assistance to small businesses. NOT WALMART OR CANADIAN TIRE 
I would rather see the resources go towards existing business groups such as the Chamber of Commerce. 
More affordable housing 
The focus on specific businesses thru facebook have been great. 
 
When it comes to economic development in Olds,  it would be nice to maintain the vision and values of Olds and not try to make "little Calgary or 
Edmonton" here. More opportunity for local folks to build businesses and storefronts are better than big box stores and big city investors.  
Local iniqtives have a flavor and feel for their own community.  
I have started to see ads but I'm not sure I've seen clear results.  What are the goals and objectives of this group?  How are they measured?  How 
is information reported to the community?  
The impact of invest olds is unknown to me, so cannot comment on its effectiveness. Where can this data be found?  
Seemed to work better (and for less cost to the taxpayer) when this was done by volunteers from the Olds Institute. 
How does this help us taxpayers when you discount there taxes? This is not a feature and I don't think it would be a deciding factor. Last year you 
paid someone to tell you that the commercial taxes were already below average 
Have yet to see any new Development? Residents don't what affordable housing.  
Simply reduce the red tape to operate in Olds and get that message out. We have what you need and we make it simple for you to be here.  We 
want you. 
Lower business taxes for the first few years of ownership to encourage more small business  
I tried getting ahold of someone there multiple times to help with a business, apparently the emails were not going to their inbox?? Or they were 
just ignored  
So far 
I do not know what has been done in regards to this program in the past and the successes and failures  
Like the investment opportunities but you also need a focus on supporting businesses in the area 
What is the cost? 
Affordable housing should be top priority for this town council. Given the description above I would say this initiative has been unsuccessful and 
funds could be allocated elsewhere. This initiative is ineffective. 

103

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

I don’t see any value in the towns economic development team. What new industry or business has been brought to olds a large salary with no 
return 
Need to do a better job. The last big push of the Cannabis plant has been a huge failure  
Nothing seems to working when neighbouring communities are growing and Olds remains stagnant. 
I don't see any benefit of this currently happening 
Lower taxes for businesses and don’t make the permit rules so strict so people actually want to open a business in olds.  
Is it actually attracting investment? What’s new in town? 
The website and digital promotions could be better, the website has misplaced businesses and typos. Social media has too many hashtags and 
graphics are not accessible. 
Need incentives offered to draw interested groups to town possibly in the form of tax reductions or other avenues. 
The o-net take over was not right. The town took over the millions in debt. Telus had offered to absorb that debt but was rejected. Onet services 
are not for everyone, they have stolen the opportunity for companies like telus and Shaw to give fibre optic options. Poor business move buying 
onet olds. Should have let telus buy them for the 11million they offered.  
Unsure  
More partnerships with the college and the largest employers  in Town (Sundial, Pro-All, OSG, etc.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

104

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMUNICATIONS & ENGAGEMENT 
When you think about Town of Olds Communications & Engagement over the last 6 months – including website, 
social media, press releases, emails and flyer – how would you rate the effectivness of our services?   

Total Responses Above Average Average Below Average 
287 20% 61% 19% 

 

 

 

105

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

What is (or would be) your preferred way to receive information from the Town? Check all that apply 

  

106

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

OTHER (SPECIFIED) 
Utility bill newsletters 
Anything but our corrupt newspaper 
Notices posted in local businesses 
Accurate Information should be put out there 
Send emails and allow people to unsubscribe. 
Mailed newsletter seems to be most effective. On the signage around town post reminders of important events or a reminder to check the 
newsletter 
Mail flyer 
Regular mail 
With our utility bill 
In town bill 
Knock on my door 
Get the mayor doing something  
Mail 
Mailed flyers 
Innovate —- Audio and visual rather than electronic device communications 
Community billboards and bulletin boards in stores and public buildings... yes old school! 
Newsletter  
Text 
I think the recent coffee with the town councilors is a good initiative. This should be something that is done year round, not just over a short 4 
week timeline in summer.  
Save your money here, it’s the communication age.  
with my monthly bill 
Pushed updates either through sms or email. Only to the people impacted. IE snow removal tomorrow on your street. 
Sent out with town billing  
What happened to the monthly newsletter? 
Mail, for the older generation and those who don't use social media 

107

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Town newsletter email out 
Electronic calendars in facilities 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

108

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
I find information provided very informative and up to date. 
Website is good. 
I like the showcasing of events in town. A directory of services is hard to maintain but so important for newcomers 

 
I do notice the posts on Facebook, and I do listen to the local radio station.  Your support of the local paper is also vital to our community. 
One 
Just more of it! 
I don't even know why I'm taking part in this survey other than I care for my community,, because you guys put the survey out there to make 
yourselves look good but in the end you don't really listen to anything the people have to say and you go ahead and do what it is you're going to 
do anyway.   
No idea of that either 
I dont know  
As a professional working full time with a young family, I struggle to keep up with work and personal affairs on several different social media 
channels. Anything that makes it easier for me to get information about the Town (without a bunch of spam) is welcomed. It's important to me to 
know what's going on in Town because this is where I've chosen to make a home for my family but it can be tough to do since I commute to the 
City and travel for work as well 
Don’t know exactly what they do 
Keep doing the surveys. It’s great way for democracy to truly be effective.  
I like the fact that we are allowed to speak through these types of surveys, and that we are kept informed of different changes to the town. 
Coffee w with the Council - a great informal way to get the public pulse 
Frequent surveys are good but more attention needs to be paid to how questions are asked and how the information is being interpreted. I think 
questions of often miss the mark in getting to the root of what people want. 
The report an issue function on the website is very helpful. Also as a Facebook addict I appreciate the snow removal updates in the winter. 
Was not aware of it till I saw article on paper in early august thereabouts  
More communication than there used to be. 

 has very good at sharing information.  
It's pretty up to date on important issues that affect us 
I like the almost daily updates on Facebook. 

109

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

Can't offer any solutions, this is a challenging job to keep people informed.  There a lot of people in the community who don't use any social 
media and are not likely to go out of their way to visit the town website.  Personally I could really go for another Ginger Heat rap if that's in the 
cards. 
It is good 
I think the communication has been better but still needs improvement. I find that there are still times where events are happening in town that 
no one knows about 
More exposure and marketing opportunities for businesses in town  
The Facebook town page is current for upcoming events 
I do appreciate the communications posted to Facebook, as I do not receive a newspaper at my home for some reason. 
Some responses to show you read feedback   

  
We always get this at the last minute. Try sending it way before the date so people can prepare 
Seems to be a lot of duplicate info 
Website is not updated with most current and accurate information  
You need more youth covering communication. The elders don’t understand the generational gap and a lot of the messages are being missed.  
Don’t just take complaints and shove them in a drawer. People want answers. Post reforms that the town does in response to citizens concerns.  
Facebook looks good! 
content 
Facebook posts are effective, print that comes in utility bills is effective.  
They seem to keep everyone up to date on events or incidents that effect the community. Well done 
I haven’t noticed this  
No one in the Gen Z / Millennial / Gen X demographic uses social media anymore - especially Facebook. To notify residents of important things like 
this survey it would be good to mail out a physical paper flyer or email. 
Stop relying on social media to promote town communication. It’s not effective to reach the majority. Mail/email, community board postings, 
newspaper, radio etc. the people of Olds do not use social media like the town assumes they are. 
Onet has done nothing to increase community confidence over the past 12 -14 months.  Crediting service to some customers and not all is insane. 
What about a community events channel that works 
I have enjoyed an increase in public engagement sessions. But suggest that you have some in-person ones outside of businesses hours  so to sllow 
working people to attend. I guess that you mainly get retirees attending. The town is made up of non-retirees too.  
I've seen a lot more interaction on Facebook, which has been great. I also appreciate that the Town interacts and helps other community 
organizations and businesses get the word out. I would like to see organizations use the Town of Olds Community Events Calendar more. Perhaps 

110

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

there is a way the team can make it easier for groups to share their information on the calendar. (i.e. send an email with all events for a season or 
month and the team can put them on the website, instead of the organization having to post each event one at a time.) 
Surveys are good.  
I do not have enough information to know the extent of what they have been doing. I do appreciate the opportunity to complete surveys. The 
availability of paper surveys should be extended to people who do not have access to a computer or who may not use one. 
Townhalls should be brought back... The coffee with council meetings are a good start.Easy access to information both on and off the 
computer/cell phone are really important  
Inaccurate information posted lots and not corrected  
More advanced notice of events, surveys, etc. are needed (first found out about this survey in the paper today (29th), halfway through the survey 
period). 
I don’t have enough information to say. 
Good promotions on upcoming events, and with road closures etc. 
Increased communication - good and bad - is critical.  Transparency is a must.  Using different mediums of communication is also important so 
that readers can consume in a preferred method (i.e. newspaper versus website) and at times that are convenient for them.  Also a robust 
calendar of events / activities that can be added to by local groups and business would be nice.  There is always lots going on but sometimes it is 
difficult to know about events especially if you've just moved to town and don't know the history and rhythm on activities.  
The full page in the paper for the Town of Olds is very informative.  
If people want yo know what’s happening they will reach out. When I like to know when the ballgames are at the new ballpark - I look it up.  
more communication is needed 
Cant believe this would take a team it is just a repeat over all listed.  
Haven't seen improvement, not sure why a team is required.  
Facebook posts are clear and concise 
Haven't noticed them. 
I appreciate the improved monthly newsletters! I would like an option to subscribe to mass email communication as I know I miss things via social 
media 
I’m not even entirely sure what they do?  Little posts about street cleaning? 
Seems fine to me  
Put something in billing and you should have a larger response to opinions on what is bothering people in regards to how the town is operated  
They havent.  
More surveys! 
Unsure 

111

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

News posts showing up in my Instagram feed are great. Not always a link in bio or something to find the details as the link is just to the town 
home page. Too often people have to resort to asking around on FB for event details.  
They are NOT getting anything right , I was told by someone to take this survey or I would never have known about it so information is not getting 
out!!!! 
And no one looks at the newspaper that never shows up and is full other towns news, there is no news letter email out  
Didn't even know it existed 
Newspapers are not delivered. Not all people follow social media. Use the electronic screens you have in all town facilities and perhaps place one 
in both Uptowne and Cornerstone. A yearly calendar of services and events should be ready by January 1. Then update that calendar monthly as 
required. A newsletter could be added to tax notices that go out twice a year at no significant additional cost. 
I see more FB posts? 
Haven’t noticed much of a change. Not that I’ve been looking though.  
Messages are crafted in a more effective way now. The town website needs work. It doesn’t function at all. Hard to navigate and doesn’t change  
Posting photos of media releases and letters are not effective, engaging, or accessible.  
I appreciate the letters from  They seem to be more transparent and explained than before.  
Information printed in the local paper, a lot of seniors do not have computers. 
Be more active on Facebook with multiple posts of the same as Facebook does now update all the time  
Website info needs to be improved.  For example, the info for this survey lists the dates as 2022. 
No Idea. I didn’t realize that an extra effort was being made.  
Better information before/after council meetings. 
it's perfect....except when it's not 

 
 
 
 

112

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

O-NET 
Looking to 2024 and beyond, Council must decide if the Town will invest further dollars in O-Net should there be 
additional need. Should the Town provide O-Net with the needed financial support to stabilize and grow its 
business?   

Total Responses Yes, support O-Net, no 
matter what 

Yes, support O-Net 
but with limitations 

No further financial 
support 

280 21% 29% 50% 
 

 

113

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

COMMENTS 
See qustion 32 
Funding for fibre-optic cable upgrades and expansion,OK. 
Television ??  Not OK ! 
The town supported Onet and touted it as a means to reduce taxes for residents in the long run. Too much has been invested to cut and run, but 
we need to see returns. If this will not happen then cut them loose.  
Office could not even tell us if fiber optics was available at our address on Vera Close. We went with Bell TV and Telus internet. 
I am a user at home and love it. Keep it going. It is a model for other communities. 
Should investigate and consider selling O-Net assets (if a reasonable fair offer can be procured) 
I use Shaw. Why should my tax dollars support something that by your own statements is failing. Sell the high speed, fiber option to Telus or 
Rogers and get out of this loser. 
This should not have happened to begin with. We are a town not a business operation.  
Lots of poor service and issues with it working. Not using.  
Probably a good idea to sell it. Too hard to compete against the giants in telecommunications  
Before the town decided to not support O net they were the best system in Canada. Then equipment got old and I assume the town held back 
funds and system went to be the worst. Now witrh new platform it is back. I am in the test customer and back loving the system.Buy local!!!! 
It is a business and really should be make its own money to invest in growth 
Only support it if it can eventually be self-sustaining.  
Fibre internet is great, please continue to support O-Net. TV is the past for anybody under age 70, I would not want my tax dollars invested here 
It is a great facility; TV, Internet and phone 
Find me a community based ISP that has made cash...there was no good exit strategy, and all the talk of partnering to create small datacenters for 
internet centric businesses in the beginnning came to nothing 
The staff at ONET have had a rough time the last year. We (our household) have come close to dropping ONET TV due to the very lengthy repairs 
and going with another provider. We have given ONET all the grace we can, BUT they need to get this fixed, NOW. 
It would be nice if the community would support O-net, as all profits are returned to the community 
Enough already 
I don’t know many people who are satisfied with O-Net and the limited exposure that I have had has not been good.  
The idea was sound but it just seems there is issue after issue.  
The prophets from this company should go back into subsidizing costs of utilities for residents or by royalty checks 
Why would you kill a service that is locally owned???  

114

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

O net is great internet at least 
Any public funding must be tied to proving long term sustainability, self generated (ie, not through subsidy) positive cash flow within the next 3-5 
years and a differentiated service that can compete with other service providers - otherwise what's the point?  
Not a supporter. 
Why did the Town buy this.  
Again, don't get involved in private business. Why do I use Shaw at home? Because it's cheaper than O-Net! 
How about being competitive to start with? Is it that hard to figure out? I would love to support local, but it has to be better and cheaper than the 
competition. I will not pay more, just because you put money into it. You should make it so affordable that every Olds citizen will use the service 
and not even think or know that there is a competition, because there should be NO competition... But hey, we can brag that we had the first Gig 
speed service. Now others are offering it and much cheaper. Think about that. 
They cost people just as much if not more than the big companies and they have too many outages it is time to stop dumping money into them 
and move on 
Support O-Net if it contributes to economic and business development and innovation  
You need a section for other comments.  There is a piece of property north of Braeburn Estates that is not developed.  I've heard this property 
belongs to the town, and that the town has forgotten about it.  Please research this as it would make an ideal spot for low cost housing to be 
developed. 
If after this many years they can't operate on their own, no more funding should be given. 
I think the town should NOT be invested in any way with O-Net. 
Continue to expand beyond Olds 
Not too familiar with this 
I have been faithfully paying my bills and not getting the service I pay for and the town wants to keep supporting them? Let them be sold to Telus 
so we can get decent service again.  
It is impossible to answer this question without having more information. I will support O-NET if there is some credible, data based, information 
that indicates it can be a reliable income source to the town moving forward. If it is continually costing the town money to operate then it has 
defeated its purpose as far as I can see. If there are services or benefits it can offer above competetitor companies (Shaw, Telus) then that 
information needs to be shared with residents. People need to know why they should care about keeping O-NET and alternatively why they might 
want to get rid of it altogether. There is a real lack of clear information about O-NET  in terms of costs, value added, long term costs/benefits, etc. 
People need all of the information to make informed decisions. 
We are early adopter of Onet. I wouldn’t change our internet services but I would be ok with discontinuing the television platform. We stopped 
using it when the recordings became unreliable and have basically switched entirely to streaming services. Our internet speeds are fantastic so 
streaming works flawlessly. 
We have their service for tv, wifi and phone and ,and are very happy with their service and it’s local 
O net is down more than available o net sucks 

115

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

This should support itself as those who set it up , said it would. 
Don't use O-NET 
While service remains excellent, the product is unreliable and not worth paying for. It is embarrassing how this organisation has fallen 
Love it 
O-Net used to be something to be proud to have in Olds.  We were well known for having the fastest internet services around.  The last year or so, 
if they haven't lost business it would be very surprising.  The service is by far no longer something to be proud of.  Slow internet, aging platforms 
and services.  We would like to see this brought back up to being a successful business once again. 
O-NET is known worldwide as the best services and has made Olds known around the world! It's growth potential for both Olds & O-NET is a 
wonderful way bring more interest to Olds and continues to put Olds at the forefront of technology & services! 
O-NET has a lot of opportunity to grow if the town stops getting it wrapped up in controversies that have nothing to do with it. 
Onet is an affordable way to receive fiber service to homes 
We have used other companies but we are happy now with O-NET. Support local I say. 
What percentage of tax payers actually use O-NET? Compared this to the years of continual taxpayer funds trying to bail out a losing venture and 
how long it will take to pay the millions back. Cut your losses now and move forward with TOWN OF OLDS business and services to the 
community. 
Must ensure tax payers are not left responsible for the entire O-NET dept 
Extremely valuable and easily the best internet provider in town.  I've never really had an issue but I see other people complain about constant 
issues with the TV and phone services which I'm sure has left a sour taste.  Get the bugs worked out and maybe do some advertising with 
incentives to get people to switch back.   
We like our internet and phone services by O-NET.  
O-Net is very important within our community.  It makes me happy that we have a home grown service that employs local community members.  
It is also wonderful that we are able to call and actually talk to a live person!  This is an integral part of our community, please SHOP LOCAL AND 
SUPPORT LOCAL!! 
Sell to Telus 
It should never have been taken over by the town. Since the town took over, there has been nothing but issues with O-net services 
We have internet through o- net and it works well for the most part and the price was right for us 
I love keeping money in our town but the service has be come terrible! 
O-net has been awful for the last year.....still paying top dollar for crap. 
We use Onet internet but Roger’s is offering the same for almost have the price!! So we might have to switch!  
We use it and its good 
I had ONET internet and TV for 3 weeks and had to cancel and switch to Shaw as its unreliable service was accepted by my employer for working 
from home. 

116

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

I had O-Net and canceled my services due to problems that they couldn’t figure out. The town should be selling O-Net. It’s not something that the 
tax payers should be paying for. O-Net is so far behind on the technology and the not be able to keep on the technology. As soon as they will get it 
figured out, other providers will be coming out with better technology. Can’t compete with the multiple billion dollar companies.  
If O-Net is a viable company then do as other business to stay financially viable. If the business is a needed service in the town then the company 
needs to figure out their business plan.  
    Why are tax dollars supporting a company...does the town support a dying car dealership or another business that isn't viable?  Why do citizens 
who don't use a business support it with tax dollars.  
We’ve had nothing but issues with O-NET for the last year, we’ve now switched providers  
Seems like these funds could be better spent elsewhere. 
We have been supporters for YEARS! THE SERVICE IS CRAP, they keep saying new hardware is coming but never does....been a year now.  Fix it or 
get rid of it 
We are not happy with our service and have been told for over a year that upgraded service is in the works. We have been patient but with winter 
coming and spend more time on TV we need to know if/when this is coming. 
Don't use it, but may.  Would like to see more financials shared with it 
Right now it is have issues with internet and tv . It is hard to compete with the big guys. I really don’t think they should invest any more money 
into something that isn’t going to work ! 
Sorry that is my opinion  
Sell it off  
The absolute worst service. Close it down no one knows what good service is when they are constantly down  
Please do not sell to Telus 
I don't use O-Net due to cost and negative reviews from current customers  
Tax dollars on a company I don't use just because its 'local' but was unable to kick it against its competitors. Makes sense.  
The Town is not a money making place and should never been involved with this in the first place (MONEY WISE) 
Money can be utilized better elswhere 
Unnecessary when there are other options  
I don’t use onet.  
As an onet customer I have managed my frustration waiting for long needed upgrades. Shame on management for taking so long. Finally have 
new technology and will continue to purchase to support this local initiative 
Sell it. The town had no right to take tax payers money and invest in a private company. Cut our losses and sell it.  
We don’t use it. We don’t hear anything good about it. This community should not be advertising it self as the first gig town as mistakes were 
made and continued to occur and the program has failed. These resources could be used to fix the abortion of poorly labelled road ways and 
intersections that cause the same accidents every day over and over again.  

117

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

It’s barely tolerable but I feel bad telling them how awful it is because they are so nice.  
Can’t complete with large companies.  
Sell it 
Television platforms are outdated and dying. Investing in fibreoptic internet makes sense but to inject funding into television seems irresponsible 
when thinking long term. 
I’ve been receiving a credit for almost a full year because the tv service is not functional  
Maybe consider scrapping cable TV service and focus on digital. 
The only people who 
Complain about o-net are those using the tv service - obviously tv should not be part of their services. Stick to internet - it’s what they are meant 
for.  
Onet has not treated is customers consistently during the upgrading .  Crediting some (those who complaint) doing nothing for others who faced 
identical service issues is unfair and unethical. 
Without O-nwt, the other providers are too substandard for the Town to operate. 
Boo  
There was no right answer to choose for 36. I don't think it should be Yes "NO MATTER WHAT", but I also don't thing that there should be 
"significant limitation". There should be a balanced approach and growth should be prioritized like any business.  
I don't know enough to provide a reasonable answer.  
Town should support but the Town shouldn't own it 
This has been a "money pit" since its inception. There was no opportunity for people to have a referendum at the beginning and hopefully Town 
Council has learned from this mistake. Taxpayers  will be carrying the costs for years and these dollars could have gone to other necessities such 
as public transportation and infrastructure. 
this seems to be an ongoing unsuccessful venture that is costing money  - been on the books for a long time   
Has the town appointed a board that has community members on it? Do "the town" council, admin, CAO etc...really want Onet to succeed? If they 
do, who are the key players in making sure it does... the company will not survive unless there are devoted individuals who have the desire and 
knowledge to make it thrive. 
I have seen little to no communication to explain what the problems are and what is being done to address those problems. I have seen zero 
advertising for new people to sign up for Onet.  
Never should have bought the company, private ownership would have kept it from becoming a money pit 
I don't think that investment in the TV platform is necessary to the success of O-NET given the amount of streaming platforms available using the 
Internet and that most people who are younger will opt for said streaming platforms. 
Until the past year, the service was outstanding. I believe they can be again.  
O-Net is not available in my area but with everything I have read online, there is a very large number of unhappy customers that want to make a 
change.   Either fix it or get rid of it and sell it to a company that will get it working the way it is supposed to 

118

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

This I have no opinion on  
My answer is conditional.  What is their business plan?  How are they measured?  What is the realistic ROI for taxpayer funds?  What is the 
implications if they don't get additional funding?  
Town should never get involved with o-net. 
O-Net has communication giants for competitors. It is a unique service and makes  our town unique. It draws technology to our area. Support it! 
O-Net was working just fine until the town took it over. Now I have had to cancel the tv service due to it no longer being useable and the internet 
has begun having issues. I am not likely to continue as an O-Net customer and can no longer recommend it to others. Given this service 
degradation, I think it would be a poor use of taxpayer money to continue to provide financial support. 
find it was expensive for what was offered 
If they are short of funds how are they sponsoring things??? Quit using tax dollars to fund this and the information that flowed out about it is to 
little to late. If so taxpayers still want O-Net then let there taxes go up to cover it and leave the rest of us alone. 
This is a black eye to the Town and has severely tied up tax resources. Waste of money. Crapping service.  
We supported O-Net for many years until the service became so poor we had to switch back to Shaw. I’m hopeful the new upgrades will improve 
ONet enough that we will return to Onet as soon as our Shaw contract ends.  
I use O-net and I like the fact of it being a local company but if they aren’t turning a profit now after how many years. Does that really make sense 
to keep investing?  
Sell it 
Poor technology and too expensive monthly rates  
It seems like the town has supported onet enough. If they can make it on their own now then the business should probably be shut down or sold 
to shaw.  
This is a hard one. I am an O- Net customer to try and support the business and our community. However, services are not great and users pay a 
lot of money for subpar service. Sometimes when something isn’t working we need to acknowledge this. I fear O-Net will bleed us all dry yet I’m 
not ready to give up on them 
Don’t use it. Have heard nothing but complaints about it 
The town should revive how o net is doing in regards to how many customers they have. If it declines or continues to decline the town should at 
some point review to see if total withdrawal vs monies owed would make sense  
Get rid of the tv 
Sell it, the town should of never taken it over with that huge expense going to a vote to decide if the community actually wanted to dump more 
into it. 
It is a Financial blemish on the Community! 
The service and quality of the service needs to drastically improve or I do not see it continuing  
Town needs to get out the  business, sell it fast before the town goes deeper in debt to support this business 

119

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

While onet is our best service provider in town it is probably not smart to provide them with a carefree budget  
I'm not sure how this Onet business is entangled with the town? I think it is a stain on the name of our town as I hear whisperings of back door 
deals etc from others. Aside from that, I would be curious to know how Onet benefits our community, other than a free wifi network in town? 
The idea was great service not so much.  We have been supporting but are cancelling.   They just can’t provide what you are paying for.  System 
outs, not working.   Moving on.   
With about $20 million owning and you’re looking to inject more money ! !!! 
This venture has cost the tax payers enough both in council and administration time as well as legal costs, the debit has cost the town 
infrastructure projects that has even put to the back burner and who knows what else old out dated arena? Sell Sell Sell Sell!! Get what you can 
before the next generation have to pay for this as well 
It's an asset but struggles at times 
ONET has been a losing proposition since it’s inception. It is time to cut the losses, sell it for what you can get, pay off the debt and put taxpayers 
dollars into Town services where it belongs! 
I don't know what to think about O-NET anymore.  
I don't understand why we are assisting businesses financially 
I like the O-net service but the town can’t keep bailing them out. My tax dollars don’t need to fund a business that can’t make money. Will the 
town give me tax dollars so my business can stay afloat?  
We had O-Net to try and support local but always had issues, so switched to Shaw. 
Previous council really broke its back and the backs of volunteers. This council has tried to improve it but there needs to be a major investment in 
marketing O-net. Social media attacks everything about it and there is no presence fighting to dispel bad press and nay sayers 
The town has spent a RIDICULOUS/ EMBARRASSING amount bailing O-net out. What about the people who live an pay taxes in OLDS? We’re 
having to pay extra monthly to dump out garbage despite recycling. We pay insane water and power fees. This town is getting bigger than it can 
handle. We are considering buying property elsewhere.  
The O-Net team did a good sales pitch to the town on this topic. There needs to be people with better expertise representing the town on this 
situation. 
I use Shaw as INET is unreliable  
This is spending good money after bad. 
Should have let Telus buy them. They are bleeding our community dry. They are not sharing the fibre optic capabilities other competitors. O-net is 
not for everyone. Stop giving them our money. Maybe put some of that money into the waste program, making it more affordable and higher 
frequency..Onet needs to be dropped.  
0-net should be viewed as a town utility. Much like snow removal or the public pool.  
Sell it. Fast. 

 

120

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

REPORT-A-PROBLEM 
Have you used the Report-A-Problem service? 

Total Responses Yes No 
288 31% 69% 

 

 

 

 

121

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

SUMMARY 
GENERAL OVERVIEW 

 Overall residents rated the effectiveness of services provided by the Town of Olds as ‘Average’ 
 Two notable areas of improvement are: 

o Operations 
o Solid Waste 

COMMENT SECTION OVERVIEW 

 Protective Services/Bylaw enforcement – residents are generally happy with the fire department. Many 
bylaw enforcement comments wanting to see more enforcement in Town (traffic, branches, weeds, animals, 
more presence) 

 Corporate Services/Administration – varied from great customer service to lacking. Catchall for all comments 
relating to Town services received for taxes paid.  

 Public Works – many comments relating to pot hole repairs (time, amount of) and sidewalks 
 Community services – residents are generally happy with this area, trails are much appreciated 
 Parks – responses varied, but those unhappy with the parks cited mowing schedule, weeds and sportsfields 

as neglected. 
 Special Events – Overall positive, couple comments in relation to noise 
 Aquatic Centre –Most comments centered around hours of operation and programing 
 Community Connections Centre – split of positive feedback and knowing what FCSS is or how it will benefit 

the community 
 Economic Development – Comments show a lack of understanding of what is being done and how it can 

benefit the Town 
 Communications and Engagement – A lot of good comments recognizing the changes that have been made 

 

122

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

SERVICE SPECIFIC QUESTIONS 
Bylaw Enforcement 

 When asked ‘do you think the Town should invest more in bylaw enforcement’ responses were 37% more 
enforcement, 47% keep as is and 16% less enforcement 

 Most of the comments were negative in nature, and were asking for more bylaw enforcement. 

Snow Clearing  

 When asked ‘how satisfied are you with this service’ responses were split 50/50. This was also 
representative in the comments section. Varied from pleased with level of snow removal, to wanting less 
to wanting more. 

 57% said the town should invest more in snow clearing 

Solid Waste 

 When asked ‘how satisfied are with waste management as a whole’ responses were 55% average/above 
average and 45% below average. 

 Comments for the most part relate to the 3 week cycle, particularly in relation to the black bin.  
 Unfavourable comments in regards to the recycling centre closure and the decrease in Compost bins 

Recycling 

 When asked ‘Are you willing to pay more to continue a recycling centre in the Town of Olds’ 67% said no 

O‐NET 

 When asked ‘should the Town invest further dollars into O‐NET should there be a need’ responses were 
50% no further investment, 29% yes – but with limitations, 21% yes – no matter what. 

 Many comments around selling O‐NET 
 Some comments recognizing the value in O‐NET 

123

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

                                                                                                                                     CITIZEN BUDGET SURVEY 2023 
      

QUESTIONS FOR FUTURE DISCUSSION 
1. The majority of residents are requesting an increased investment in snow clearing. Administration will 

bring snow clearing to the next service level review session with the following options for Council’s 
consideration: 

 increase the base budget to snow clearing contracted services.  
 implement changes to our snow clearing efforts to make the existing process more efficient.  

 

2. Most respondents are not in favour of paying more for a recycling centre, while slightly over half are 
satisfied with the current level of service. What does Council believe is the most appropriate service level 
for our solid waste collection program? (Status quo, slight increase, slight decrease) 

 

3. Residents were asked if the Town should invest more in Bylaw Enforcement, while 47% said keep it as is 
and 37% said they would support investing more in enforcement all comments were asking for more 
enforcement. We know that given the current staffing in this department that more is not possible without 
further investment in a Municipal Enforcement Officer, would Council support an additional position in this 
department? 

 

124

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 1 of 1 

  

Bylaw No. 2023-22 

 

Request for Decision 

Bylaw No. 2023-22 Amendment to Land Use Bylaw  

October 10, 2023   
 

RECOMMENDATION 

That a public hearing for Bylaw No. 2023-22 be held. 

That Council gives second reading to Bylaw No. 2023-22 as presented. 

That Council gives third reading to Bylaw No. 2023-22 as presented. 

STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
The Olds community is supported and enabled through skillful governance. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
Municipal Government Act  

BACKGROUND  
The Town has received an application to amend the Land Use Bylaw under Bylaw 2023-22 
which proposes a site-specific exception to allow ‘accessory dwelling unit for temporary 
residential use’ as a permitted use in the Central Commercial District (C1) on the property of 
4801 49 Avenue.  
 
The subject property is owned by the Central Alberta Pregnancy Care Centre. This organization 
has applied for this amendment in order to provide a temporary residential space for clients of 
their services. Development and Building Permits will still be required in order to ensure the 
development complies with all municipal and provincial regulations. 
 
Bylaw No. 2023-22 received first reading on August 28, 2023. A public hearing on the proposed 
bylaw is required prior to Council giving second reading. The public hearing was advertised in 
accordance with the Municipal Government Act Section 606. The proposed bylaw was also 
circulated to referral agencies and adjacent landowners for comment. To date, no comments 
have been received from the public or adjacent landowners regarding Bylaw No. 2023-22. 

The following comments have been received from referral agencies: 

• Alberta Health Services: No objections or concerns. 
 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☐ Operating  ☐ Capital ☒ Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Lots 9 & 10, Block 8, Plan 2186H Aerial Photo 
2. Bylaw No. 2023-22 
 

Author: Kyle Sloan, Municipal Planner Date: September 28, 2023 

Manager Signature: James Crozier, Manager of Planning &  
                                 Infrastructure 

Date: October 3, 2023 

CAO Signature:  Brent Williams Date: October 5, 2023 

 

125

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



0.1

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Kilometers0.1

Notes

© Town of Olds

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

0.030

1: 1,000

4801 49 Avenue

Hwy 2A Symbol
Hwy 2A
Hwy 27 Symbol
Hwy 27
Railway
Road Labels
Block Text Line

126

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 
TOWN OF OLDS 

BYLAW NO. 2023-22 
 
A bylaw of the Town of Olds, in the Province of Alberta, pursuant to provisions of the Municipal 
Government Act, being Chapter M-26 of the revised statutes of Alberta 2000 and amendments 
thereto, to provide for the amendment of the Land Use Bylaw No. 01-23 
 
WHEREAS Section 640(1) of the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M-26 of the Revised 
Statues of Alberta 2000, and amendments thereto, provides that every municipality must pass a land 
use bylaw; and 
 
WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000 Chapter M-26 and 
amendments thereto, permit a Council by bylaw to amend the Land Use Bylaw; and 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the Town of Olds deems it necessary and expedient to amend the Land 
Use Bylaw No. 01-23 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Town of Olds duly assembled enacts as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited as the Land Use Amending Bylaw No. 2023-22. 
 

2. Bylaw No. 01-23, being the Town of Olds Land Use Bylaw, is hereby amended as follows:  

 
In Schedule C, Central Commercial District (C1), Permitted Uses, by adding the following:  

Accessory dwelling unit for temporary residential use (Lots 9 & 10, Block 8, Plan 2186H only) 
 
3. This Bylaw comes into force on the date it is passed. 
 
 
 

Read for a first time on the ___ day of ___________, 2023 

Public Hearing held on the ___ day of ___________, 2023 

Read a second time on the ___ day of ___________, 2023 

Read a third and final time on the ___ day of ___________, 2023 

 
 
 
_____________________________          ___________________________________ 
Judy Dahl,      Brent Williams, 
Mayor               Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
SIGNED by the Chief Elected Official and the Chief Administrative Officer this ____ day of 
____________ 2023. 

127

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 1 of 3 

  
Bylaw No. 2023-32 

 

Request for Decision 
Bylaw No. 2023-32 Amendment to Vistas Area Structure Plan  
October 10, 2023   

 

RECOMMENDATION 
That a public hearing for Bylaw No. 2023-32 be held. 
That Council gives second reading to Bylaw No. 2023-32 as presented. 
That Council gives third reading to Bylaw No. 2023-32 as presented. 

STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
The Olds community is supported and enabled through skillful governance. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
1. Municipal Government Act – Chapter M-26, Part 17, Division 4 Section 634(1) a council may 

adopt, by bylaw, an area redevelopment plan. 
2. Municipal Government Act – Chapter M-26, Part 17, Division 5 Section 640(1) every 

municipality must pass a Land Use Bylaw. 
3. Municipal Government Act – Chapter M-26, Part 5, Division 9, Section 191(1) the power to 

pass a bylaw…includes a power to amend or repeal the bylaw. 

BACKGROUND  
Bylaw 2023-32 proposes to update the Vistas Area Structure Plan (ASP). The ASP was adopted 
in 2006 and received amendments in 2008. The landowner has proposed changes in order to 
update the ASP to their new desired development concept. 
 
The changes that have been made to the existing Vistas plan include: 
 

• Changing Phase 7 from R1 single-family detached zoning to R2/R3 multi-family zoning to 
facilitate the development of duplexes and/or townhomes. 
 

• Despite an increase in dwelling density, the overall projected population has decreased 
from 2834 to 2646 and the density from 44.3 people per ha to 42.6 people per ha. This is 
due to a decrease in average household size from 2.5 to 2.3 people per the 2021 census. 

 
• Adding a second option for possible secondary water alignment, identified as “Potential 

Loop Connection ‘A’.” The Town has an established utility right-of-way (URW) at this 
location and there is an existing sanitary wastewater line using this URW.  

 
MDP Policy 10.2 Residential Density for New Neighbourhoods states, “The target residential 
density for new neighbourhoods shall be an average that falls between 11 to 13 dwelling units per 
gross developable hectare… Residential densities that are higher than the above target shall be 
encouraged where there is sufficient capacity in the major municipal utility infrastructure.” The 
MDP encourages higher density targets for new neighbourhoods provided they satisfy municipal 
infrastructure requirements.  
 

128

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 2 of 3 

COMMUNICATION/PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 

Bylaw No. 2023-32 received first reading on September 11, 2023. A public hearing on the 
proposed bylaw is required prior to Council giving second reading. The public hearing was 
advertised in accordance with the Municipal Government Act Section 606. The proposed bylaw 
was also circulated to referral agencies and adjacent landowners for comment. 
 
To date, no comments have been received from the public or adjacent landowners regarding 
Bylaw No. 2023-32. 
 
The following comments have been received from referral agencies: 

• ATCO: No objections or concerns. 
• Alberta Health Services: No objections or concerns. 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☐ Operating  ☐ Capital ☒ Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. The Vistas Area Structure Plan boundary 
2. Amended Area Structure Plan as proposed by the developer  
3. Bylaw No. 2023-32 

 
Author: Kyle Sloan, Municipal Planner Date: September 28, 2023 

Manager Signature: James Crozier, Manager of Planning &  
                                 Infrastructure Date: 

CAO Signature: Brent 
Williams  Date: October 5, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

129

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 3 of 3 

 
The Vistas Area Structure Plan Boundary 

 
 
 
 
 

130

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



The Vistas - Olds, Alberta
NE 1/4 6-33-1-W5th
Area Structure Plan Report

Prepared for
Manor Investments Ltd.

Stantec Consulting Ltd. 

Approved Bylaw 2006-02

Amended 2023

The Vistas

131

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

i 

Table of Contents 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................. 1.1 
1.1 PURPOSE ........................................................................................................................ 1.1 
1.2 DEFINITION OF PLAN AREA ........................................................................................... 1.2 
1.3 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................ 1.2 

2.0 SITE CONTEXT & DEVELOPMENT CONSIDERATIONS ................................................ 2.1 
2.1 TOPOGRAPHY, SOILS & VEGETATION ......................................................................... 2.1 
2.2 HISTORICAL RESOURCES ............................................................................................. 2.1 
2.3 EXISTING FEATURES ..................................................................................................... 2.1 
2.4 EXISTING LAND USE ...................................................................................................... 2.1 
2.5 SURROUNDING DEVELOPMENT ................................................................................... 2.1 

3.0 DEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES & PRINCIPLES .............................................................. 3.1 
3.1 DEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES ........................................................................................ 3.1 

3.1.1 Residential ......................................................................................................... 3.1 
3.1.2 Municipal Reserves and Educational / Community Facilities .............................. 3.2 
3.1.3 Transportation .................................................................................................... 3.2 
3.1.4 Ecological Stewardship ...................................................................................... 3.2 

4.0 DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT ............................................................................................ 4.1 
4.1 NEIGHBOURHOOD UNIT ................................................................................................ 4.1 
4.2 RESIDENTIAL .................................................................................................................. 4.1 

4.2.1 Low Density Residential ..................................................................................... 4.1 
4.2.2 Medium Density Residential (R2 / R3) ................................................................ 4.1 
4.2.3 Commercial ........................................................................................................ 4.2 

4.3 PARKS AND OPEN SPACES ........................................................................................... 4.3 
4.3.1 School Central Park Site .................................................................................... 4.3 
4.3.2 Linear Park Sites ................................................................................................ 4.4 
4.3.3 Walkways and Multi-Use Trail ............................................................................ 4.4 
4.3.4 Utility Corridors and Stormwater Management Facilities..................................... 4.4 

4.4 TRANSPORTATION ......................................................................................................... 4.4 
4.4.1 Collector Roads .................................................................................................. 4.4 
4.4.2 Local Roads ....................................................................................................... 4.5 
4.4.3 Laneways ........................................................................................................... 4.5 

5.0 CONCEPTUAL SERVICING ............................................................................................. 5.1 
5.1 STORMWATER DRAINAGE ............................................................................................. 5.1 
5.2 SANITARY SERVICING.................................................................................................... 5.1 
5.3 WATER DISTRIBUTION ................................................................................................... 5.2 
5.4 SHALLOW UTILITIES ....................................................................................................... 5.2 

6.0 IMPLEMENTATION .......................................................................................................... 6.1 
6.1 DEVELOPMENT STAGING .............................................................................................. 6.1 
6.2 RE-DISTRICTING & SUBDIVISION .................................................................................. 6.1 

132

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

 1.1  

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 PURPOSE 

The purpose of The Vistas Area Structure Plan Report (The Vistas ASP) is to describe the land 
use framework and development objectives for the quarter section of land at the northwest end 
of Olds located north of Imperial Estates and west of 57 Avenue.  The Vistas property (NE ¼ of 
Section 6-33-1-W5) includes an area of approximately 64.3 hectares (158.8 acres) and 
identified by the Town as future residential development in the Municipal Development Plan.  

Stantec Consulting Ltd. on behalf of Manor Investments Ltd has prepared The Vistas ASP.  

Manor Investment’s commitment through the area structure plan is to develop a balanced 
community of residential and recreational opportunities with complimentary land uses.  In order 
to achieve this, Manor Investments intend to integrate the area with interconnected parks and 
open space linkages.  Together, these aspects will provide the Town of Olds with a unique area 
for community development. 

Approval of the area structure plan will provide the basis for proceeding with Manor 
Investments’ and the Town of Olds’ vision for this area.  The plan provides the opportunity to 
develop components of the overall vision in the initial phases of development through a variety 
of housing forms and lifestyles, and by beginning the interconnected multi-use trail system 
incorporated as an integral part of the overall development concept. 

The purpose of this document is to describe the land use pattern and development objectives 
for The Vistas ASP.  The Vistas ASP will implement the land use framework and development 
objectives by identifying the following: 

 the size and location of various land uses; 

 the alignment of roadways, multi-use trail system and lanes; 

 the open park system; 

 the proposed development density; 

 servicing concepts for deep utility servicing; and 

 the development staging sequence. 

The detailed design of each phase (redistrictings and plans of subdivision) will refine the 
concept presented by the Area Structure Plan for The Vistas development. 

133

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



THE VISTAS 
AREA STRUCTURE PLAN REPORT 
July 2023 

gcl \\ca0044-ppfss01\workgroup\1128\active\112871475-becker development\07-reports and studies\vistas area structure plan\2023\rpt_vista_asp_20230728 v1.1.doc 1.2 

1.2 DEFINITION OF PLAN AREA 

The Vistas ASP consists of land located within the NE ¼ Section 6-33-1-W5 and includes an 
area of approximately 64.3 hectares.  As shown on Figure 1.0 – Location Context, The Vistas 
ASP is defined by the following boundaries, within the Town of Olds. 

 North Boundary – Mountain View County,Town of Olds Boundary; 

 West Boundary – NW ¼ Section 6-33-1-W5M; 

 East Boundary – 57 Avenue;  

 South Boundary – Existing Country Residential – Imperial Estates. 
The Vistas ASP constitutes a logical planning unit with respect to identifiable plan boundaries 
and servicing considerations and is located entirely within the Town of Olds town limits. 

1.3 BACKGROUND 

Relevant Planning Documents: 

The following relevant documents have been reviewed and referenced in preparation of this 
Area Structure Plan: 

 The Town of Olds – Servicing Record Drawings; and 

 Town of Olds Municipal Development Plan (MDP). 

 Northwest Area Structure Plan. 

134

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



1.0

LOCATION PLAN

57
 A

VE
NU

E

PROPOSED
AREA

STRUCTURE
PLAN

IMPERIAL
ESTATES

46 STREET

#1100, 4900-50th Street, Red Deer, AB T4N1X7
Ph:(403) 341-3320 Fx:(403) 342-0969

N135

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
Figure No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Client/Project

AutoCAD SHX Text
Title

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR INVESTMENTS LTD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE VISTAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLDS, AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
July, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
112871475



57
 A

V
E

N
U

ENE1/4 - SEC 6 - 33 - 1 - W5M
LEGAL AREA = 62.29 Ha

2.0

SITE
TOPOGRAPHY

#1100, 4900-50th Street, Red Deer, AB T4N1X7
Ph:(403) 341-3320 Fx:(403) 342-0969

N

LEGEND

136

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
798.660m

AutoCAD SHX Text
797.886m

AutoCAD SHX Text
805.898m

AutoCAD SHX Text
805.629m

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACREAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACREAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACREAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.119m

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.052m

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.760m

AutoCAD SHX Text
167.804m

AutoCAD SHX Text
Figure No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Client/Project

AutoCAD SHX Text
Title

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE VISTAS SUBDIVISION STORMWATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER DRAINAGE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLDS, AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
July, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
112871475

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET - ANSI A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASP BOUNDARY



 

 2.1  

2.0 Site Context & Development Considerations 

2.1 TOPOGRAPHY, SOILS & VEGETATION 

As shown on Figure 3.0 – Existing Conditions, the topography of The Vistas lands slopes gently 
from the highest area in the north east of the plan down to the southwest and lowest area in the 
Plan.  The high to low elevations have a total difference of approximately 4.5 m. 

Soils in the area are underlain by silt or clay, underlain by shallow bedrock.  The soil conditions 
do not present any impediment to urban development.  This quarter section has remained as 
vacant agricultural land for a considerable length of time.  There is limited vegetation existing on 
the site aside from an existing stand of trees located along the north boundary of the plan area. 

 2.2 HISTORICAL RESOURCES 

There are no historical resources for this land identified in the current January 2001 publication 
(2nd Edition) of “A Listing of Significant Historical Sites and Areas” from the Alberta Historical 
Resources Foundation. 

2.3 EXISTING FEATURES 

There are three existing acreages located in this quarter section.  Two are located in the 
southeast corner and the third in the northeast corner of the plan. 

2.4 EXISTING LAND USE 

The subject area has been vacant agricultural land since the early 1900’s.  Utility right-of-ways 
are registered on the land for the Town of Olds sanitary sewer trunk, which parallels the west 
boundary in the southwest corner of the plan.  This property is currently zoned as urban reserve 
with the exception of two acreages in the southeast corner, which are zoned R1. 

2.5 SURROUNDING DEVELOPMENT 

The existing Imperial Estates neighbourhood is located directly south of the proposed The 
Vistas Development.  The adjacent lots are one acre in size and larger and are zoned R5A.  
There is also an existing church located directly to the southeast, which bounds the proposed 
development. 

The Town of Olds Wastewater Treatment Facility is located in the southwest corner of the 
quarter section to the west.  The remainder of this quarter section is vacant agricultural land. 

The lands to the east are also currently used for agricultural purposes with the exception of the 
two existing acreages, which bound 57 Avenue in the southwest corner.There is an existing 
intensive livestock operation located in the quarter section to the north.

137

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



2.0

SITE
TOPOGRAPHY

57
 A

VE
NU

E

#1100, 4900-50th Street, Red Deer, AB T4N1X7
Ph:(403) 341-3320 Fx:(403) 342-0969

N

LEGEND

138

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1028.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1028.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1027.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1027.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1026.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1026.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1026.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1026.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1025.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1025.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1024.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1024.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Figure No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Client/Project

AutoCAD SHX Text
Title

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE VISTAS SUBDIVISION STORMWATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER DRAINAGE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLDS, AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
July, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
112871475

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET - ANSI A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASP BOUNDARY



 

 3.1  

3.0 Development Objectives & Principles 

3.1 DEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES  

The Vistas Area Structure Plan has been prepared as a comprehensively planned residential 
neighbourhood taking advantage of both the natural topography, and local area attributes.  The 
main objectives of The Vistas ASP are: 

 to develop a plan consistent with the general intent and purpose of the Town of Olds 
Municipal Development Plan (MDP); 

 to provide a framework to deliver high quality, comprehensively planned residential areas 
by defining the general pattern and composition of land uses, linkages, servicing designs 
and development staging; 

 to ensure the implementation of the plan takes place in an orderly, phased manner. 

Development of the various land uses within The Vistas ASP is defined through the following 
general principles: 

3.1.1 Residential 

 Encourage a variety of housing types; including single detached housing, row housing and 
possibly multi-story apartment buildings.  All housing forms and options will recognize 
consumer preferences and be in conformance with municipal standards and policies set 
forth by the Town of Olds.  It is expected that a large percentage of the homes in this 
development will be mid size and larger. 

 Orient residential lots to take advantage of potential mountain views to the west. 

 Encourage pedestrian friendly streetscapes and building siting. 

 Provide direct and safe pedestrian linkages to the community nodes such as the open 
space areas, and the school site. 

 Locate residential development to take advantage of features such as stormwater 
management facilities, parks / open spaces and a school site. 

 Orient larger parcels of medium density residential development adjacent to the collector 
and / or major collector road system to provide easy access and, where appropriate, to 
provide a transitional land use between adjacent single family development and major 
roads. 

139

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



THE VISTAS 
AREA STRUCTURE PLAN REPORT 
July 2023 

gcl \\ca0044-ppfss01\workgroup\1128\active\112871475-becker development\07-reports and studies\vistas area structure plan\2023\rpt_vista_asp_20230728 v1.1.doc 3.2 

3.1.2 Municipal Reserves and Educational / Community Facilities 

 Provide a school and park site for educational and community association facilities within 
the neighbourhood and surrounding communities through the dedication of municipal 
reserves.  

 Locate and size these sites to address the student and overall populations generated within 
designated catchment areas. 

 Allow for the provision of dispersed park space within the neighbourhood to provide open 
space and opportunities for recreation for residents through the dedication of Municipal 
Reserves. 

3.1.3 Transportation 

 Provide a logical, safe and efficient transportation system within the plan area to address 
pedestrian, bicycle and other multi-use modes, and the transit / vehicular transportation 
needs of residents moving to, from and within The Vistas ASP as well as the adjacent 
areas. 

 Provide access to 57 Avenue via two collector roadway connections. 

 Provide non-vehicular circulation options throughout The Vistas area with special attention 
to linkages to the school / park site. 

 Minimize walking distances by creating an interconnected street network and providing 
walkways where roadway connections are not feasible. 

3.1.4 Ecological Stewardship 

 Develop land in an efficient manner and encourage intensive urban development. 

 Employ parallel land uses where possible by incorporating open spaces with the 
stormwater management facilities and the utility corridors to optimize the use of these 
areas. 

 Encourage naturalized landscaping on public and private lands to the extent acceptable to 
the Town of Olds to minimize environmental and economic costs associated with their 
maintenance. 

 Promote the development of open spaces and walkway linkages for pedestrian, bicycle and 
other multi-use travel, and connect them to the surrounding areas. 

 Support the Town of Olds directive to mandate energy efficient construction and other 
innovative building and infrastructure techniques. 

140

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

 4.1  

4.0 Development Concept 

4.1 NEIGHBOURHOOD UNIT 

The development concept for The Vistas ASP has been prepared in response to current and 
anticipated residential market trends within the Town of Olds and the Central Alberta region.  An 
analysis of these trends and an assessment of their implications assist in shaping the plan with 
respect to the type, size and location of various land uses. 

The Vistas ASP is comprised of 64.3 hectares of land and is bounded on the north by the 
Mountain View County boundary, to the east by 57 Avenue and future residential development, 
to the west by future development, and by existing residential development to the south.  These 
boundary conditions create a logical planning unit and the basis for the design as shown on 
Figure 4.0 – Development Concept.  The land use statistics and densities are represented in 
Table 1 and Table 2 following the Development Concept. 

4.2 RESIDENTIAL 

The majority of land within The Vistas ASP is intended for residential development.  A mix of low 
and medium density residential dwelling units is described and will be implemented based on 
market conditions and consumer preferences at the time of development.   

4.2.1 Low Density Residential 

As shown on Figure 4.0, consideration has been given to the location of low density residential 
in proximity to the amenities offered by the stormwater management facilities, school / park sites 
and utility corridors.  Within the low density residential areas identified in the plan, housing forms 
will consist of single detached housing catering to a variety of lot and home sizes.  These lots 
will typically have an average lot depth of 36 meters.  The lots contemplated along the southern 
boundary will be larger to provide a transition between the existing acreages to the south.   

Large acreage style lots are proposed directly north of the two existing acreages, located on 57 
Avenue at the southeast corner of the plan. 

Where it can be accommodated by the grade of the land, lots will be designed for walkout 
basements. 

4.2.2 Medium Density Residential (R2 / R3) 

Three pockets of multi family areas are identified in the plan.  The first is situated along the east 
boundary of the Plan.  A second potential site for multi-family is identified in the northwest 
corner and a third along the west boundary..  Potential product type will be determined by 
market conditions, each site could be built with duplexes, row houses, or multi-story buildings.  It 
is anticipated that the east parcel of multi family will have apartment style development directly 
adjacent to 57 Avenue and transition to duplex or row housing style development in the interior 

141

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



SCHOOL/CENTRAL
PARK SITE

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 R

E
S

E
R

V
E

STORM DETENTION
POND (1.0ha MR)

LEGEND

Play Structure

Single Family

Open Space (P.U.L.) 

R2/R3 Multi Family
Trail SystemOpen Space (M.R.)
ASP Boundary

4.0

DEVELOPMENT
CONCEPT

Existing Acerage

#1100, 4900-50th Street, Red Deer, AB T4N1X7
Ph:(403) 341-3320 Fx:(403) 342-0969

N

142

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACREAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACREAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACREAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Figure No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Client/Project

AutoCAD SHX Text
Title

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR INVESTMENTS LTD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE VISTAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLDS, AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
July, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
112871475



THE VISTAS  
AREA STRUCTURE PLAN 
July 2023 

gcl \\ca0044-ppfss01\workgroup\1128\active\112871475-becker development\07-reports and studies\vistas area structure plan\2023\rpt_vista_asp_20230728 v1.1.doc 4.2 

of the subdivision. Each parcel could be developed with public or private roadways and will be 
determined as part of a future development permit application.  

The multi family sites are ideally situated to provide efficient pedestrian access and vehicle 
access throughout the development and to the rest of the Town.  This is accommodated by 
direct access to collector roadways and the close proximity of the linear park system.  

4.2.3 Commercial 

Although there is no commercial specifically identified on the Plan Concept, as allowed within 
the Town’s R2 / R3 zoning as a discretionary use, there may be consideration for a small 
neighborhood commercial site within the R2 / R3 areas adjacent to 57 Avenue.  This would be 
driven by market conditions at the time of developing these areas. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Table 1 

Area Structure Plan 
Land Use Statistics 

 
 Area (ha) 

 
% of GDA 

Gross Area 64.3 100 
3 existing acreages 1.99  
 
Net Developable Area 

 
62.31 

 

 
Low Density Residential – single family detached 

 
28.96 

 
46.5% 

Medium Density Residential (R2) – Duplex/Townhome 10.77 17.3% 
Medium Density Residential (R3) - Apartment 3.38 5.4% 
Open Space – Municipal Reserve 6.53 10.5% 
Parks and Open Space (M.R. and P.U.L.) 1.43 2.3% 
Roads and Lanes 11.24 18.0% 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

143

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



THE VISTAS  
AREA STRUCTURE PLAN 
July 2023 

gcl \\ca0044-ppfss01\workgroup\1128\active\112871475-becker development\07-reports and studies\vistas area structure plan\2023\rpt_vista_asp_20230728 v1.1.doc 4.3 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Table 2 

 
Residential Units and Population 

 
Land Use Area (ha) Density Density Population 
  units/ha persons/unit  
 
R1 – Single family detached 

 
28.96 

 
18 

 
2.3 

 
1199 

R2/R3 – Medium density* 10.77 38 2.3 941 
R3 – medium density** 3.38 65 2.3 505 
     
Total    2646 
     
Average Population    42.6 per ha* 
     
* Medium density is proposed as duplex, townhomes or condominium development. 
** Two parcels located along 57 Avenue is identified as apartment style development.  
*** Density is determined based on proposed housing type and Land Use Bylaw Regulations. Density may differ 
based on final lotting and constructed housing type.   

____________________________________________________________________ 

4.3 PARKS AND OPEN SPACES 

4.3.1 School Central Park Site 

Both the Red Deer Catholic School Board and Chinook’s Edge School Division have indicated a 
need for new school sites in the Town of Olds within five to fifteen years.  In order to facilitate 
this future need, one school site has been identified in The Vistas ASP.  This site is 
approximately ten acres in size and will provide four acres for the building site plus an additional 
six acres to meet the recreational needs of the school and the entire community. 

The school site / central park is adjacent to the main collector roadway.  Therefore, efficient 
transportation linkage is provided for the many students that may be bused or dropped off at this 
school site. 

This site is large enough to accommodate the school site plus at least one soccer field or ball 
diamond plus other recreational uses such as playgrounds, hockey rinks, or multi-use pads.  
The ultimate recreational uses and configurations will be determined, in the future, when this 
site develops. 

There is a small parcel of residential identified at the north east corner of the school/parksite.  
During negotiation of the Development Agreement, it will be determined if this parcel should 
remain as residential or be converted to park space.   

  

144

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



THE VISTAS  
AREA STRUCTURE PLAN 
July 2023 

gcl \\ca0044-ppfss01\workgroup\1128\active\112871475-becker development\07-reports and studies\vistas area structure plan\2023\rpt_vista_asp_20230728 v1.1.doc 4.4 

4.3.2 Linear Park Sites 

There are two linear parks planned for this neighbourhood.  The first is an east/west connection 
between 57 Avenue and the school site.  The second is a north / south park that links the 
existing development to the south to the school site. 

In order to provide a recreational amenity early in the development, a small parkette has been 
included at the north end of phase one. This park will be developed with a play structure to 
service phase one as well as future phases. 

4.3.3 Walkways and Multi-Use Trail 

The Vistas ASP is designed with an extensive neighbourhood pathway system to convey 
pedestrian and bike traffic throughout the neighbourhood and linking to adjacent major 
collectors roadways, adjacent developments, and the school / park site. 

As shown on Figure 4.0, the proposed lineal park will be utilized for a multi-purpose path, which 
will typically be 2.50 m wide and paved with asphalt.  This path will link with the existing 
neighborhood and pathway to the south as well as the school site, 57 Avenue, and the future 
development, to the west and east. 

4.3.4 Utility Corridors and Stormwater Management Facilities 

The stormwater management facility proposed in the southwest corner of the plan could be 
utilized for recreational activities.  This facility will be designed to ensure a safe environment for 
all users while maintaining the integrity of the stormwater control function for which it is 
designed.  It is anticipated that this facility will be a dry landscaped area and would only contain 
water during extreme rainfall events.  The remainder of the time this facility will function as any 
other landscaped park. 

4.4 TRANSPORTATION 

The system of roads proposed for The Vistas neighbourhood provides its residents and the 
surrounding, traveling public with safe and efficient access from this area. 

4.4.1 Collector Roads 

Access to this development is provided via 57 Avenue, which is an existing major collector 
roadway that links this proposed development to Highway 27 (46 Street) and the rest of the 
Town.  Until development proceeds to the west, this is the only access to and from the Vistas 
Lands.  A 5.0 meter road widening has already been provided along the boundary of this 
development to facilitate future improvements to this roadway. 

Two collector roadways are proposed for this development.  The first will connect to 57 Avenue 
at the south end of the Plan and will then extend westerly to connect to future development to 
the west.   

145

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



THE VISTAS  
AREA STRUCTURE PLAN 
July 2023 

gcl \\ca0044-ppfss01\workgroup\1128\active\112871475-becker development\07-reports and studies\vistas area structure plan\2023\rpt_vista_asp_20230728 v1.1.doc 4.5 

A second collector connection to 57 Avenue will be provided at the north end of the Plan.  This 
collector road will swing southerly and connect to the south collector road at the southwest 
corner of the Plan. 

The proposed collector roads will have a carriage width of 11.0 meters and a right-of-way width 
of 20.0 meters, and all collector roads will be designed as per Town of Olds design standards. 

4.4.2 Local Roads 

The system of local roads has been planned to provide access to individual development cells 
while at the same time discouraging outside traffic from short cutting through local roads.  Local 
roads will have a 9.5 meter wide carriage way and a 15.0 meter wide right-of-way for any lots 
that have rear lanes.  For lots that do not have rear lanes the local roads will be 10.5 meters 
wide complete with a 17.0 meter wide right-of-way.  All local roads proposed will have 
monolithic curb and gutter sidewalks on one side of the roadway.  

At the north end of the plan a roadway reserve has been identified as a potential connection to 
the land, to the north.  Once development proceeds in this area, an assessment should be done 
to evaluate the likelihood of the lands to the north ever developing.  If not, then consideration 
should be given to modifying the plan and changing this parcel to residential.  If required in the 
future, this parcel should be landscaped until needed. 

4.4.3 Laneways 

Only two lanes are currently identified in the plan, which are both located in the southeast 
corner of the neighbourhood.  As per town guidelines this lane will be 6.0 meters wide, and this 
lane will be paved with asphalt. 

Lanes will be maintained for a two year period by the Developer until Final Acceptance by the 
Town. 

Lots that do not have rear lanes, when backing onto another lot, will be constructed with a 
concrete drainage swale to convey drainage between these lots.  At the detailed design stage a 
detail for this swale will be developed in consultation with the Town.  This detail will likely 
include an easement for maintenance access for the Town. 

146

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

 5.1  

5.0 Conceptual Servicing 

5.1 STORMWATER DRAINAGE 

One large Stormwater Management Facility (SWMF) will be incorporated into the layout for The 
Vistas Plan to properly manage and control major storm events.  This facility will be located in 
the southwest corner of the neighbourhood.  This facility will be sized to accommodate 
stormwater detention for 1:100 year storm events, and will be a dry storm detention pond that 
could be utilized for recreational use. Once a detailed servicing study is completed for The 
Vistas, the stormwater management requirements will be confirmed and if necessary this 
detention pond increased or reduced in size, or possibly a second small detention pond 
incorporated into the school site.  

All storm sewers within the development will be sized to accommodate a 1 in 5 year stormwater 
event with the stormwater being conveyed on the streets to the stormwater detention facility 
during extreme stormwater events.  An existing ditch located in the adjacent quarter section will 
be extended to the southwest corner of this development to convey stormwater from the storm 
detention pond.  This stormwater will discharge into this ditch at pre-development runoff rates. 

All stormwater facilities and storm sewers will be designed in accordance with the Town of Olds 
Design Guidelines and will be turned over to the Town of Olds after a two-year maintenance 
period.  The storm system will also be designed to accommodate weeping tile connections to 
the homes either via a shallow or deep storm connection.   

As discussed with the Town of Olds, 1.0 hectare of municipal reserve credit will be granted for 
the storm detention facility.  The remainder of this facility will be zoned as a public utility lot. 

The major drainage and the overall storm system are shown in Figure 5.0.  

5.2 SANITARY SERVICING 

There is an existing 375 mm sanitary trunk that parallels the south boundary of the proposed 
development.  There is also an existing 600 mm sanitary trunk that parallels the west boundary 
at the southwest corner of the Plan.  Both of these gravity lines have excess capacity and a 
connection is contemplated to both of these trunks. 

In order to service this development as well as future development to the east a 450 mm 
sanitary trunk will be extended from the existing 600 mm trunk in the southwest corner of the 
Plan, along the collector road alignment, to the northeast corner of the development.  This trunk 
will eventually be pushed across 57 Avenue. 

In order to service the first phase of development a connection will be made to the existing 375 
mm trunk just west of the church.  The remainder of the development will be serviced off of the 
sanitary trunks located in the collector roads. 

147

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



SCHOOL/CENTRAL
PARK SITE

STORM DETENTION
POND (1.0ha MR)

5.0

PROPOSED STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT PLAN

#1100, 4900-50th Street, Red Deer, AB T4N1X7
Ph:(403) 341-3320 Fx:(403) 342-0969

N
C

O
N

N
E

C
T 

TO
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 D

IT
C

H
O

N
 L

A
N

D
S

 T
O

 T
H

E
 W

E
S

T

LEGEND

148

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
Figure No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Client/Project

AutoCAD SHX Text
Title

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR INVESTMENTS LTD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE VISTAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLDS, AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
July, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
112871475

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET - ANSI A

AutoCAD SHX Text
57 AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM PIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAJOR OVERLAND DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE AND FLOW DIRECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASP BOUNDARY



57
 A

V
E

N
U

E

CONNECT TO EXISTING
SANITARY SEWER

CONNECT
TO EXISTING
SANITARY

SEWER

EXISTING
375mm TRUNK

EXISTING
600mm
TRUNK

POTENTIAL
REGIONAL

SEWER
ALIGNMENT

POTENTIAL
REGIONAL

SEWER
ALIGNMENT

6.0

PROPOSED SANITARY
SEWER PLAN

#1100, 4900-50th Street, Red Deer, AB T4N1X7
Ph:(403) 341-3320 Fx:(403) 342-0969

N

LEGEND

149

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
Figure No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Client/Project

AutoCAD SHX Text
Title

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR INVESTMENTS LTD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE VISTAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLDS, AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
July, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
112871475

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SANITARY PIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE AND FLOW DIRECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASP BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY PIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY TRUNK MAIN



THE VISTAS  
AREA STRUCTURE PLAN 
July 2023 

gcl \\ca0044-ppfss01\workgroup\1128\active\112871475-becker development\07-reports and studies\vistas area structure plan\2023\rpt_vista_asp_20230728 v1.1.doc 5.2 

The majority of sanitary pipes in this development will be 200 mm diameter except for the 
sanitary trunks in the collector roadways.  More detail on sanitary system will be provided when 
the detailed engineering stage is completed. 

All sanitary sewer facilities will be designed in accordance with the Town of Olds Design 
Guidelines and will be turned over to the Town of Olds after the Developer has maintained them 
for two years.  The overall sanitary sewer system is conceptual and is illustrated in Figure 6.0. 

5.3 WATER DISTRIBUTION 

There is an existing 250 mm watermain located in 57 Avenue, which will be utilized as the main 
water feed for the proposed development.  This connection will be adjacent to the church and 
extended north up 57 Avenue to service The Vistas.  This 250 mm main will then be extended 
west along the south collector road and then northeast up the other collector roadway. 

Eventually a second feed will be provided to the Town of Olds with the extension of a new water 
trunk, which will be extended from the east side of town.  This trunk will connect into the 
development at the northeast corner of the plan where the collector road connects to 57 
Avenue.  Similarly another loop connection to the development is contemplated in the southwest 
corner of the development. Two potential southwest water alignments been identified through 
the neighbourhood of Conerstone. The final alignment will be determined during detailed design 
of the associated phase.  

The overall water distribution system needed to service the plan area is shown conceptually on 
Figure 7.0.   

All watermains will be designed in accordance with the Town of Olds Design Guidelines and will 
be turned over to the Town of Olds after a two-year maintenance period. 

5.4 SHALLOW UTILITIES 

There are no major servicing concerns regarding shallow utilities (gas, power, telephone super-
net and cable).  All shallow utilities will be extensions of those already in place in adjacent 
developments to the south.  

Shallow utility servicing in the form of electricity, gas, cable, conduit for super-net and telephone 
will follow typical Town of Olds standards including shallow bury within easements paralleling 
the road rights-of-way.   

150

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



151

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

 6.1  

6.0 Implementation 

6.1 DEVELOPMENT STAGING 

Infrastructure to service The Vistas development will be extended from the south and west into 
this development.  Each successive stage will be developed with the logical economical 
extension of these municipal services with the intent of meeting the needs of the regional and 
local housing market. 

Development phasing will proceed from the southeast corner of the plan and extend west until 
the southern half of the quarter section is developed.  Then development will begin in the north 
half of the development starting on the west side.  The phasing boundaries, as shown on Figure 
8.0, are conceptual, and may vary when the actual re-districting and subdivision applications are 
made. 

6.2 RE-DISTRICTING & SUBDIVISION 

Re-districting and subdivision applications to conform to the land use designations described in 
The Vistas ASP will be undertaken as necessary.  Guided by the Town of Olds MDP and The 
Vistas ASP, re-districting's and subdivisions will be required to adhere to the Town of Olds Land 
Use Bylaw and the informational requirements necessary for each application. 

152

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

TOWN OF OLDS 
BYLAW NO. 2023-32 

 
A bylaw of the Town of Olds, in the Province of Alberta, pursuant to provisions of the Municipal 
Government Act, being Chapter M-26 of the revised statutes of Alberta 2000 and amendments 
thereto, to provide for the amendment of the Vistas Areas Structure Plan, Bylaw No. 2006-02 
 
WHEREAS Section 634 of the Municipal Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000 
Chapter M-26 and amendments thereto, allows Council of a Municipality to adopt an Area 
Redevelopment Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS Section 191 of the Municipal Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000 
Chapter M-26 and amendments  thereto, provides the Municipality with the authority to amend a 
bylaw; and 
 
WHEREAS Council adopted the Vistas Area Structure Plan to guide the future growth and 
development of lands within NE 6-33-1-5, LSD 4; 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the Town of Olds deems it necessary and expedient to amend the 
Vistas Area Structure Plan, Bylaw 2006-02; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Town of Olds duly assembled enacts as follows: 

1. That Section 4.2.2 Medium Density Residential (R2/R3) be replaced with the following text: 
 

Three pockets of multi family areas are identified in the plan. The first is situated along 
the east boundary of the Plan. A second potential site for multi-family is identified in the 
northwest corner and a third along the west boundary. Potential product type will be 
determined by market conditions, each site could be built with duplexes, row houses, or 
multi-story buildings. It is anticipated that the east parcel of multi family will have 
apartment style development directly adjacent to 57 Avenue and transition to duplex or 
row housing style development in the interior of the subdivision. Each parcel could be 
developed with public or private roadways and will be determined as part of a future 
development permit application. 

 
The multi family sites are ideally situated to provide efficient pedestrian access and 
vehicle access throughout the development and to the rest of the Town. This is 
accommodated by direct access to collector roadways and the close proximity of the 
linear park system. 

2. That Section 5.3 Water Distribution be replaced with the following text: 
 

There is an existing 250 mm watermain located in 57 Avenue, which will be utilized as 
the main water feed for the proposed development. This connection will be adjacent to 
the church and extended north up 57 Avenue to service The Vistas. This 250 mm main 
will then be extended west along the south collector road and then northeast up the 
other collector roadway. 
 
Eventually a second feed will be provided to the Town of Olds with the extension of a 
new water trunk, which will be extended from the east side of town. This trunk will 
connect into the development at the northeast corner of the plan where the collector 

153

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

road connects to 57 Avenue. Similarly another loop connection to the development is 
contemplated in the southwest corner of the development. Two potential southwest 
water alignments been identified through the neighbourhood of Cornerstone. The final 
alignment will be determined during detailed design of the associated phase. 
 
The overall water distribution system needed to service the plan area is shown 
conceptually on Figure 7.0. 
 
All watermains will be designed in accordance with the Town of Olds Design Guidelines 
and will be turned over to the Town of Olds after a two-year maintenance period. 

3. That Figure 4.0 is replaced with the attached Schedule A. 

4. That Figure 7.0 is replaced with the attached Schedule B. 

5. That Table 1 is replaced with the table contained in the attached Schedule C. 

6. That Table 2 is replaced with the table contained in the attached Schedule D. 
 
 
7. This Bylaw comes into force on the date it is passed. 

 
 
 

Read for a first time on the ____ day of _______________, 2023 
 
Public Hearing held on the ____ day of _______________, 2023 
 
Read a second time on the ____ day of _______________, 2023 
 
Read a third and final time on the ____ day of ____________, 2023 
 

 
 
 
________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Judy Dahl,  Brent Williams, 
Mayor  Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
SIGNED by the Chief Elected Official and the Chief Administrative Officer this ____ day of 
___________________ 2023. 
  

154

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Schedule A of Bylaw No. 2023-32 

 
 

155

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Schedule B of Bylaw No. 2023-32 

 

156

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Schedule C of Bylaw No. 2023-32 
 

Table 1 
 

Area Structure Plan 
Land Use Statistics 

 

 Area (ha) % of GDA 

Gross Area 64.3 100 

 3 existing acreages  1.99  
   

Net Developable Area 62.31  
Low Density Residential – single family detached 28.96 46.5% 

Medium Density Residential (R2) – Duplex/Townhome 10.77 17.3% 

Medium Density Residential (R3) – Apartment 3.38 5.4 

Open Space – Municipal Reserve 6.53 10.5% 

Parks and Open Space (M.R. and P.U.L.) 1.43 2.3% 

Roads and Lanes 11.24 18.0% 
 
 

Schedule D of Bylaw No. 2023-32 
 

Table 2 
 

Residential Units and Population 
 

Land Use Area (ha) Density 
units/ha 

Density 
persons/ unit  Population 

R1 – Single family detached 28.96  18 2.3 1199 
R2/R3 – Medium density* 10.77 38 2.3 941 
R3 – Medium density** 3.38 65 2.3 505 
Total    2646 

Average Population    42.6 per 
ha*** 

 
*Medium density is proposed as duplex, townhomes or condominium development. 
**Two parcels located along 57 Avenue is identified as apartment style development. 
***Density is determined based on proposed housing type and Land Use Bylaw regulations. 
Density may differ based on final lotting and constructed housing type. 

157

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 1 of 3 

  
Bylaw No. 2023-34 

 
 

Request for Decision 
 
 Bylaw No. 2023-34 – Amendment to Land Use Bylaw 
 

  October 10, 2023 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That Council gives first reading to Bylaw No. 2023-34 as presented; and 
That Council sets Monday, November 13, 2023, at 1:00pm in Council Chambers as the 
date, time and place for a Public Hearing on Bylaw No. 2023-34. 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
In Council’s Strategic Plan for 2022-2032, the second strategic goal is: “The Olds community is 
supported and enabled through skillful governance.” 
LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
1. Municipal Government Act – Chapter M-26, Part 17, Division 5 Section 640(1) every 

municipality must pass a Land Use Bylaw. 
2. Municipal Government Act – Chapter M-26, Part 5, Division 9, Section 191(1) the power to 

pass a bylaw…includes a power to amend or repeal the bylaw. 
PROPOSAL  
The Town has received an application to change the designation of two lots located on 4218 46 
Ave (Lots 23 & 24, Block 56, Plan 4227GH), in the northeast industrial area from the Direct Control 
7 (DC7) land use district to the Light Industrial District (I1). This change is presented as an 
amendment to the Land Use Bylaw 01-23. 
BACKGROUND  
Bylaw 2023-03 rezoned the subject parcels from I1 to DC-7 to facilitate the tenancy of a cannabis 
company in this multi-unit industrial building. That tenant did not move in, but the zoning has 
remained. Since then, multiple development permit applications for new occupants in the building 
have required Council approval due to being in a direct control district, while administration would 
have been able to approve them in the general light industrial district. The landowner has now 
applied to rezone back to I1 in order to simplify the development permit process for future 
industrial tenants.  
COMMUNICATION/PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 
A public hearing is required prior to considering second and third reading of the Bylaw. The 
proposed Bylaw will be advertised in accordance with the Municipal Government Act to allow the 
public an opportunity to comment. Letters will be sent to adjacent landowners and the proposed 
bylaw will be circulated to referral agencies for comment. A more detailed report will be provided 
by Administration at the public hearing. 
RISK/CONSEQUENCES 
1. Council may request further information from Administration prior to proceeding with first 

reading of the Bylaw.  
2. Council may provide direction to Administration on changes to the proposed Bylaw with the 

amended Bylaw coming before Council for first reading at a later date. 
 

158

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 2 of 3 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
N/A 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Lots 23 & 24, Block 56, Plan 4227GH Aerial Photo 
2. Bylaw No. 2023-34 
 
Author:  Kyle Sloan, Municipal Planner Date: October 2, 2023 

Manager Signature: James Crozier, Manager of Planning & 
Infrastructure Date: October 3, 2023 

CAO Signature: Brent Williams Date: October 5, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

159

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 3 of 3 

Attachment 1: Lots 23 & 24, Block 56, Plan 4227GH - Aerial Photo (2021) 

Subject Property 

160

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

TOWN OF OLDS 
BYLAW NO. 2023-34 

 
A bylaw of the Town of Olds, in the Province of Alberta, pursuant to provisions of the Municipal 
Government Act, being Chapter M-26 of the revised statutes of Alberta 2000 and amendments 
thereto, to provide for the amendment of the Land Use Bylaw No. 01-23 
 
WHEREAS Section 640(1) of the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M-26 of the 
Revised Statues of Alberta 2000, and amendments thereto, provides that every municipality 
must pass a land use bylaw; and 
 
WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000 Chapter M-26 and 
amendments thereto, permit a Council by bylaw to amend the Land Use Bylaw; and 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the Town of Olds deems it necessary and expedient to amend the 
Land Use Bylaw No. 01-23 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Town of Olds duly assembled enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw may be cited as the Land Use Amending Bylaw 2023-34 
 
2. Bylaw 01-23, being the Town of Olds Land Use Bylaw, is hereby amended 

 
a. That the Land Use District Map, being Schedule A of the Land Use Bylaw No. 

01-23, be amended to change the designation of Lots 23 and 24, Block 56, Plan 
4227GH from Direct Control District 7 (DC7) to Light Industrial District (I1) as 
shown on the attached map (Appendix A). 

 
b. That Schedule C: Direct Control District 7 (DC7) be amended to remove the 

following legal land description and map: 
 

Lot 23 and 24, Block 56, Plan 4227GH as shown on the sketch below, is designated Direct 
Control 7 (DC7). 
 

 
3. This Bylaw comes into force on the date it is passed. 

161

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Read for a first time on the ____ day of _______________, 2023 
 
Public Hearing held on the ____ day of _______________, 2023 
 
Read a second time on the ____ day of _______________, 2023 
 
Read a third and final time on the ____ day of ____________, 2023 

 
 
________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Judy Dahl, Mayor  Chief Administrative Officer 
 
SIGNED by the Chief Elected Official and the Chief Administrative Officer this ____ day of 
___________________ 2023. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

162

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Schedule A of Bylaw No. 2023-34 
 

Change in Land Use Bylaw Designation for Lots 23 and 24, Block 56,Plan 4227GH 
 

 

163

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Bylaw 2023-35 Ad Hoc Council Committee 

Request for Decision 
 

  Bylaw 2023-35 Ad Hoc Council Committee 
 

October 10, 2023    
 

RECOMMENDATION 
1. That the Council Ad Hoc Committee Bylaw 2023-35 be given first reading. 
OR 
2. That council consider making all three readings to the Committee bylaw.  

 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance. 
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships. 
 
LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
Municipal Government Act 
 
BACKGROUND 
On October 2, 2023, the Council P&P Committee reached a unanimous agreement to initiate a 
comprehensive review of the Council Policies and Priorities Committee. To carry out this task, an Ad 
Hoc Council Committee will be assembled. As outlined in Section 145 of the MGA, councils have the 
authority to enact bylaws governing the establishment, functions, and procedures of council 
committees. 
 
The primary objective of the Committee will be to thoroughly assess the bylaw governing the Council 
Policies and Priorities Committee, along with evaluating its functionality. Subsequently, the committee 
will present its recommendations to the Council during an upcoming regular meeting, prior to January 
31, 2024.  
 
Presently, the Ad Hoc Committee bylaw, designated as 2023-35, is introduced for its first reading 
before the council. Input from council members regarding the committee’s goals and desired outcomes 
is actively sought. While there is an option to proceed with all readings during this meeting, it is 
contingent upon unanimous consent for a third reading motion if the Council decides to consider all 
three readings in a single session.    

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☒ Operating  ☐ Capital ☐ Not Applicable 
Details: Council expenses related to committees are funded in the Council budget.  
 
KEY MESSAGES  
Regularly reviewing committee bylaws is essential to affirm their relevance and pinpoint any that may 
have become obsolete due to lack of necessity, action, or consequence.  

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Bylaw 2023-35 Ad Hoc Council Committee 

 
CAO Review: Brent Williams  Date: October 5, 2023 

 

164

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 
TOWN OF OLDS 
Bylaw 2023-35 

 
BEING A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF OLDS ESTABLISHING AN AD HOC  

COUNCIL COMMITTEE TO REVIEW THE COUNCIL POLICIES AND PRIORITIES 
COMMITTEE BYLAW 

 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
WHEREAS section 145 of the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, c. M-26 (the MGA) 
provides that a council may pass bylaws in relation to the establishment and functions of council 
committees and the procedures to be followed by council committees; 
 
WHEREAS section 146(a) of the MGA provides that a council committee may consist entirely of 
councillors; 
 
WHEREAS Council wishes to establish an Ad Hoc Council Committee to review the Council 
Policies and Priorities Committee Bylaw 2022-20 and the functionality of the Policies and 
Priorities Committee;  
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Olds, in the Province of Alberta, in open meeting 
assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
TITLE:   This Bylaw may be referred to as the ‘Ad Hoc Council Committee.’ 
 
Name and Composition: 
1. (1) The ‘Ad Hoc Council Committee’ (the Committee) is established as a council 

committee. 
     (2) There shall be a maximum of three elected officials appointed to the Ad Hoc Council 

Committee. 
 
Staff Support: 
2. (1) The Chief Administrative Officer (CAO), or their designate, is the principal advisor to the 

Committee. Attendance of specific municipal staff at meetings of the Committee is at the 
discretion of the CAO. 

 
Authority: 
3. (1) The Committee is advisory in nature, making recommendations to Council by way of 

motion/resolution to Council at a regular or special council meeting on matters related to 
the Town of Olds Council Policies and Priorities Committee and the Town of Olds 
Council Policies and Priorities Committee Bylaw. 

 
Frequency of meetings: 
4. (1) Meetings will be held at the call of the Chair. 
    (2) The Committee shall complete the review by January 31, 2024. 

 
Chairperson: 
5. (1) The Chair shall be chosen from the appointed officials. 
     
Regulations: 
6. (1) Committee meetings are to comply with the provisions that are applicable to council 

committee meetings as prescribed in the MGA, as well as adhere to the Town of Olds 
Council and Committee Procedural Bylaw and Town of Olds Policies.  

165

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Bylaw 2023-35 Ad Hoc Council Committee  
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
6. (2) The Committee meetings shall be open to the public, subject to the right of the 

Committee to close all or part of their meetings to the public in accordance with section 
197 of the MGA. 

 
6. (3) Minute recording will take place at each meeting of the Committee and will be 

maintained as an official record of the Town of Olds. 
 
Mandate:  
7.  The Committee shall review and make recommendations to Council in the following areas: 
 (a)  Town of Olds Council Policies and Priorities Committee Bylaw 2022-20; and 
 
 (b) matters related to the Town of Olds Council Policies & Priorities Committee.  
  
Order of Business: 
8. The business of the Committee intended to be dealt with shall be stated in the agenda in the 
following order: 

1. Call to order 
a) Added Items 
b) Adoption of the agenda 

2. Adoption of Previous Minutes 
3. Committee & Bylaw Review  
4. Adjournment 

 
Quorum:   
9. MGA quorum requirements will prevail for the Committee. 
 
Termination Date: 
10. The Committee is slated for dissolution effective February 1, 2024.  
 
Effective Date: 
11.  This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon receipt of third reading and being duly 
signed. 
  
 
Read a first time this ___ day of ______ 2023. 
Read a second time this ___ day of ______ 2023. 
Read a third time this ___ day of ______ 2023. 
 
 
 
_______________________________  ___________________________________ 
Judy Dahl,       Brent Williams, 
Mayor       Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
SIGNED by the Chief Elected Official and the Chief Administrative Officer this ___ day of 
______ 2023. 
 
 

166

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Council Policies and Priorities Committee 

Request for Decision 
 

 Council Policies and Priorities Committee  
 

October 10, 2023    
 

RECOMMENDATION  
Dependent on the outcome of agenda item 4D) Ad Hoc Council Committee Bylaw; this 
agenda item may need to be tabled and brought back to a future council meeting. 
 
That council table this matter and direct administration to bring it forward at a future 
meeting.  

OR 

That the following members of Council be appointed to the Ad Hoc Council Committee to 
review the Council Policies and Priorities Committee bylaw: _____________, 
_______________, and ______________  
 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance. 
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships. 
 
LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
Municipal Government Act 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the ongoing effort to streamline processes, Council has identified the importance of revisiting 
the objectives of the Council Policies and Priorities Committee. To address this, an Ad Hoc 
Council Committee is proposed with the specific aim of conducting a comprehensive review of 
both the bylaw governing the Committee and the operational aspects of the committee itself. The 
ultimate objective is to furnish the Council with well-informed recommendations, and this 
presentation is to take place at an upcoming regular council meeting prior to January 31, 2024. 
No P&P meetings will be held until the committee has finalized its work. 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☒ Operating  ☐ Capital ☐ Not Applicable 
Details: Council expenses related to committees are funded in the Council budget.  
 
KEY MESSAGES 
Reviewing the effectiveness of Town processes will help us ensure we are serving the public to 
the best of our abilities. This ad hoc committee will provide recommendations to Council on the 
Policies and Priorities Committee, relating to its overall effectiveness.  

ATTACHMENTS – N/A 

CAO Review:  Date: 

 
 

167

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Small Business Week Sponsorship 

Request for Decision 
Small Business Week Sponsorship 
October 10, 2023   

 

RECOMMENDATION 
That Council approves the request for sponsorship in the amount of $750 to the Olds & District 
Chamber of Commerce for the Small Business Week Kick-off breakfast. 
 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance.  
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships.  
Sound fiscal practices are balanced with a commitment to prioritizing value for our citizens. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
Administration reviewed the request to ensure it meets basic criteria and required information. 
per policy 803C Requests for Donations, Sponsorships and Promotional Items. 

BACKGROUND 

BDC Small Business Week is an annual celebration of entrepreneurship that the Business 
Development Bank of Canada (BDC) has organized for many years.   
The Olds Chamber of Commerce has asked for Co-Sponsorship for the Kickoff Breakfast for 
Small Business Week. As per policy 803C any request exceeding $500 must be brought to the 
Council. The Chief Administrative Officer has the authority to approve up to $500. 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☒ Operating  ☐ Capital ☐ Not Applicable 
Details: The $750 sponsorship will come from the Mountain View Power budget. 
 
KEY MESSAGES 
Mountain View Power’s mandate includes community support via economic initiatives. 
The Chamber of Commerce plays an essential role in supporting our business 
community and overall economic health.  

ATTACHMENTS – n/a 
 
CAO Review: Brent Williams Date:  October 6, 2023 

 
 

168

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Olds Housing Needs Assessment 

Request for Decision 
Olds Housing Needs Assessment 
October 10, 2023   

 

RECOMMENDATION 
That Council accepts the Olds Housing Needs Assessment (September 2023) as 
presented.  
 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance.  
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships.  
Sound fiscal practices are balanced with a commitment to prioritizing value for our citizens. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
Municipal Government Act 

BACKGROUND  
Olds, in collaboration with Invest Olds, undertook the Housing Needs Assessment (HNA) 
project, entrusting McElhanney LTD with its execution. This comprehensive assessment seeks 
to tackle the recognized demand for a more varied range of housing options, specifically 
emphasizing multi-family residences like duplexes, townhouses, apartments, and condos. The 
findings of the assessment will furnish the Council with recommendations for potential 
amendments to the Municipal Development Plan and the Land Use Bylaw, aiming to enhance 
housing opportunities within the community. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☐ Operating  ☐ Capital ☒ Not Applicable 
Details: 
 
KEY MESSAGES 
The population of Olds is on the rise, signaling a growing demand for more housing, particularly 
with an emphasis on higher density options.  

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Olds Housing Needs Assessment - September 2023 
 
 
CAO Review: Brent Williams  October 6, 2023 

 
 

169

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



H O U S I N G  N E E D S
A S S E S S M E N T

S E P T E M B E R  2 0 2 3

P R E P A R E D  B Y

T O W N  O F  O L D S

McElhanney Ltd. 

170

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



1

2

3

E X E C U T I V E  S U M M A R Y

Key housing indicators include population and

growth statistics, demographic profiles,

household statistics, income and labour force

data, and dwelling characteristics. The

population has been steadily increasing, with a

projected upward trajectory, indicating a need

for additional housing options, including an

additional 180 rental units by 2025. The town’s

population is aging, with an increasing

percentage of residents aged 65 and older,

highlighting the need for suitable seniors’

housing options. Current housing options for

the Town are predominantly single-detached

homes, and quality of housing is declining.

Average home prices are relatively high

compared to similar municipalities in Alberta,

suggesting a need for more affordable housing

options. 

The Housing needs Assessment (HNA) for the Town of Olds, aims to address the identified need for

a greater diversity of housing types, including multi-family housing such as duplexes, townhouses,

apartments and condos. 75% of surveyed residents believe affordable housing is needed.  The

study area covered by the Housing Needs Assessment is the municipal boundary of the Town of

Olds, which is home to approximately 9,200 residents. 

H O U S I N G  N E E D S H O U S I N G  P R I O R I T I E S

D I V E R S I T Y  O F  H O U S I N G  F O R M  

Based on the current analysis of available information, the following policy recommendations are

suggested for the Town of Olds Municipal Development Plan and the Land Use Bylaw:

S E N I O R S  H O U S I N G  

I N C R E A S E D  A V A I L A B I L I T Y  O F
R E N T A L  U N I T S

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S

M D P  R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S : L U B  R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S :

1. Establish Development Incentives 

2. Streamline Approvals

3. Strategic Infrastructure Investment

4. Promote Mixed-Use Development

5. Encourage Human Scale Development

6. Create Vibrant Places

7. Design Walkable Neighbourhoods

8. Promote Inclusive Spaces

1. Consolidate Residential Uses

2. Expedite Medium Density Applications

3. Rezone strategic corridors to allow for
Mixed-Used Development

4. Allow Accessory Dwelling Units

5. Eliminate Development Permit
requirement for select developments

P A G E  0 2171

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



T A B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S

P A G E  0 3

E X E C U T I V E  S U M M A R Y . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 2

P R O J E C T  T E A M . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 4

I N T R O D U C T I O N . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 5   
     P r o j e c t  O v e r v i e w  
     A l b e r t a  H o u s i n g  O v e r v i e w  
     L o c a l  C o n t e x t
     K e y  I n d i c a t o r s  
     H o u s i n g  P r o f i l e

P O L I C I E S  A N D  K E Y  I N I T I A T I V E S . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 4
     S t r e a m l i n e d  P r o c e s s e s      
     R e s i d e n t i a l  D e v e l o p m e n t  I n c e n t i v e  P r o g r a m  
     M u n i c i p a l  D e v e l o p m e n t  P l a n
     A r e a  S t r u c t u r e  P l a n s
     D i s t r i c t  B y l a w

S U P P L Y  A N D  D E M A N D  A N A L Y S I S . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 6
     O l d s  C o l l e g e  
     C o n t i n u i n g  C a r e  N e e d s  
     A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g  
     H o u s i n g  N e e d s  P r o j e c t i o n s

E N G A G E M E N T  R E S U L T S . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 0  
     C o n s u l t a t i o n  P r o c e s s
     S u r v e y  P a r t i c i p a n t  H o u s i n g  P r o f i l e  
     I d e n t i f i c a t i o n  o f  H o u s i n g  N e e d s

H O U S I N G  G A P S . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 3   
     C u r r e n t  H o u s i n g  N e e d s

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 4

A p p e n d i x  A :  S t a t e m e n t  o f  L i m i t a t i o n s
A p p e n d i x  B :  K e y  T e r m s  &  D e f i n i t i o n s
A p p e n d i x  C :  E n g a g e m e n t  R e s u l t s
A p p e n d i x  D :  L a n d  U s e  M a p s

172

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



P A G E  0 4P R O J E C T  T E A M

The Housing needs Assessment (HNA) for the Town of Olds was a collaboration between Invest

Olds, and McElhanney Ltd. who was retained by the Town of Olds to complete the Housing Needs

Asessment report. 

173

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



P A G E  0 5

W H E R E  W E  A R E  N O W

The Town of Olds is a municipality with

approximately 9,200 residents, located 100km

north of Calgary and 200km south of Edmonton

in the province of Alberta. Through a community

engagement process conducted in the spring of

2023, the Town of Olds has identified a need for

a greater diversity of housing types, specifically

multi-family housing such as duplexes,

townhouses, apartments, and condos. To

achieve this goal, the Town of Olds has

completed the following Housing Needs

Assessment (HNA), intended to examine and

present housing needs within the municipality. 

The Housing Needs Assessment integrates

qualitative and quantitative data to inform an

analysis of the current housing environment in

the Town of Olds, supported by information

derived from statistical research, community

engagement, and mapping. This analysis

ultimately illustrates the need for a greater

diversity of housing types in the Town of Olds. 

The study area covered by the HNA is limited

to the municipal boundary of the Town of Olds,

encompassing 14.92km of land. Town of Olds

is home to a population of 9,209 people as of

the 2021 Canada Census data collection. 

Project Overview, Current Housing State and Statistical Analysis

P R O J E C T  O V E R V I E W

C O M M U N I T Y  E N G A G E M E N T  &  D A T A  C O L L E C T I O N
The Housing Needs Assessment is supported by information obtained from Statistics Canada,

municipal policies and bylaws, Alberta Health Services, the Canadian Mortgage and Housing

Corporation, Government of Alberta and the Alberta Seniors Housing Directory. 

The Town of Olds designed and implemented a public engagement process based on a survey that

was available to the public from February 24, 2023 – March 16, 2023. The residents were notified

of the survey via social media and paper copies were made available at the community aquatic

center and library. The engagement sought to determine the current state of housing in the Town of

Olds and to Prioritize Community Housing needs. Based on statistical review of current state of

housing in the Town of Olds, the project team developed specific recommendations for Town

Administration. 

I N T R O D U C T I O N 174

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Municipality Population Majority
Housing Type

Median
House Price

(2022)

Median
House Price

(2023)

Median
Age

Olds 9,209
Single Detached

(61.2%)
$337,500 $342,500 43.6

Red Deer 100,844
Single Detached

(37.2%)
$320,000 $325,000 38.8

Sundre 2,729
Single Detached

(41.8%)
$249,900 $290,000 47.6

Didsbury 5,024
Single Detached

(58.4%)
$312,250 $336,000 45.2

Carstairs 3,660
Single Detached

(70.1%)
$456,750 $527,500 38.4

Penhold 3,484
Single Detached

(55.4%)
$285,000 $332,500 34.4

Innisfail 7,672
Single Detached

(46.2)
$299,900 $284,900 41.0

Edson 7,903
Single Detached

(48.4%)
$319,450 $314,250 35.9

Coaldale 9,121
Single Detached

(68.4%)
$328,056 $339,950 38.0

A L B E R T A  H O U S I N G  O V E R V I E W

C O M P A R A B L E  M U N I C I P A L I T I E S

Due to the low population size in the Town of Olds, the Canadian Mortgage and Housing

Corporation (CMHC) only provided vacancy rates for the greater Mountain View County region, as

opposed to specifically for the Town of Olds. This limits the accuracy of the vacancy rates

provided by this report. In addition, a lack of data was available for median rent by dwelling size,

median income of renters, home owners, and seniors, and number of units per level of seniors care. 

L I M I T A T I O N S

0 6

Source: Pillar 9Table 1: Median House Prices for surrounding municipalities

175

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



1986 2005 2021

10,000 

7,500 

5,000 

2,500 

0 

L O C A L  C O N T E X T

O U R  C U R R E N T  S T A T E

Population, majority housing type, median house price, and median age statistics
have been analyzed for the Town of Olds and surrounding, comparable

municipalities to evaluate the current state of housing within the Town of Olds.

K E Y  I N D I C A T O R S

Key indicators of the housing situation in the

Town of Olds include population and growth

statistics, demographic profiles, household

statistics, and income and labour force data. The

following section provides an overview of the

current housing profile in the Town of Olds, which

will inform areas of need. 

H O U S I N G  P R O F I L E

The Town of Olds had a total population of 5,005 in 1986 with growth to 9209 by 2021,

representing 1.76% compounded annual growth. The projected population by 2027 based on this

growth rate is 10,048 people, resulting in an upward population trajectory (Figure 1). 

2023 2025 2028

12,500 

10,000 

7,500 

5,000 

2,500 

0 

Figure 1: Population Growth

The Housing Needs Assessment integrates qualitative and quantitative data to inform an analysis of the
current housing environment in the Town of Olds, supported by information derived from statistical research,

community engagement, and mapping. This analysis ultimately illustrates the need for a greater diversity of
housing types in the Town of Olds. 

 

0 7

Figure 1a: Projected Population Growth

176

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



P O P U L A T I O N  S T A T I S T I C S

15-24 25-34 35-50 51-64 65-80 80+

2,500 

2,000 

1,500 

1,000 

500 

0 

At 59.5%, the majority of residents in the

Town of Olds are currently of working age

(Figure 2: Age Distribution); however, the

population is aging. According to Census

Canada statistics, the median age in 2016 was

41.6, increasing to 43.6 in 2021, and projected

to increase to 46.1 in 2027 (Figure 3: Median

Age Projections). In 2016, 21.60% of the

population was over the age of 65, increasing

to 23.80% in 2021, and projected to increase

to 26.70% by 2027 (Figure 4: Percentage of

Population over 65 years of age). The

percentage of the population over 65 years in

age is an important indicator for housing

because it informs projected seniors housing

needs, such as levels of care, dwelling

design, and dwelling size Figure 2: Age Distribution

2016 2021 2027

50 

40 

30 

20 

10 

0 

Figure 3: Median Age Projections

2016 2021 2027

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

Figure 4: Percentage of Population over 65

H O U S E H O L D  P R O F I L E

The average size of households in the Town of Olds in 2016 was 2.4 people per household, while in

2021 the average size of household had decreased to 2.3 people per household. Based on this

rate of decline, it is projected that there will be an average of 2.2 people per household by 2027

(Figure 5: Household Size). Based on the latest Canada Statistics data from 2021, the majority of

households in the Town of Olds are two-person households at 56.5%. One-person households are

the second largest category, representing 43.3% of total households. Households with five or more

people represent the least number of households at 9.2% (Figure 6: Household Type).The number

of people per household informs the housing types that the Town of Olds should focus on

developing. As of the 2021 census, there were a total of 3,810 private households. 

0 8177

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



2016 2021 2027

2.5 

2 

1.5 

1 

0.5 

0 

Couple
s w

ith
 child

re
n

Lone-P
are

nt F
am

ile
s

One-P
ers

on H
ouse

hold
s 

Two-P
ers

on H
ouse

hold
s 

Thre
e-P

ers
on H

ouse
hold

s 

Four-P
ers

on H
ouse

hold
s

Five
-P

ers
on H

ouse
hold

s 

1,500 

1,000 

500 

0 

Figure 5: Persons per Household

Figure 6: Household Type

D W E L L I N G  C H A R A C T E R I S T I C S
Single-Detached Housing represents the majority of dwelling types in the Town of Olds at 61.2%,

with the next most prominent type being Apartments in Buildings Less than 5 Storeys at 13.8%.

These statistics clearly illustrate a lack of diversity in housing options. Single-Detached Houses

are the most expensive and least efficient use of land, the high percentage of single family homes

in Olds results in a lack of affordable housing options. Figure 6: Household Type, demonstrates a

variety of needs, with the highest being the need to house One & Two Person Households. Figure 7:

Household Size demonstrates the variety of household sizes within the Town of Olds. Within the

municipal boundary, 29.3% of households are home to one person, 38.1% are home to two persons,

13.4% are home to three persons, 11.8% are home to four persons, and 7.6% are home to 5 or more

persons. It is notable that the greatest proportion of households are home to two persons,

followed by one person households. Smaller households may be suitable to multi-family housing

types that are smaller in size and more affordable relative to Single-Detached homes. 

0 9178

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Understanding population and demographics is crucial for effective housing policy. It informs resource
allocation, housing design and affordability strategies, ensuring sustainable and inclusive communities for all.
These statistics shape the demand for housing, influencing market dynamics and social needs. accurate data

helps policymakers and developers tailor solutions addressing housing shortages and fostering equitable
living conditions.  

 

2 Person
38%

1 Person
29%

3 Person 
13%

4 Person 
12%

5 Person
8%

Figure 7: Household Size

The age of dwellings is an important indicator of

housing suitability. Buildings have a lifecycle to

them, and the age of the building may determine the

suitability of the building as a housing option.

Dwelling age is also an indicator of growth. Higher

percentages of new housing indicates that housing

supply is growing to meet population growth when

needed. Lower percentages of new dwellings,

indicate housing supply is stagnant or decreasing,

in proportion to population growth. This difference

between supply and demand (based on population

growth) exacerbates affordable housing options.  

Housing age for the Town of Olds is demonstrated

by Figure 8: Year of Construction. This data

indicates that housing quality may be declining in

the Town of Olds and in addition there may be an

insufficient number of dwellings being constructed

to meet the needs of a growing population. 

Figure 8: Year of Construction
1960 o

r B
efo

re

1961-1
980

1981-1
990

1991-2
000

2001-2
005

2006-2
010

2011-2
015

2016-2
021

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

1 0
179

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Under $
10,0

00

$10,0
00-$

19,9
99

$20,0
00-$

29,9
99

$30,0
00-$

39,9
99

$40,0
00-$

49,9
99

$50,0
00-$

59,9
99

$60,0
00-$

69,9
99

$70
,0

00-$
79

,9
99

$80,0
00-$

89,9
99

$90,0
00-$

99,9
99

$100,0
00-$

149,9
99

$150,0
00 and o

ver

1,500 

1,000 

500 

0 

I N C O M E  A N D  L A B O U R  F O R C E
Although the median household income in the Town of Olds is $82,900, the most prominent

household income is much lower at $20,000-$29,000. Given the high student and senior

population, this number does not reflect the overall economic earning capacity of the Town, as

neither group fully participates in the labour market and relies primarily on other income streams.

Figure 9 provides household incomes in the Town of Olds and demonstrates a high proportion of

lower income households. The median household income of $82,900 appears to be influenced by a

small number of households earning over that threshold each year. A number of people also

commute to the Town of Olds from other towns or surrounding areas for employment, which may

not be accounted for in overall income statistics. As of 2021, the Town of Olds had an employment

rate of 57.5% and unemployment rate of 9.85, with a labour participation of 63.6%. Unfortunately

workforce data for those who commute to Olds is not tracked by the census. However, this data

may also indicate that Olds is a location sought as a quality place of residence. The median

household income for the Town of Olds is $82,900 annually and $85,300 for the surrounding

region. 

Figure 9: Households by income

1 1
180

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



The Sales and Service industry is the most prominent within the Town of Olds, followed by Trades,

Transport & Equipment Operators. Notably, the least prevalent industry is Legislative & Senior

Management, which has the potential to provide higher income positions. The Town of Olds

presents unique characteristics that impact affordable housing demand, and consequently, the need

for more diverse housing types such as townhouses, duplexes, apartments, and condos. The largest

income category in the Town of Olds is $20,000-$29,000 annually. This could be a result of the

high student population at Olds College, which is home to 3800 remote and in person students. The

population in the Town of Olds is also aging, which results in an increased number of people living

on a pension. Further, almost 20% of the Town of Olds population is under 14 years of age and

therefore not earning an income. Due to these unique characteristics, the Town of Olds has a need

for more diverse, affordable housing types. 

Busin
ess

, F
in

ance &
 A

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

Natu
ra

l &
 A

pplie
d S

ciences

Health
 O

ccupatio
ns

Com
m

unity
 &

 G
overn

m
ent S

erv
ices

Art,
 C

ultu
re

, R
ecre

atio
n &

 S
port

Sale
s &

 S
erv

ice

Tra
des, 

Tra
nsp

ort 
& E

quip
m

ent O
pera

to
rs

Natu
ra

l R
eso

urc
es &

 A
gric

ultu
re

M
anufa

ctu
rin

g &
 U

til
iti

es

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

Olds College

Olds Hospital

Chinook’s Edge School Division

Sundial Growers Inc.

Richardson Bros. (Olds) Ltd.

ProAll International

Shurgain Feeds

Olds SoftGels Inc.

Premier Tech Horticulture Inc.

Spearhead Manufacturing Inc.

The majority of the workforce residing in the Town of Olds commute to jobs outside of the municipal

boundary. A total of 79% commute to a census subdivision outside of the Town of Olds but within

the region, an additional 8% commute to a job in a different region, while only 13% commute to a job

within the Town of Olds. The top employers in the Town of Olds according to municipal data include:

Cervus Equipment

Future Ag Inc.

Noble Equipment Ltd.

Olds Home Hardware

Stanley Technical Services

Walmart Supercentre

Canadian Tire Corp.

Westview Co-op

Patryk’s No Frills

Sobeys Inc. 

Figure 10: Percentage of Labour Force by Occupation

1 2181

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



2016 2021 2027

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

H O U S I N G  O C C U P A N C Y

In 2016, 25% of households were occupied by renters, increasing to 26% in 2021 and projected to

increase to 30% by 2027 (Figure 11). The average median monthly shelter cost for rented dwellings

in the Town of Olds is $1210. The rental vacancy rate for the Mountain View County region

according to CMHC is 2.6%. In 2016, 69% of dwellings were owner occupied, decreasing to 67% in

2021, and projected to decrease to 66%. by 2027. This decline in home ownership between 2016

and 2027 could indicate a lack of affordability, pushing residents towards rental options. This

increased demand in rental units, may tighten supply on the rental market, and increase cost for

potential renters.

Figure 11: Renter Households

1 3

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

R
e

n
ta

l 
H

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s

182

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



P O L I C I E S  A N D  K E Y  I N I T A T I V E S

Invest Olds is a new investment attraction service dedicated to positioning the Town of Olds as and

attractive community for local and global investors. It aims to bolster the town’s reputation as

“investment ready” to foster a robust economic environment and facilitate the transformation of

opportunities into real investments in the region. The team operates cohesively, offering a

personalized concierge servce to investors, connecting them with fifteen technical specialists who

expedite the evaluation and progression of viable investments 

This section provides an overview of current municipal housing policies, bylaws, and key initiatives

that enable more multi-family housing options. Multi-family housing types improve affordability,

decrease greenhouse gas emissions, and provide an increased housing supply for residents.

S T R E A M L I N E D  R E G U L A T I O N  A N D  I N V E S T M E N T  P R O C E S S E S

R E S I D E N T I A L  D E V E L O P M E N T  I N C E N T I V E  P R O G R A M

The Residential Development Incentive

Program was introduced by the Town of Olds

to recognize the role that residential

developers play in the growth and

sustainability of the community and helps to

facilitate a competitive and cost-effective

business environment for developers to

operate within. The purpose of the policy is to

provide financial incentives for residential

developers in the Town of Olds to promote the

development of new residential lands. 

A R E A  S T R U C T U R E  P L A N S

The Town of Olds has adopted Area Structure

Plans (ASP) for ten areas within the municipal

boundary to guide future development. Of these

ten ASPs, nine permit residential development

and seven allow for some level of multi-family

development. Despite the ASPs promoting multi-

family development, many of them still designate

most of the residential lands for single-detached

housing. 

P A G E  1 4183

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



District Associated Land Use

Low Density Residential District (R1) Detached dwellings

General Residential district (R2) Detached dwellings, duplexes 

General Residential Narrow Lot District (R2N) Detached dwellings, duplexes 

Medium Denisty Residential District (R3) Apartments, multi-plexes, row housing

Manufactured Home District (R4) Manufactured Homes

Country Residential District (r5) Detached Dwellings 

country Residential District A (R5A) Detached Dwellings 

T O W N  O F  O L D S  D I S T R I C T  B Y L A W

As demonstrated by Table 2, the Town of Olds provides seven residential districts, three of which

permit detached dwellings only. As reflected in the MDP, the majority of residential land in the Town

of Olds only permits development of single-detached dwellings under the R1 district. 

Table 2: District Bylaw Residential District and Land Use

1 5M U N I C I P A L  D E V E L O P M E N T  P L A N

The Town of Olds Municipal Development Plan (MDP) provides a Future Land Use Concept plan that

will shape future development in the municipality. The Future Land Use Concept Plan concentrates

commercial and mixed-use development nearby Highway 27 and Highway 2A to create employment

areas and meet the needs of the growing population. Residential land uses expand to the north and

south of the commercial lands. Policies in the MDP encourage the creation of a wide variety of

housing types in all residential neighbourhoods and discourages concentrations of single-family

housing. Duplexes and multi-family residential units are to make up a minimum of 30% of housing in

residential areas unless otherwise specified by an Area Structure Plan (ASP).

184

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



S U P P L Y  A N D  D E M A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Olds College is one of Canada's Top 10 Research Colleges with 3,600 acres for applied research

activities and work-integrated learning opportunities for students. The college serves approximately

2,000 students annually and is a globally renowned leader in research and innovation generating

revenues of over $85 million to date. Affordable housing is essential to future growth of the college

and it is anticipated that an additional 180 units of housing will be needed by 2025-2026

This section provides an overview of current housing supply and demand, including details around

Olds College, Continuing Care and Affordably housing demand requirements. Housing needs

projections are explored with an aim of understanding how the population will increase for future

planning and growth opportunitites. 

O L D S  C O L L E G E  O F  A G R I C U L T U R E  A N D  T E C H N O L O G Y

C O N T I N U T I N G  C A R E  N E E D S
The Town of Olds has three senior’s housing facilities including Seasons Olds, Seasons Olds

Encore, and Mountain View Lodge. Seasons Olds offers seniors apartments/lodges for those 65

years and older and supportive housing levels 2 and 3. Seasons Olds has 107 units of which 0 are

currently vacant. Seasons Olds Encore provides senior’s apartments/lodges and supportive living

levels 2, 3, 4, and 4D. Seasons Olds Encore also has 107 units of which 0 are vacant. Mountain View

Seniors Housing provides community housing and seniors lodges/apartments. Mountain View

Seniors Housing provides 76 units and currently has 10 vacant at the time of this report. (See

Appendix B for senior’s living definitions). 

A F F O R D A B L E  H O U S I N G
In 2021, 5.4% of renter households in the Town of Olds were in Core Housing Need, while 35.9% of

renter households were spending more than 30% of income on shelter costs (See Appendix B for

definitions). Relative to renter households, there were 1.8% of owner-occupied units in Core Housing

Need in 2021 and 12.5% of owner-occupied units spending 20% or more of income on shelter costs.

Overall, in 2021, 7.2% of households were in Core Housing Need and 48.4% were spending more

than 30% of income on shelter cost. 

In a time where housing affordability and sustainability are pressing concerns, an analysis of housing supply
and demand provides essential insights needed to create thriving, inclusive communities and ensure access to

safe and comfortable housing for all. 

P A G E  1 6

C O R E  H O U S I N G

Core Housing Need is an indicator used to assess adequacy of housing conditions for individuals or

households. A household is considered in “Core Housing Need” if its housing does not meet one or

more of the adequacy, suitability or affordability standards, and it would have to spend 30 percent

or more of its before tax income to access acceptable local housing. (Refer to Appendix B for

definitions of adequacy, suitability and affordability). 

185

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



H O U S I N G  N E E D  P R O J E C T I O N S

In 2021, 5.4% of renter households in the Town of Olds were in Core Housing Need, while 35.9% of

renter households were spending more than 30% of income on shelter costs. Overall, in 2021, 7.2%

of households were in Core Housing Need and 48.4% were spending more than 30% of income on

shelter cost. Compounded with increased population projections demonstrated in Table 3, the Town

of Olds is becoming increasingly unaffordable, with a lack of supply of adequate housing. 

Year Population Households

1986 5,005 1,830

2016 9,184 3,942

2021 9,209 4,096

2027 10,048 4,469

2050 15,449 6,871

Table 3: Population Projections

Figure 12 provides a comparative

analysis between current housing

supply and demand. Based on the

data in Figure 12, the demand for

one- and two-bedroom dwelling

units far exceeds the supply. This

understanding of housing supply

and demand for the Town of Olds

is key in Town’s ability to provide

strategic housing policies that will

reduce cost and stabilize the

housing market for generations to

come. 

Figure 12: Current Housing Supply & Demand

Demand Supply

1 2 3 4+

1,500 

1,000 

500 

0 

Number of Bedrooms

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

U
n

it
s

The outlined housing need projections based on population projections to 2050 and the current

discrepancy in supply and demand, indicate the Town of Olds is currently facing a housing shortage

that will only be exacerbated further as more residents relocate to the Town. 

1 7186

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



2016 2021 2027

1 2 3 4+

1,500 

1,000 

500 

0 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

U
n

it
s

Number of Bedrooms

Figure 13 demonstrates an increased need for 1 and 2 bedroom dwellings in the coming years. Due

to the high student population attending Olds College, we see a lack of housing availability in the 1

and 2 bedroom housing types, which is forcing residents to seek alternative housing solutions.

Dorms at Olds College are full, with zero vacancy, making it difficult for students to find adequate

housing. Hotels and Motels in the Town of Olds receive inquiries for long term rentals. The housing

shortage is an issue not only for students but for workers of the Pomeroy Hotel, especially during

the winter months when the College is in session. Many students use hotels and motels as

temporary housing while looking to secure more permanent housing for the school year. Based on a

qualitative survey of six hotels/motels in the Town of Olds the average stay at the hotel/motels can

range from 3-4 weeks in length to several months. Many of the hotels are aware of this occurrence,

however they do not track these numbers explicitly, making it difficult to quantify how much demand

exists during the winter months. 

Figure 13: Housing Needs Projection

1 8187

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

OLDS* INNISFAIL* LACOMBE WETASKIWIN CAMROSE

1,000 

750 

500 

250 

0 

R E N T A L  V A C A N C Y  R A T E S

An analysis of vacancy rates over the last five years demonstrates a clear trend and need for rental

housing in the Town of Olds. Figure 14 demonstrates low vacancy for the Town of Olds and

Innisfail, indicating a lack of availability as compared to comparable municipalities in the province. 

Figure 14: No. of Rental Units by year

1 9

*Data was not available for Olds & Innisfail for 2019 & 2020

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

R
e

n
ta

l 
U

n
it

s

Source: Apartment Vacancy and Rental Cost Survey, Government of Alberta

188

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



E N G A G E M E N T  R E S U L T S

To verify the data collected from Canada Census, the Town of Olds also conducted a public

engagement survey from February 24, 2023 – March 16, 2023. The survey was posted on social

media and paper copies were made available in the community aquatic center and library. There

were 63 respondents to the survey. The following sections provide a high-level overview of the

survey results, with complete results provided in Appendix C

C O N S U L T A T I O N  P R O C E S S

S U R V E Y  P A R T I C I P A N T  H O U S I N G  P R O F I L E

Most of the respondents to the survey were of working age, with the largest proportion between

45-54 years of age, closely followed by the 35-44 age group. The 65-74 age group was also

prominent in the response group. These age groups are likely able to comment on affordability,

quality, and available services for families, couples, and seniors. 55% of respondents lived in

Townhouses or Apartments, 38% in single detached homes, while 7% lived in manufactured homes. 

I D E N T I F I C A T I O N  O F  H O U S I N G  I S S U E S

The majority (53%) of survey respondents perceive housing into their community as affordable,

while 47% perceive housing as unaffordable. This perceived unaffordability could be related to the

high proportion of single detached dwelling units in the Town of Olds, which are typically more

expensive than multi-family housing types. Housing affordability is only one of many potential

housing concerns. Survey respondents were asked to indicate all concerns that they feel apply to

housing in the Town of Olds. A lack of housing options was a concern for 67.24% of respondents,

while 70.69% considered home ownership to be too expensive, and 67.24% considered renting to

be too expensive. A lack of housing options and housing affordability are closely linked concerns,

as multi-family housing types can help to improve housing affordability by presenting residents with

more affordable forms of dwellings. 

0% 25% 50% 75%

Cost of Ownership / Down Payment 

Cost of Renting 

Lack of Pet Friendly Renting Options 

Lack of Accessible Housing Options 

Figure 15: Housing Concerns

P A G E  2 0189

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Figure 16 demonstrates number of persons per household, further supports the conclusion that

more multi-family housing options are needed in the Town of Olds. Most households in the Town of

Olds have one or two people living in them, which shows a discrepancy between the housing being

provided in the community and resident’s needs. The Town of Olds has a large proportion of small

household sizes, and yet detached single family housing is the most prominent housing type.

Providing smaller dwelling options would be suitable for these household sizes and improve

affordability. 

Figure 16: Persons Per Household

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

5* 

7+ 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

U
n

it
s

Percentage

The Town of Olds survey also asked residents which housing types were most desired (Figure 14).

According to the survey results, 60% desire more townhouses, apartments, and duplexes, 20% desire

more single detached homes, 14% desire more rental townhouses, apartments, and duplexes, and 6%

Purchase Townhouse/Apartment
60%

Purchase Single Detached
20%

Rent Townhouse/Apartment
14%

Rent Single Detached 
6%

Figure 17: Desired Housing Types

desire more rental single

detached homes. The findings

in Figure 17 are expanded in

Figure 18, demonstrating types

of housing that the Town of

Olds residents identified as

needing. Affordable housing

options was identified as the

area of greatest need, with

approximately 75% identifying

this need. 

Rental townhouses/duplexes,

apartments/condos and

townhouses/duplexes were

also identified by many

respondents. 

2 1
190

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



0% 25% 50% 75%

Supportive Housing for Mental Health/Substance Abuse 

Supportive Housing for People with Disabilities 

Emergency Shelter 

Single-Detached Homes 

Townhouse/Duplex 

Apartment/Condo 

Rental Townhouse/Duplex/House 

Non-Market Affordable Housing 

More affordable housing is needed, including rentals

Increased supportive living and long-term care for the aging population

More high-quality multi-family housing options are needed for affordability and housing options 

The Town of Olds development department should facilitate easy processes for increased legal

suits and development of multi-family housing 

Mobile homes and tiny homes should be provided for more affordable home ownership options

More rancher style homes for seniors wanting to age in place

The survey also provided opportunity for respondents to provide additional feedback. The

additional feedback received has been summarized as follows with full survey results provided in

Appendix C.

Figure 18: Types of Housing Needed in the Town of Olds

A D D I T I O N A L  S U R V E Y  F E E D B A C K

2 2
191

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



H O U S I N G  G A P S

The number of people and the number of households in the Town of Olds has been increasing since

2016. If current growth rates continue, the population and number of households will continue to

increase year over year. Despite these trends, the number of dwellings constructed between 2016

and 2021 was only 4.9%, compared to 25.90% in 1961-1980. This represents the potential for a lack

of dwelling units for the growing number of households and may also lead to housing quality issues. 

This section draws from the quantitative and qualitative data presented by this report to identify

current and future housing needs and gaps in the Town of Olds. Data has been provided primarily by

the Canadian Census and the Town of Olds housing survey. 

N U M B E R  O F  D W E L L I N G  U N I T S

D W E L L I N G  S I Z E  A N D  T Y P E S

The majority of housing types in the Town of Olds are single detached at 61% of all dwelling units.

The number of people per household has been decreasing, suggesting a need to shift to smaller,

multi-family housing types such as apartments, townhouses, and duplexes. Currently, 29% of

households in the Town of Olds consist of one-person, and 38% consist of two people. Relative to

the number of single-detached dwelling types, there is a lack of appropriately sized dwelling units

available for smaller households. 

To further support this conclusion, the supply and demand analysis in Figure 18 demonstrates that

the current supply of larger dwelling units (three- and four-bedrooms) exceeds demand. Given these

statistics, it is evident that the Town of Olds has an excess of larger, single-detached homes and a

lack of smaller, multi-family housing options. The survey conducted by the Town of Olds also

concluded that a major housing concern in the community was a lack of housing options. In the

survey, 74% indicated a desire for more apartments, townhouses, and duplexes while only 26%

desire more single-detached homes. 

S E N I O R S  H O U S I N G

The percentage of the population over the age of 65 is projected to continue to increase. The

median age in the Town of Olds is increasing by approximately 2 years every 6 years, with the

population over 65 projected at 26.7% by 2027. An aging population requires specific housing types

such as rancher-style homes, more affordable apartments, and care with a variety of support levels.

The Town of Olds currently has a lack of senior’s care options, with only 290 total senior’s care

units and 2190 people over the age of 65. The survey conducted supported these findings,

identifying a lack of accessible housing options as a major housing concern in the community. 

L A C K  O F  R E N T A L  H O U S I N G

Canada Census data has shown that the number of renter and owner occupied households in the

Town of Olds is decreasing. The survey conducted supported the statistical data, with 20% of

respondents indicating that more rental housing is desired. The qualitative data collected from a

survey of hotel staff in the area, indicates that the lack of rental housing is so dire that residents

are seeking short term accommodation at hotels and motels in the area. 

P A G E  2 3192

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S - M D P

It is recommended that the Town of Olds update the Municpal Development Plan to include policy

tools that will incentivze growth and encourage developers to establish in the Town of Olds. Based

on the Population Statistics and Growth Projections explored in this report, the Town of Olds is

forecasted to increase and the need for a variety of housing types will be necessary. 

G R O W T H  M A N A G E M E N T

1. Establish development incentives 

2. Streamline Approvals

3. Strategic Infrastructure Investment

4. Promote Mixed-Use Development

Establish a comprehensive system of development incentives to encourage

investment and stimulate the development in target areas, such as designated

growth nodes, brownfield sites or underutilized areas. 

Continue to evaluate and implement efficient and streamlined development

approvals processes to reduce unnecessary bureaucracy, minimize delays and

provide a predictable, consistent timeline for developers. 

Actively promote mixed-use development, encouraging a combination of

residential, commercial and recreational uses within appropriate nodes and

corridors. 

Prioritize infrastructure investment in areas of anticipated development including

transportation networks, water and sewer systems, utilities, parks and public

amenities.

P A G E  2 4193

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S - M D P

U R B A N  F O R M

5. Encourage Human Scale Development

6. Create Vibrant Places

Development projects should prioritize human-scale design principles, creating a

sense of intimacy and comfort within the urban environment. Considerations

around building setbacks, building heights, façade articulation and street-level

activation should contribute to a pleasant and walkable streetscape. 

To encourage development, the Town of Olds should support placemaking

initiatives that create vibrant public spaces and foster a sense of community

identity. The “small town advantage” is attractive for developers to market their

developments encouraging buyers to relocate to a family friendly community

with a sense on place. Focus on Public art, street furniture, wayfinding and other

elements reflect the unique character and history of differing neighborhoods. 

H O U S I N G  &  N E I G H B O U R H O O D  D E S I G N

7. Design Walkable & Transit Focused Neighbourhoods

8. Promote Inclusive Spaces

The Town of Olds should prioritize development of walkable neighborhoods that

promote active transportation and connectivity, and invest in transportation

infrastructure. Especially in neighbourhoods that have high numbers of students

who attend Olds College. Streets should be designed to encourage pedestrian

friendly movement, bike lanes and accessible public transportation to reduce

dependency on private vehicles. 

Promote universal design principles to ensure that housing and neighbourhoods

are accessible and inclusive for residents of all ages, abilities and mobility

levels. Housing need projections indicate the Town of Olds has an ageing

population that may see a shift in housing design requirements, so residents are

able to age in place, or downsize to more appropriate housing situations

P A G E  2 5194

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S - L U B

Based on the findings in this report, the following three priorities have been identified to address

housing issues in the Town of Olds. All three priorities are focused on the goal of achieving more

multi-family housing. Multi-family housing addresses many of the housing gaps identified in this

report, including diversity of housing types, smaller dwelling sizes, and senior’s appropriate

dwellings. Providing more multi-family housing needs to begin at the policy level to attract and

facilitate the development of these housing types. 

1. Consolidate Residential Land Uses R1, R2, R2N & R3 

2. Consolidate Country Residential Land Uses R5 & R5A

3. Expedite Applications for Medium Density Development

4. Introduce Mixed-Use Zoning along Strategic Corridors

It is recommended that the Town of Olds Land Use Bylaw be revised to reduce

the number of residential land use types. Provide density ranges within the

consolidated land use to allow for a variety of housing forms throughout zones

that are zoned for residential. Currently the Land Use Bylaw provides seven

residential districts. By consolidating residential land uses, the Town of Olds

provides more flexibility for developers to build multi-family housing in a variety

of neighbourhoods. Multifamily housing including duplexes, rowhouses and

apartments do not need to be segregated. 

It is recommended that the Town of Olds Land Use Bylaw be revised to reduce

the number of residential land use types. Consolidating country Residential

Districts reduces the number of zoning districts the Town needs to manage.  

To promote vibrant and sustainable development, the Town of Olds should

introduce mixed-use zoning along strategic corridors within specific

neighbourhoods. By allowing a mix of compatible land uses such as residential,

commercial, office and recreation activities, the Town of Olds can create

dynamic and accessible corridors that cater to the needs of residents and

business alike. Mixed-use zoning encourages walkability, reduces the need for

vehicle travel and supports a more efficient use of land and infrastructure. 

To incentivize higher density development, the Town of Olds should implement a

streamlined approach for development permit applications. This would involve

establishing clear and efficient procedures specifically tailored to medium

density projects, such as townhouses or low-rise apartment buildings.

Streamlining these applications may include a dedicated staff or team assigned

to multifamily files, pre-application meetings to provide guidance prior to

applying, clear and concise application requirements and expedited review

timeline for multi-family applications. 

P A G E  2 6195

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S - L U B

5. Allow Accessory Dwelling Units

6. Allow Various Residential Uses to Proceed without DP

Update residential zoning regulations to permit and regulate construction of

Accessory Dwelling Units on single-family residential properties. Additional

housing options, such as basement apartments, garage suites or separate unites

within existing homes helps increase the supply of housing. Section 2.2.5

describes the Housing Tenure as 25% rental units. Allowing for more Accessory

Dwelling Units to residential development allows for more rental units throughout

various neighbourhoods within the Town of Olds. 

To allow for ease of development related to certain residential uses, the Town of

Olds may want to explore allowing housing types such as single detached, semi-

detached, and multi-family (up to 4) dwelling units to proceed without the

requirement for a development permit. This change would allow for streamlined

development to occur for relatively low-risk development, while also attempting

to expand housing types in the community. Note: These development types

would still require a building permit as required by the Alberta Building Code.

P A G E  2 7196

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



R E F E R E N C E S

Statistics Canada. 2023. (table). Census Profile. 2021 Census of Population. Statistics Canada     

Catalogue no. 98-316-X2021001. Ottawa. Released March 29, 2023.

https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/dp-pd/prof/index.cfm?Lang=E

Alberta Seniors Housing Directory. Mount View Lodge.

https://housingdirectory.ascha.com/directory/mount-view-lodge/

Olds College. https://www.oldscollege.ca/

Town of Olds. Municipal Development Plan. https://www.olds.ca/node/2304

Alberta Health Services. Levels of Care. https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/cc/Page17907.aspx 

CMHC. Housing markets, data and research. https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/professionals/housing-

markets-data-and-research

CMHC. Housing Market Information Portal. https://www03cmhc-schl.gc.ca/hmip-

pimh/en#Profile/1/1/Canada

2 8
197

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



A P P E N D I X  A
S T A T E M E N T  O F  L I M I T A T I O N S

198

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



S T A T E M E N T  O F  L I M I T A T I O N S

Use of this Report. This report was prepared by McElhanney Ltd. ("McElhanney") for the particular

site, design objective, development and purpose (the “Project”) described in this report and for the

exclusive use of the client identified in this report (the “Client”). The data, interpretations and

recommendations pertain to the Project and are not applicable to any other project or site location

and this report may not be reproduced, used or relied upon, in whole or in part, by a party other

than the Client, without the prior written consent of McElhanney. The Client may provide copies of

this report to its affiliates, contractors, subcontractors and regulatory authorities for use in relation

to and in connection with the Project provided that any reliance, unauthorized use, and/or decisions

made based on the information contained within this report are at the sole risk of such parties.

McElhanney will not be responsible for the use of this report on projects other than the Project,

where this report or the contents hereof have been modified without McElhanney’s consent, to the

extent that the content is in the nature of an opinion, and if the report is preliminary or draft. This is

a technical report and is not a legal representation or interpretation of laws, rules, regulations, or

policies of governmental agencies. 

Standard of Care and Disclaimer of Warranties. This report was prepared with the degree of care,

skill, and diligence as would reasonably be expected from a qualified member of the same

profession, providing a similar report for similar projects, and under similar circumstances, and in

accordance with generally accepted engineering/planning/etc and scientific judgments, principles

and practices. McElhanney expressly disclaims any and all warranties in connection with this report. 

Information from Client and Third Parties. McElhanney has relied in good faith on information

provided by the Client and third parties noted in this report and has assumed such information to be

accurate, complete, reliable, non-fringing, and fit for the intended purpose without independent

verification. McElhanney accepts no responsibility for any deficiency, misstatements or inaccuracy

contained in this report as a result of omissions or errors in information provided by third parties or

for omissions, misstatements or fraudulent acts of persons interviewed. 

Effect of Changes. All evaluations and conclusions stated in this report are based on facts,

observations, site-specific details, legislation and regulations as they existed at the time of the site

assessment/report preparation. Some conditions are subject to change over time and the Client

recognizes that the passage of time, natural occurrences, and direct or indirect human intervention

at or near the site may substantially alter such evaluations and conclusions. Construction activities

can significantly alter soil, rock and other geologic conditions on the site. McElhanney should be

requested to re-evaluate the conclusions of this report and to provide amendments as required

prior to any reliance upon the information presented herein upon any of the following events: a) any

changes (or possible changes) as to the site, purpose, or development plans upon which this report

was based, b) any changes to applicable laws subsequent to the issuance of the report, c) new

information is discovered in the future during site excavations, construction, building demolition or

other activities, or d) additional subsurface assessments or testing conducted by others.

Independent Judgments. McElhanney will not be responsible for the independent conclusions,

interpretations, interpolations and/or decisions of the Client, or others, who may come into

possession of this report, or any part thereof. This restriction of liability includes decisions made to

purchase, finance or sell land or with respect to public offerings for the sale of securities. 

3 0
199

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



A P P E N D I X  B
K E Y  T E R M S  &  D E F I N I T I O N S

200

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



K E Y  T E R M S  &  D E F I N I T I O N S

Accessible Housing: Refers to the manner in which housing is designed, constructed or modified

(such as through repair/renovation/renewal or modification of a home), to enable independent living

for persons with diverse abilities. Accessibility is achieved through design, but also by adding

features that make a home more accessible, such as modified cabinetry, furniture, space, shelves

and cupboards, or electronic devices that improve the overall ability to function in a home.

Adequacy (Housing): Housing adequacy refers to the physical condition of the dwelling, where

housing is considered inadequate if major repairs or modernization improvements are required.

Affordability: The household has the financial ability or means to effectively enter or access the

housing market, without spending more than 30 percent of its before-tax (gross) household income

on shelter costs.

Collaboration: Two or more people/organizations working together toward shared goals.

Community Housing: Government-supported subsidized rental housing administered by housing

management bodies for families, seniors, and individuals with low income who cannot afford other

housing options in the community, due to circumstances. A tenant’s rent, which includes heat,

water, electricity, and sewer expenses, is based on 30 percent of the household’s total annual

income. Regulated under the Alberta Housing Act

Core Housing Need: A household is considered in “Core Housing Need” if its housing does not

meet one or more of the adequacy, suitability, or affordability standards, and it would have to spend

30 percent or more of its before-tax income to access acceptable local housing. Acceptable

housing is adequate in condition, suitable in size, and affordable. Adequate housing does not

require any major repairs, according to residents. Suitable housing has enough bedrooms for the

size (number of people) and makeup (gender, single/couple, etc.) of the needs of the households,

according to National Occupancy Standard (NOS) requirements. Affordable housing costs 30

percent or less of before-tax (gross) household income.

Homelessness: A term that describes those who are sleeping in a place not meant for human

habitation (e.g., living on the streets) and/or in an emergency homeless shelter.

Household: A social unit composed of those living together in the same dwelling. 

Mixed-Use Development: The development of land or a building with two or more different uses,

such as residential, office, and retail. Mixed-use can occur across units in a building or spread out

across units in a project or portfolio with multiple buildings.

Non-Market Affordable Housing: Non-market housing is housing rented at lower than market price

due to investment by third party entities (e.g., a level of government, private business, or non-profit

organization).

Seniors Housing: Other rooms/units designated for seniors that are not covered under Seniors’

Lodge or Seniors’ Self-Contained.

3 2
201

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



K E Y  T E R M S  &  D E F I N I T I O N S

Seniors Lodge: Supportive living units designated for senior households in a communal setting with

meals, housekeeping, and recreational activities. Regulated under the Alberta Housing Act.

Shelter Cost: Shelter costs for owner households include, where applicable, mortgage payments,

property taxes and condominium fees, along with the costs of electricity, heat, water and other

municipal services. For renter households, shelter costs include, where applicable, rent and costs

of electricity, heat, water and other municipal services.

Suitability : Housing suitability refers to how appropriate the size of the dwelling is for the

household who resides in it (i.e., number of bedrooms). Suitable housing has enough bedrooms for

the size (number of people) and makeup (gender, single/couple, etc.) of the needs of the

households, according to National Occupancy Standard (NOS) requirements. 

3 3
202

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



A P P E N D I X  C
P U B L I C  E N G A G E M E N T  R E S U L T S

203

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

1 / 29

4.76% 3

20.63% 13

15.87% 10

26.98% 17

30.16% 19

1.59% 1

0.00% 0

Q1 How long have you lived in Olds?
Answered: 63 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 63

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Less than 1
year

1-5 Years

1-10 Years

10-20 Years

More than 20
Years

College
student whom...

Don't
currently li...

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Less than 1 year

1-5 Years

1-10 Years

10-20 Years

More than 20 Years

College student whom is only here during semester

Don't currently live in Olds, but I am looking.

204

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

2 / 29

72.58% 45

27.42% 17

Q2 Do you work in Olds?
Answered: 62 Skipped: 1

TOTAL 62

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

205

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

3 / 29

0.00% 0

4.84% 3

4.84% 3

30.65% 19

32.26% 20

9.68% 6

14.52% 9

3.23% 2

Q3 Please identify your age group
Answered: 62 Skipped: 1

TOTAL 62

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Under 19

19-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

75+

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Under 19

19-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

75+

206

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

4 / 29

70.97% 44

30.65% 19

Q4 Do you own your home or rent?
Answered: 62 Skipped: 1

Total Respondents: 62  

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Own

Rent

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Own

Rent

207

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

5 / 29

22.92% 11

4.17% 2

0.00% 0

33.33% 16

39.58% 19

Q5 If you rent your home, what type of dwelling do you live in?
Answered: 48 Skipped: 15

TOTAL 48

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Single
Detached Home

Mobile Home/
Manufactured...

Room Rental

Townhouse/
Apartment/...

N/A Do not Rent

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Single Detached Home

Mobile Home/ Manufactured Home 

Room Rental  

Townhouse/ Apartment/ Condo/Duplex

N/A Do not Rent

208

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

6 / 29

60.71% 34

7.14% 4

14.29% 8

17.86% 10

Q6 If you own your home, what type of dwelling do you live in?
Answered: 56 Skipped: 7

TOTAL 56

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Single
Detached Home

Mobile Home/
Manufactured...

Townhouse/
Apartment/...

N/A Do Not Own

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Single Detached Home

Mobile Home/ Manufactured Home 

Townhouse/ Apartment/ Condo/Duplex

N/A Do Not Own

209

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

7 / 29

53.23% 33

46.77% 29

Q7 Do you feel your current housing is affordable?
Answered: 62 Skipped: 1

TOTAL 62

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

NO

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

NO

210

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

8 / 29

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

27.27% 9

21.21% 7

42.42% 14

9.09% 3

Q8 How many bedrooms does your home have?
Answered: 33 Skipped: 30

TOTAL 33

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

0 (Studio
apartment)

1

2

3

4

More than 4

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

0 (Studio apartment)

1

2

3

4

More than 4

211

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

9 / 29

54.55% 18

18.18% 6

27.27% 9

Q9 Will you want to move in the next 5-10 years?
Answered: 33 Skipped: 30

TOTAL 33

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

Not Sure
(please...

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Not Sure  (please specify)

212

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

10 / 29

Q10 If you answered yes to question 9, what will you be looking for when
you move? ( Select all that apply)

Answered: 27 Skipped: 36

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

More bedrooms

Less bedrooms

Larger space

Smaller space

More affordable

Closer to
shops and...

Closer to
friends and...

Closer to
employment

better access
to outdoor...

Other (please
specify)

213

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

11 / 29

7.41% 2

18.52% 5

37.04% 10

18.52% 5

48.15% 13

7.41% 2

3.70% 1

7.41% 2

14.81% 4

25.93% 7

Total Respondents: 27  

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

More bedrooms

Less bedrooms

Larger space

Smaller space

More affordable

Closer to shops and services

Closer to friends and family

Closer to employment

better access to outdoor amenities 

Other (please specify)

214

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

12 / 29

55.17% 16

13.79% 4

3.45% 1

27.59% 8

Q11 If you plan to move in the next 5 to 10 years, where do you anticipate
moving?

Answered: 29 Skipped: 34

TOTAL 29

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Within Olds

Communities
surrounding...

Calgary

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Within Olds

Communities surrounding Olds

Calgary

Other (please specify)

215

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

13 / 29

54.84% 17

25.81% 8

25.81% 8

12.90% 4

19.35% 6

0.00% 0

19.35% 6

29.03% 9

25.81% 8

Q12 What characteristics are you looking for in housing? (Select all that
apply)

Answered: 31 Skipped: 32

Total Respondents: 31  

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Allows Pets

Better location

More space

More bedrooms

Less bedrooms

Better Access
to Transit

Better Access
to Outdoor...

Accessibility
Requirements

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Allows Pets

Better location

More space

More bedrooms

Less bedrooms

Better Access to Transit

Better Access to Outdoor Amenities 

Accessibility Requirements

Other (please specify)

216

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

14 / 29

67.24% 39

70.69% 41

67.24% 39

43.10% 25

32.76% 19

Q13 What housing issues are a concern to you? Check all that apply. 
Answered: 58 Skipped: 5

Total Respondents: 58  

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Lack of
Housing Options

Cost of
Ownership /...

Cost of Renting

Lack of Pet
Friendly...

Lack of
Accessible...

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Lack of Housing Options

Cost of Ownership /  Down Payment

Cost of Renting

Lack of Pet Friendly Renting Options

Lack of Accessible Housing Options

217

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

15 / 29

96.97% 32

3.03% 1

Q14 Does your current living situation have enough bedrooms for
everyone living in your home?

Answered: 33 Skipped: 30

TOTAL 33

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

218

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

16 / 29

87.10% 27

12.90% 4

Q15 Does your current unit meet your accessibility needs
Answered: 31 Skipped: 32

TOTAL 31

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

219

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

17 / 29

83.87% 26

16.13% 5

Q16 Is your current Housing well maintained( I.e in a good state of repair)
Answered: 31 Skipped: 32

TOTAL 31

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

220

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

18 / 29

32.79% 20

24.59% 15

19.67% 12

11.48% 7

3.28% 2

6.56% 4

1.64% 1

Q17 How many people, including you, live in your household?
Answered: 61 Skipped: 2

TOTAL 61

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

1

2

3

4

5

More than 5

Seven or more

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

1

2

3

4

5

More than 5

Seven or more

221

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

19 / 29

60.00% 30

0.00% 0

20.00% 10

6.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

14.00% 7

Q18 If you are looking for housing , which category of home are you
looking for?

Answered: 50 Skipped: 13

TOTAL 50

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Single-
Detached Home

Mobile Home /
Manufactured...

Townhouse/
Apartment/...

Rental -
Single-...

Rental -
Mobile Home ...

Rental -
Basement sui...

Rental -
Townhouse/...

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Single- Detached Home

Mobile Home / Manufactured Home

Townhouse/ Apartment/ Condo/Duplex

Rental - Single- Detached  Home

Rental - Mobile Home / Manufactured Home

Rental - Basement suite/ room

Rental - Townhouse/ Apartment/ Condo /Duplex

222

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

20 / 29

33.90% 20

1.69% 1

23.73% 14

40.68% 24

Q19 If you are looking for housing in Olds, what type are you looking for?
Answered: 59 Skipped: 4

TOTAL 59

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Ownership

Short Term
Rental...

Long Term
Rental...

Not currently
looking

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Ownership

Short Term Rental (seasonal or temporary)

Long Term Rental (permanent)

Not currently looking

223

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

21 / 29

6.67% 4

38.33% 23

33.33% 20

11.67% 7

1.67% 1

8.33% 5

Q20 How much does your monthly budget allow for rent or mortgage
payments? (Not including utilities)

Answered: 60 Skipped: 3

TOTAL 60

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Less $600

$600-$1000

$1001-$1500

$1501- $1900

$1901- $2300

$2300 Plus

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Less $600

$600-$1000

$1001-$1500

$1501- $1900

$1901- $2300

$2300 Plus

224

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

22 / 29

33.33% 10

43.33% 13

23.33% 7

Q21 Are you spending more than 30% of your before tax income on rent
annually?

Answered: 30 Skipped: 33

TOTAL 30

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

Not Sure
(please...

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Not Sure (please specify)

225

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

23 / 29

20.00% 6

56.67% 17

23.33% 7

Q22 Are you spending more than 50% of your before tax income on rent
annually?

Answered: 30 Skipped: 33

TOTAL 30

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

Not Sure
(please...

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Not Sure (please specify)

226

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

24 / 29

88.71% 55

41.94% 26

30.65% 19

69.35% 43

38.71% 24

Q23 What are the most important items for you when choosing a home to
rent or buy?

Answered: 62 Skipped: 1

Total Respondents: 62  

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Cost of Housing

Number of
Bedrooms

Year of home

Location

Pet friendly

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Cost of Housing

Number of Bedrooms

Year of home

Location

Pet friendly

227

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

25 / 29

42.62% 26

59.02% 36

27.87% 17

52.46% 32

18.03% 11

27.87% 17

29.51% 18

31.15% 19

Q24 In the Town of Olds who do you think faces the greatest challenges
finding housing?

Answered: 61 Skipped: 2

Total Respondents: 61  

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Families

Single parent
households

Post secondary
students/...

Single People

Newcomers to
Canada

Individuals
with mental...

Individuals
Experiencing...

Individuals
with...

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Families

Single parent households

Post secondary students/ Seasonal Workers

Single People

Newcomers to Canada

Individuals with mental health/ addiction problems

Individuals Experiencing Homelessness

Individuals with  disabilities. 

228

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

26 / 29

20.00% 12

80.00% 48

Q25 Do you believe Olds has suitable rentals?
Answered: 60 Skipped: 3

TOTAL 60

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

229

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

27 / 29

Q26 What type of housing do you think the Town of Olds requires more of?
Check all that apply.

Answered: 62 Skipped: 1

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Single-
Detached Homes

Townhouse/
Duplex

Apartment /
Condo

Rental-
Townhouses/...

Rental-
Houses(affor...

Supportive
Housing for...

Supportive
Housing for...

Affordable
Housing

Accessible

Emergency
shelter

230

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

28 / 29

29.03% 18

35.48% 22

41.94% 26

51.61% 32

48.39% 30

22.58% 14

19.35% 12

74.19% 46

16.13% 10

27.42% 17

Total Respondents: 62  

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Single- Detached Homes

Townhouse/  Duplex

Apartment / Condo

Rental- Townhouses/ Apartment/ Condo/ Duplex

Rental- Houses(affordable: example entire houses not just rooms)

Supportive Housing for people with Disabilities

Supportive Housing for people with Mental Health Issues/ substance abuse

Affordable Housing

Accessible

Emergency shelter

231

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

29 / 29

Q27 Any other comments you have about Housing in Olds
Answered: 32 Skipped: 31

232

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

1 / 2

Q27 Any other comments you have about Housing in Olds
Answered: 32 Skipped: 31

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Please make more affordable duplexes and townhouse with garages. 3/11/2023 9:19 PM

2 This is the time to facilitate low interest loans to homeowners and landlords to support energy
efficient renovations. Also it should be easier to create legal suites and multi-unit dwellings and
renovate these with a low interest loan for energy efficient upgrades. There are many beautiful
old homes in great neighbourhoods, which are in need of significant improvement, the costs
exceed new built costs. Examples for programs can be found in Banff/Canmore. ALSO, OLDS
NEEDS TO BE CONNECTED TO PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ALONG HWY 2 AND
OPTIMALLY ALSO HWY 22.

3/11/2023 11:30 AM

3 For a long time, we have been in desperate need of affordable housing options for younger
adults. I recognize the need for senior housing, but if the workforce has no place to live, who is
going to service that demographic?

3/10/2023 4:35 PM

4 Affordable does NOT mean $300,000+ . Affordable means a decent home for definitely under
$200,000

3/10/2023 3:43 PM

5 Increased supportive living and long term care beds for the aging population that is currently
acutely ill. Rentals that are more affordable.

3/10/2023 12:20 PM

6 Mixed-use development would be ideal; low-rise construction with commercial space on the
ground floor.

3/10/2023 11:30 AM

7 Right now no we’re to go 3/9/2023 3:14 PM

8 Secure, affordable housing is one of the largest issues facing our community at present. 3/9/2023 11:50 AM

9 There seem to be quite a number of unseen homeless people in our community - couch surfers
and the like. There needs to be MORE affordable housing for individuals who are on some sort
of income assistance.

3/9/2023 10:49 AM

10 Your quality of decent apartments leaves much to be desired! Selection very poor. Cannot
afford to buy a condo as they are as much as buying a house, plus they want condo fees on
top of that! We need decent apartment complexes that are up to date, wheelchair accessible
and close to shopping centre. Your condo’s should be available for rent instead of owning. I’ve
watched the availability of your condos for 8 years now,here in Olds and they basically never
sell and need many renovations and updates! Our fear is if we were to buy a condo and then at
some point have to go to a care home, the condo doesn’t sell for a decent price or doesn’t sell
at all, what happens to the one that ends up in the care home and the one left behind? There is
one less pension coming in, can’t pay condo fees or even worse as we witnessed ourselves.
One couple who we’ve known all our lives were renting an apartment! He got sick and had to
be placed in a private care home, not covered by government funding, did not fall under
assessment to qualify for a government funded institution but could not remain in his wife’s
care due to his cancer and disability! She could not afford to remain in their apartment and pay
for his private nursing home, he knew this and so he deliberately quit taking his medication (
unknown to staff he was not swallowing these pills) he deteriorated fast and after he passed
they found the pills he hadn’t taken! We don’t want to end up the same way! Build some
decent affordable apartments or condos for rent for those of us who can’t afford to buy!

3/8/2023 3:32 PM

11 Work towards getting developers who build in quality affordable housing market 3/7/2023 9:55 AM

12 Higher density housing is needed. Apartments, condos, primary rental units are a must 3/5/2023 8:48 PM

13 Hard for people to find affordable housing near affordable services 3/3/2023 8:37 PM

14 Mobile home parks are a great option if properly managed. Your planning/development
department has so much influence on builders coming to town. Work with them to make it
easier to build and not more difficult. Your planning/development dept has been a disaster in

3/3/2023 7:29 PM

233

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



Town of Olds Housing Needs Assessment

2 / 2

past years. I think you have a much better crew now. Don’t fight your local builders… work with
them.

15 There are many illegal suites in Olds, which are putting tenants' safety at risk. But renters are
desperate and are willing to take anything they can find. Landlords are taking advantage of the
housing situation in Olds, charging far too much for far too little.

3/1/2023 7:57 PM

16 It's really unaffordable in Olds because people from BC and Ontario come here with big money
and drive the price up making it impossible for people who been here for over 20 years ever be
able to afford a home.

3/1/2023 3:53 PM

17 This survey is so poorly organized in terms of questioning, who wrote this? 3/1/2023 2:47 PM

18 No 3/1/2023 12:24 PM

19 Need more pet friendly rentals 3/1/2023 12:22 PM

20 Lower rent and have more parking 3/1/2023 10:07 AM

21 Need more senior apartments or housing 3/1/2023 9:17 AM

22 It’s outrageously expensive for what you get. I sold a beautifully renovated, newer and larger 5
bedroom up north for 3x less than what my current home in Olds cost to purchase. Also, there
aren’t many homes with 3 bedrooms on the main floor for sale at any given time. There are so
many housing options for seniors and adults 45+, but what about families?

3/1/2023 7:53 AM

23 Rentals need a cap. 3/1/2023 6:13 AM

24 Olds is very much in need of affordable housing. We need apartments. Or housing funded by
the government. There r very few apartments in town and a lot of condos. Condos are
expensive and not entirely accessible to low income families. Townhouses would also be nice
affordable rentals but sometimes people make them unaffordable for those in need.

2/28/2023 9:50 PM

25 A tiny home development for single people would be a great option. Don’t need a huge home
but would love to still own a home

2/28/2023 9:19 PM

26 My daughter was trying to find a condo to buy our rent and there was nothing for the under 30
age group.

2/28/2023 9:11 PM

27 There are no houses that are all on one level that are being built. This is the kind of home older
people need.

2/28/2023 6:35 PM

28 Buying a home is expensive! But the taxes make it almost impossible. Our taxes are double
then we paid before moving here. When calling we had to speak to someone that sets our
taxes and has NEVER even been to Olds. We pay so much because we live 15 mins from
Walmart. Making taxes more affordable, people would be able to purchase home. The town
needs to find a better company to assess

2/28/2023 5:52 PM

29 Expensive water. High priced homes 2/28/2023 5:26 PM

30 No 2/28/2023 5:17 PM

31 The biggest problem with home ownership is paying the bills. Not something town council can
help with it is the currant government. TAX TAX TAX.

2/28/2023 4:42 PM

32 We are in desperate need of low cost housing for individuals on AISH. I am unable to afford to
live anywhere decent with such a low income. All rent is 75% of my income. We need to be
able to pay rent on a sliding scale.

2/28/2023 4:31 PM

234

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



A P P E N D I X  D
L A N D  U S E  M A P S

235

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



47 ST

SHANNON DR

57 AVE

46 ST

53
 A

VE
53 ST

65
AV

E

54 ST

61
AV

E

67
A 

AV
E

58 ST

50 ST

51 ST

53 ST

56 ST

VISTA DR

60
 A

VE

60 ST
WINTER DR

47
 A

VE

54
 A

VE

BR
IEG

EL
R
D

ASH ST

51
 A

VE

43 ST

57 ST

50
 A

VE

50
 A

VE

48 ST
55

 A
VE

47
 A

VE

55 ST

52 ST

52 ST

44 ST

45 ST

42 ST

48
 A

VE

49
 A

VE

63
 A

VE

70
 A

VE

IMPERIAL DR

57
 A

VE

57 AVE

55 ST

48
 A

VE

46
 A

VE
46

 A
VE49

 A
VE

54 ST

49 ST

46 ST

57 ST

47
 A

VE

53 ST
53 ST53 ST53 ST 51

 A
VE

49 ST

48 ST

53
 A

VE

52
 A

VE

June 2023NAD 1983 10TM AEP

Housing Types

SCALE: 1:15,000

0 400 800200

Meters

Ü
D

oc
um

en
t P

at
h:

 \\
co

rp
\T

A
L\

C
O

LO
\2

53
1\

25
31

-6
71

 T
ow

n 
of

 O
ld

s\
02

-0
0 

O
ld

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tu
dy

\1
1.

0 
P

la
nn

in
g\

5.
0 

P
la

nn
in

g 
D

w
gs

\G
IS

\O
ld

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tu
dy

\O
ld

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tu
dy

.a
pr

x 
   

   
A

ut
ho

r:
 L

S
tr

on
g

O
rig

in
al

 P
ap

er
 S

iz
e:

 1
1"

 x
 1

7"

Legend
Town Boundary

Town Boundary

Housing Types

Low Density Residential:
Detached Dwellings

General Residental:
Detached Dwellings &
Duplexes

Medium Density
Residential: Rowhouses,
Multi-plexes, & Apartments

Manufactured Home

Country Residential

Country Residential A

Direct Control

Roads

Collector Road

Highway

Service Road

Street

11

236

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



47 ST

SHANNON DR

57 AVE

46 ST

53
 A

VE
53 ST

65
AV

E

54 ST

61
AV

E

67
A 

AV
E

58 ST

50 ST

51 ST

53 ST

56 ST

VISTA DR

60
 A

VE

60 ST
WINTER DR

47
 A

VE

54
 A

VE

BR
IEG

EL
R
D

ASH ST

51
 A

VE

43 ST

57 ST

50
 A

VE

50
 A

VE

48 ST
55

 A
VE

47
 A

VE

55 ST

52 ST

52 ST

44 ST

45 ST

42 ST

48
 A

VE

49
 A

VE

63
 A

VE

70
 A

VE

IMPERIAL DR

57
 A

VE

57 AVE

55 ST

48
 A

VE

46
 A

VE
46

 A
VE49

 A
VE

54 ST

49 ST

46 ST

57 ST

47
 A

VE

53 ST
53 ST53 ST53 ST 51

 A
VE

49 ST

48 ST

53
 A

VE

52
 A

VE

June 2023NAD 1983 10TM AEP

Residential
Housing Locations

SCALE: 1:15,000

0 400 800200

Meters

Ü
D

oc
um

en
t P

at
h:

 \\
co

rp
\T

A
L\

C
O

LO
\2

53
1\

25
31

-6
71

 T
ow

n 
of

 O
ld

s\
02

-0
0 

O
ld

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tu
dy

\1
1.

0 
P

la
nn

in
g\

5.
0 

P
la

nn
in

g 
D

w
gs

\G
IS

\O
ld

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tu
dy

\O
ld

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tu
dy

.a
pr

x 
   

   
A

ut
ho

r:
 L

S
tr

on
g

O
rig

in
al

 P
ap

er
 S

iz
e:

 1
1"

 x
 1

7"

Legend
Town Boundary

Residential

Roads

Collector Road
Highway
Service Road
Street

11

237

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



SILVER- SILVER-
300 200 100

SILVER-
THORNTHORN

CLCLCL
THORN

CL

SILVER-
400

THORN CL
SIERRA

100

CRES

50
 AV

E

57
 AV

E

55 ST

BA
LS

AM
 C

RE
S

53 ST

51 ST

54
 AV

E

61
 AV

E

53 ST

44 ST

46
 AV

E (
HI

GH
WA

Y 2
A)

47 ST

47
 AV

E

55
 AV

E

IMPERIAL DR

44 ST

56
 AV

E

50 ST

53 ST

51 ST

57
 AV

E

58
 AV

E

50 ST

56 ST

52
 AV

E

56
 AV

E

48
 AV

E

55
 AV

E

BALSAM CRES

47
 AV

E

56 ST

50 ST

49
 AV

E

57
 AV

E

49
 AV

E

51 ST

56
 AV

E

48 ST

55 ST

61
 AV

E

50
 AV

E

IMPERIAL DR

52
 AV

E

54
 AV

E

SHERWOOD

54
 AV

E

BALSAM

57
 AV

E

56
 AV

E

54 ST

47
 AV

E

44 ST

52
 AV

E

49 ST

55
 AV

E
SH

AN
NO

N 
DR

53
 AV

E

SHANNON DR

51
 AV

E

47
 AV

E

IMPERIAL WAY

54 ST

57
 AV

E

43 ST

51 ST

60
 AV

E

AS
PE

N 
CL

53 ST

51 ST

ASH ST

61
 AV

E
42 ST

53
 AV

E

SILVERTHORN RD

53
 AV

EBE
EC

H C
RE

S

43 ST

50
 AV

E

52 ST

AL
DE

R 
CL

49 ST

SIL
VE

RT
HO

RN
 R

D

45 ST

CRES

52
 AV

E

50
 AV

E

53
 AV

E

44 ST

51
 AV

E

48 ST

45 ST

52 ST

50
 AV

E

43 ST

SERVICE RD

SIL
VE

RP
AR

K 
ES

TA
TE

S C
L

SILVERPARK  CL

56A ST CL

53
 AV

E

51
 AV

E

58 ST

60 AVE CL

42 ST

49
 AV

E

55
 AV

E

51
 AV

E

Mc
LE

OD

54 ST

RI
CH

AR
DS

 C
RE

S

56 ST

46 ST (HIGHWAY 27)

CR
ES 47

 AV
E

52 ST

48
 AV

E

58 ST

DAVIS PL

58 ST

57
 AV

E

59 AVE 58
 AV

E 49
 AV

E

48
 AV

E

46
 AV

E (
HI

GH
WA

Y 2
A)

48
 AV

E

47
 AV

E

63
 AV

E

DUNCAN PL

65
 AV

E

BEECH CRES

63
 AV

E

DU
NC

AN
 PL

55 ST

BIRCH CL

BEECH CRES

53 ST

65
 AV

E

BI
RC

H 
RD

61
 AV

E

55 ST

IM
PE

RI
AL

 R
D

IMPERIAL CL

HA
WT

HO
RN

 W
AY

HA
WT

HO
RN

 C
R

62
 AV

E

PARK LANE

60 ST

LA
KE

 R
ID

GE

WINTER DRIVE

SIERRA

SHANNON
DRIVE

SHANNON DRIVE

SHANNON DRIVE

42
 ST

51
 AV

E

HAWTHORN WAY

HAWTHORN

DE
ST

IN
AT

IO
N 

PL
AC

E

SIE
RR

A 
DR

IVE

SIERRA PLACE

VA
LIA

NT
 C

RE
S

VA
NT

AG
E C

RE
S

VISTA DRIVE

VA
NT

AG
E C

RE
S

VA
LIA

NT
 C

RE
S

50 
AV

E

VE
RM

ON
T C

LO
SE

52 ST

51 ST

50 ST

MTN VIEW CL

50
 AV

E

SHANNON CL

59
 AV

E

57 ST

60 ST

43 ST CLOSE

SHANNON DR

DOUGLAS

PL
AC

E

SIE
RR

A 
 R

OA
D

PARK

PA
RK

 M
EA

DO
W

S C
R

PA
RK

 M
EA

DO
W

S C
R

60 ST

49
 AV

E

58 ST

WILLOW    LANE

WILLOW WAY

WI
LL

OW
 G

RE
EN

DE
ST

IN
Y W

AY

DESTINY PL

IMPERIAL DR IMPERIAL DR

70
 AV

E

DE
ST

IN
Y P

L

CYPRESS
CL

SUNRISE CR

LAKE RIDGE

57 AVE CL

WAY

DUNCAN PL
56 ST

57
 AV

E

54 ST

ROAD

IMPERIAL DR

IMPERIAL DR

49 ST

46
 AV

E (
HI

GH
WA

Y 2
A)

46
 AV

E (
HI

GH
WA

Y 2
A)

46
 AV

E (
HI

GH
WA

Y 2
A)

70
 AV

E
70

 AV
E

70
 AV

E
70

 AV
E

70
 AV

E

46 ST (HIGHWAY 27)46 ST (HIGHWAY 27)46 ST (HIGHWAY 27)

IM
PE

RI
AL

 W
AY

SHANNON

DR

MEADOWS PL

43 ST

44 ST

42 ST

49
 AV

E

57
 AV

E

BA
LS

AM
 C

RE
S

BALSAM CRES

SHANNON DR

46
 AV

E (
HI

GH
WA

Y 2
A)

VE
RA

 C
LO

SE

ER
HA

RT
 C

LO
SE

BR
IEG

EL
 R

OA
D

57 ST

WINTER DRIVE

WARE
CLOSE

ULRY
CLOSE

BR
IEG

EL
 R

OA
D

VISTA DRIVE

VIC
ER

OY
 C

RE
S

51 ST

VIN
CE

NT
 C

RE
S

VIOLET CLOSE

57 ST

DESTINY LANE

KE
OW

N 
CL

OS
E

WI
GH

AM
 C

LO
SE

CO
UT

TS
 C

LO
SE

68 ST 68 ST

HA
RR

ISO
N 

GR
EE

N

HA
RR

ISO
N 

GR
EE

N

VIR
EO

 AV
E

CA
NA

DIA
N P

AC
IFI

C R
AIL

WA
Y

51
 AV

E

40 ST

6
1
0

2

5
1
0

35
1
0

5

410 8

410 6

410 4

410 2

710 1

BUILDING B BUILDING C

6
1

3
6

6
1

3
4

11
0

1

4833

6,10

2

5,9

1

8,12

4

7,11

3

304,404

204

305,405

205

306,406

206
303,403

203

302,402

202

307,407

207

308,408

208

301,401

201

312,412

212
309,409

209

310,410

210

311,411

211

102
202
302

204,304 206,306

106

208,308

108

207,307

107

205,305

105

203,303

103
201,301

101

308,408

208301,401

201302,402

202
303,403

203

304,404

204

405

305
306,406

206

307,407

207

205

10
3

10
4

10
110

2

20
4

20
1

20
3

20
230

1

30
430

3
30

2

1,2

3,4

5,6

7,8

15,16

13,14

11,12

9,10

219,319

119

222,322

122

224,324

124

221,321

121

223,323

123

228,328

128

226,326

126

217,317

8

316

218,318

118

220,320

120

117

215,315

115

205,305

105

208,308

108
210,310

110212,312

112

207,307

203,303

103

201,301

101

206,306

106

204,304

202,302

214,314

114

209,309

109

107

203,303

103

204,304

104

205,305

105

206,306

106

207,307

107208,308

201,301

101202,302

102

117,127
107

118,128
108

116,126
106

114,124
104

112,122
102

111,121
101

113,123
103

115,125
105

214,224
204

216,226
206

218,228
208

217,227
207

215,225
205

213,223
203

211,221
201

212,222
202

91
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

301,401

201

302

202

303,403

203

304,404

204305

205306,406

206

308,408

208

307,407

207

205

305,405

207

307,407

209

309,409

211

311,411

212

312,412

210

310,410

208

308,408

206

306,406 203

303,403

201

301,401

202

302,402

204

304,404

4837
4825

7 6

5

4

3

2

1

10

9

8

5209

5101

5114

4
6

2
2

5013

4
7

0
5

5290 - 43 AVE

5
0

4
2

4820

5
1

2
2

5
2

4
1

5
4

0
6

5210

5212

5
2

1
7

5
2

0
5

5
1

3
3

5
1
1

3

5
0

3
7

5
4

0
1

5
4

1
3

5422

5830

5
0

0
1

5
0

1
3

5
3

2
1

5
2

2
9

4
8

3
8

4050

5
1

4
1

5
1

2
1

5
0

2
0

5
0

2
2

5
0

1
8

5
0

0
4

5
3

2
8

5
2

0
2

5
5

0
8

4
5

3
0
B

4
5

2
6
B

4236

4321

4403
4401

4405

4406

5
4

0
5

5
4

0
7

5
4

0
9

5
4

1
1

5
4

1
3

5
4

1
5

5
4

1
7

5
4

1
9

5
5

0
5

5
5

0
7

5
5

0
9

5
5

1
1

5
5

1
3

5
5

1
5

5
5

1
7

5
5

1
9

5
5

2
1

5
5

2
3

4
6

1
0

4
6

1
4

4
6

2
24
6

2
6

4
6

3
4

4
6

3
8

4
6

4
6

4
6

4
1

4
6

3
3

4
6

2
9

4
6

2
1

4
6

1
7

4
6

1
3

4
6

0
9

5102

4
6

2
6

4
6

2
4

4
6

3
0

4
6

3
4

4
6

3
8

4614 4
6

1
0

5014A

5002

4
6

0
9

4
6

1
3

4
6

1
7

4
6

2
14

6
3

3

4
6

2
6

4
6

3
0

4
6

3
4

4
6

1
8

4
6

1
4

4
6

0
6

4
6

0
5

4
6

0
14

6
1

34
6

2
5

4
6

2
1

4
6

2
6

4
6

2
2

4
6

1
8

4
6

1
4

4
6

1
0

4
6

0
2

4
6

1
7

4
6

1
3

4
6

0
9

4
6

0
1

4
6

1
3

4
6

0
9

4
6

0
6

4
6

1
0

4
6

1
8

4
6

1
8

4
6

1
4

4
6

1
0

4
6

0
6

4
6

3
0

4
6

2
2

4622

4614

4610

4602

4625

4617

4609

4601

4621

4625

4621

4602

4618

4622

4617

4601

4609

4613

4
7

2
6

4
7

3
0

4
7

3
4

4
7

3
7

4
7

2
9

4
7

2
5

4
7

2
1

4
7

1
3

4
7

0
9

4
7

0
5

4
7

0
1

4
7

0
2

4
7

3
8

4
7

1
0

4
7

1
4

4
7

1
8

4
7

2
2

4
7

2
6

4
7

3
0

4
7

3
7

4
7

3
3

4
7

2
9

4
7

2
5

4
7

2
1

4
7

1
7

4
7

1
3

4
7

0
9

4
7

0
1

4
7

0
2

4
7

0
6

4
7

1
0

4
7

1
4

4
7

1
8

4
7

2
2

4
7

2
6

4
7

3
0

4
7

3
8

4
7

3
7

4
7

0
1

4
7

0
5

4
7

0
9

4
7

1
3

4
7

1
7

4
7

2
1

4
7

2
5

4
7

2
9

4
7

3
8

4
7

3
0

4
7

2
6

4
7

2
2

4
7

1
8

4
7

1
4

4
7

1
0

4
7

0
6

4
7

0
14
7

0
9

4
7

0
54
7

1
3

4
7

2
1

4
7

2
5

4
7

2
9

4
7

3
3

4
7

3
7

4
7

0
2

4
7

0
6

4
7

1
0

4
7

1
8

4
7

2
2

4
7

2
6

4
7

3
0

4
7

3
4

4
7

2
1

4
7

2
5

4
7

3
3

4
7

3
7

4
7

1
3

4
7

0
9

4
7

0
1

4
7

0
2

4
7

1
0

4
7

1
4

4
7

1
8

4
7

2
2

4
7

3
0

4
7

3
4

4
7

3
8

4
6

0
3

4
6

0
9

4
6

0
1

5
3

1
4

5217

5201

5209

5213

5210

5214

5218

4
7

0
9

4
7

0
5

4
7

0
1

4
6

4
5

4
6

4
1

46
3
7

4
7

1
3

4
7

1
9

4
7

2
14

7
3

3

4
7

2
5

4614

4
8

3
3

4
8

2
9

4
8

2
5

4
8

2
1

4
8

1
7

4
8

0
2

4
8

0
6

4
8

1
0

4
8

1
4

4
8

1
8

4
8

2
2

4
8

2
6

4
8

3
0

4
8

3
4

4601

4609

4711

4707

4701

4
8

0
9

4713

4
8

3
3

4
8

2
9

4
8

2
5

4
8

2
1

4
8

1
7

4
8

1
3

4
8

0
5

4
8

0
2

4
8

0
6

4
8

1
04
8

1
8

4
8

2
2

4
8

2
6

4
8

3
0

4
8

3
4

4801

4805

4809

4817

4
8

3
3

4
8

2
9

4
8

2
1

4
8

1
7

4
8

1
3

4
8

0
9

4
8

0
1

4
8

0
2

4
8

0
6

4
8

1
4

4
8

1
8

4
8

2
2

4
8

2
6

4
8

3
2

4
8

3
4

4
8

3
3

4
8

2
9

4
8

2
5

4
8

2
3

4
8

2
1

4
8

1
7

4
8

1
3
B

4
8

0
9

4
8

0
1

4
8

2
6

4
8

1
8

4
8

1
0

4
8

3
0

4
8

3
4

4901

4909

4919

5010

4
8

1
04
8

1
4

4
8

1
8

4
8

2
6

4
8

3
0

4
8

3
4

4
8

2
1

4
8

1
3

4
8

0
9

4
8

0
5

4
8

0
1

4
8

2
9

5001
5003

5011

5017
5019

4
8

3
3

4
8

2
9

4
8

2
5

4
8

0
9

5
1

0
2

4
8

0
2

4
8

0
4

4
8

1
0

4
8

1
4

4
8

1
8

4
8

2
2

4
8

2
6

4
8

3
0

4
8

3
4

5113

5119

5201

4
8

2
1

4
8

0
1

4
8

0
5

4
8

0
9

4
8

1
7

5217

5
2

1
0

4
8

1
0

4
8

1
4

4
8

2
2

4
8

2
6

4
8

3
0

5310

5301

5313

5305

5317

5325

5329

5333

5337

4601
4602

4610

4718

4607

4817

4810

4920B

4901C

4905C

4950

5002
5001

5105

5107

5120

5306

5322

5219

5303

5327

4810

4808

4806

50335029

5
0

2
5

5
0

2
1

5
0

1
3

5
0

1
4

5
0

3
4

5
0

3
8

5
1

3
8

5
1

3
4

5
1

3
0

5
1

2
6

5
1

2
2

5
1
1

8

5
1
1

0

5
1

0
6

5
1

0
2

5
1

0
15

1
1

3

5
1
1

7

5
1

2
1

5
1

2
5

5
1

2
9

5
1

3
7

5
1

3
3

4714

4718

4602

5
6

0
1

5
6

1
7

5
6

2
9

5
6

2
6

5
6

1
4

5
6

1
0

5
6

0
6

5
6

0
2 4917

4913

5
3

0
9

4921

4902

4906

4910

5
5

0
1

5
5

0
5

5
5

0
9

5
5

1
7

5
5

2
1

4601B

5
5

3
0

5
5

2
6

5
5

2
4

5
5

1
8

5
5

1
4

5
5

0
6

5
5

0
2

4922

5402

5
3

1
4

5
2

3
3

5
2

2
9

5
2

2
1

4812

4702

4706

4806

4818

5
2

3
0

4906

4902

5
2

1
4

5
2

1
0

5
2

0
6

5
2

0
2 5

1
0

9

5
1
1

3

5
1
1

7

5
1

2
1

5
1

2
5

5133

5
1

3
4

5
1

3
8

5
1

3
2

5
1

2
6

5
1
1

8
A

5
1
1

4

5
1
1

0

5
1

0
2

4902

4906

5
0

1
7

5
0

1
3

5
0

1
4

5
0

1
8

5
0

2
2

5
0

2
6

5
0

3
8

4911

5
0

3
0

4908

4904

4902

4910
4912

4914
4916

4920

5
6

2
5

5
6

0
15
6

1
3

5
6

1
7

5
6

2
15

6
2

9

5
6

3
3

5
6

3
7

5
6

4
1

5
6

3
8

5
6

3
4

5
6

3
0

5
6

2
6

5
6

2
2

5
6

1
8

5
6

1
4

5
6

1
0

5
6

0
6

5
6

0
2

5
3

1
3
A

5
3

1
75
4

0
1

5
4

0
9

5
4

1
3

5
4

1
7

5
5

0
1

5
5

0
5

5
5

1
1

5
5

1
7

5
5

1
8

5
5

1
4

5
5

1
0

5
5

0
6

5
5

0
2

5
4

1
8

5
4

1
4

5
4

1
0

5
4

0
2

5
3

0
6

5
3

0
25

3
1

4

5
2

1
8

5
3

2
2

5
3

2
1

5
3

0
9

5
3

0
5

5
3

0
1

5
2

0
1

5
2

0
5

5
2

0
9

5
2

1
3

5
2

1
7

5005

5
2

3
4

5
2

3
0

5
2

2
6

5
2

2
2

5
2

1
8

5
2

1
4

5
2

1
0

5
2

0
6

5
2

0
2

5
1

0
1

5
1

0
5

5
1

0
9

5
1
1

3

5
1
1

7

5
1

2
1

5
1

2
5

5
1

2
9

5
1

3
3
A

5
1

3
7

5
1

3
8

5
1

3
4

5
1

3
0

5
1

2
6

5
1

2
2

5
1
1

8

5
1

0
2

5
0

1
6

5
0

1
4

5
0

1
8

5
0

2
0

5
0

2
2

5
0

2
4

5
0

2
6

5
0

3
0

5
0

3
2

5
0

3
4

5
0

3
7

5
0

3
3

5
0

2
9

5
0

2
5

5
0

2
1

5
0
1

7

5
0

1
3

5
0

1
0

5008

5004

5010
5012

5014
5016

5018

5002

5
6

1
7

5
6

1
4

5
6

1
8

5
6

2
2

5
6

2
6

5
6

3
0

5
6

3
3

5
6

2
9

5
6

2
5

5
6

2
1

5
6

1
3

5
6

0
5

5
6

0
1

5116

5118 5113

5
5

0
1

5
5

0
5

5
5

0
9

5
5

1
3

5
5

1
7

5
5

2
1

5
5

1
0

5
5

0
6

5
5

0
2

5
4

1
3

5
4

0
9

5
4

0
5

5
4

0
1

5
3

1
3

5
3

0
5

5
3

0
1

5
3

0
2

5
3

0
6

5
3

1
0

5
3

1
4

5
3

1
8

5
4

0
2

5
4

0
6

5
4

1
4

5110

5
2

0
1

5114

5
2

1
0

5
2

1
4

5
2

1
8

5
2

2
2

5
2

2
6

5
2

3
0

5
2

3
4

5
2

3
8

5
2

3
7

5
2

3
3

5
2

2
9

5
2

2
1

5
2

1
7

5
2

1
3

5
2

0
9

5
2

0
5

5
1

3
8

5
1

3
7
A

5
1

3
3

5
1

2
9

5
1

2
5

5
1

2
1

5
1
1

7

5
1
1

3

5
1

0
5

5
1

0
1

5
1
1

4

5
1
1

8

5
1

2
2

5
1

2
6

5
1

3
0

5
1

3
4

5
0

2
1

5
0

1
7

5
0

2
3

5
0

2
5

5
0

2
9

5
0

3
3

5
0

3
8

5
0

1
3

5
0

2
25
0

2
6

5
0

3
0

5
0

3
4

5
0

0
9

5102

5106

5110

5112
5114

5116
5118

5218

5202

5206

5
0

1
7

5
0

2
1

5
0

2
5

5
0

2
9

5
0

3
3

5
0

3
7

5
0

1
3

5
0

1
8

5
0

2
6

5
0

3
0

5
0

3
4

5
0

3
8

5
2

3
7

5
2

1
3

5
3

0
1

5
3

0
5

5
3

0
9

5
3

1
3

5
3

1
7

5
4

0
1

5
4

0
5

5
4

0
9

5
4

1
3

5
3

0
2

5
3

0
6

5
3

1
0

5
3

1
4

5
3

1
8

5
4

0
2

5
4

0
6

5
4

1
0

5
4

1
45
5

0
2

5
5

1
0

5
5

1
4

5
5

1
3

5
5

0
9

5
5

0
5

5
5

0
1

5217

5201

5209

5
6

2
5

5
6

1
3

5
6

2
1

5
6

2
6

5
4

1
4

5
6

1
8

5
6

2
2

5202

5206

5210

5218

5
5

0
1

5
4

0
6

5
4

1
2

5
4

1
8

5
4

2
4

5
4

3
0

5
5

0
2

5
4

3
6

5
4

4
2

5
4

4
8

5
5

0
8

5
5

1
4

5
5

2
0

5
5

2
6

5
6

0
2

5
6

0
8

5
6

1
4

5
6

2
2

5357

5353

5349

5345

5341

5337

5361

5333

5329

5325

5321

5317

5313

5305

5
6

2
1

1
8

1

17
7

163

1
8

5

1
8

9

1
9

3

1
9

7

1
9

4

1
9

0

1
8

6

1
8

4

1
8

2

17
8

17
4

170

166

162

158159

155

151

147

143

139

135

131

5
8

0
1

5
8

0
5

5
8

0
9

5
8

1
3

5
9

0
1

5
9

0
5

5
9

0
9

5
9

1
3

5
9

1
7

6
0

0
5

6
0

0
1

6
0

0
9

6
0

1
3

6
0

1
7

6
0

2
1

6
0

2
5

6
0

2
9

6
0

3
3

5
8

0
2

5
8

0
6

5
8

1
0

5
8

1
4

5
9

0
2

5
9

0
6

5
9

1
0

5
9

1
4

5
9

1
8

6
0

0
2

6
0

0
6

85

7
3

6
9

6
5

6
1

5
7

5
3

4
9

107

97

21

1

5

9

13

17

5370

5366

5360

5358

5350

5346

5344

5342

5336

5338

5334

5330

5326

5322

5318

5314

5310

154

150

146

142

138

134

130

126

122

118

114

110

106

102

98

94

90

86

5
4

8
27
8

7
4

7
0

6
6

6
2

5
8

5
0

4
6

4
2

3
8

3
4

30

26

22

18

14

10

6

25365

5333

5337

5341

5345

5349

5353

5357

5361

6
0

0
1

5
9

0
7

5
9

1
3

5
9

0
1

6
0

0
7

6
1

3
1

6
1

2
9

6
1

2
7

6
1

2
5

6
1

2
3

6
1

2
1

6
1
1

9

6
1
1

7

6
1
1

5

6
1
1

3

6
1
1
1

6
1

0
9

6
1

0
7

6
1

0
5

5026

5306

5302

5214

5210

5206

5202

5118

5114

5110

5106

5102

5308

5302

5304

5306

5310

5312

5314

5
3

1
6

5
3

1
8

5320

5322

5324

5326

5328

5330

53
125

3
1

4

5316

5318 5310

5308

5306

5304

53025326

5324

5322

5320

61086
1

2
6

6118

5412

5380

5384

5388

5392

5396

5400

5404

5408

5376

5374

5
3

7
8

53
6
9

5365

5361

5357

5
3

7
4

5
3

7
0

5354

5350

5346

5338

5334

5330

5326

5322

5318

5314

5310

5358

5362

53
66

5342

5302

1
6

1
4

13

12

11
10

9

87654321

5341

5337

5333

5329

5325

5360

5362

5364

5358

6
2

2
0

6
2

2
4

6
2

2
8

6
2

3
26

2
3

66240
6244

6
2

6
3

6
2

5
9

62
55

6251

6247

5018

5103

6
4

3
0

6
4

2
6

6
4

2
2

6
3

1
0

6
3

1
4

6
3

1
8

6
2
2
0

6
4

0
2

6
4

0
6

6
4

1
0

6
4

1
4

6
4

1
8

5334

5326

5318

5310

5302

5226

5218

5210

5202

5411

27

25

23

21

19

17

1
5 1
3

11 9 7 5 3 1

1
4

1
2

1
0 8 6

3
7 3
9

4
1

2 97

5
5

5
9

5
7

6
1

95

93

91

106

102

100

94

90

86

84
82

7
87
6

7
2

6
8

6
4

6
05
6

5
2

4
8

4
43

83
43
23
0

5104

6
2

0
1

6
2

0
7

6
3

0
1

6
3

0
7

6
4

0
1

6
4

0
5

5107

5109

6
4

0
7

4
8

2
9

4
8

3
3

4
8

2
5

4
8

1
3

4
8

0
6

4
8

1
0

4
8

1
4

4
8

2
2

4
8

1
8

4
8

0
2

5502

5418

4
8

0
5

4
8

2
6

5513

5437

5433

5425

5417

5401

4
8

0
1

4
8

0
5

4
8

0
9

4
8

1
3

4
8

1
7

4
8

2
1

4
8

2
5

4
8

2
9

4
8

3
3

4
8

3
7

4
8

4
1

5629

5631

5713

4
7

2
9

4
6

1
3

5502

5701

5807

5702

5703

5708

5801 5802

4
8

0
9

4
8

0
3

5
4

0
2

5
4

0
1

5
4

0
6

5
4

0
5

5
4

1
0

5
4

0
9

5
4

1
4

5
4

1
3

5
4

2
0

5
4

2
1

5
4

2
4

5
4

2
8

5
4

2
5

5
4

3
2

5
4

2
9

5
4

3
7

5
4

4
0

5
4

3
3

5
4

3
7

5
4

4
0

5
4

1
0

5
4

1
4

5
4

2
2

5
4

2
6

5
4

3
4

5
4

0
2

5
4

0
1

5
4

0
9

5
4

1
3

5
4

1
7

5
4

2
1

5
4

2
5

5
4

3
3

5
4

3
6

5
4

2
9

5
4

3
8

4
8

9
7

6001

5825

5
5

0
2

5
5

1
0

5
5

1
4

5
5

1
8

5
5

2
2

5
6

0
2

5
6

0
4

5
6

1
0

5
5

0
1

5
5

0
9

5
5

1
3

5
5

2
1
A

5
6

0
1

5
6

0
5

5
6

0
9

5401

5
4

0
9

5417

5
5

0
2

5
5

0
1

5
5

0
6

5
5

0
5

5
5

1
0

5
5

0
9

5
5

1
4

5
5

1
3

5
5

1
7

5
5

2
2

5
5

2
1

5
6

0
2

5
6

0
6

5
6

0
5

5
6

0
9

5
6

1
0

5501

5505

5509

5513

5517

5
1

0
0

5
8

 S
T

5701

5630

5419

5417

5415

54
1
3

5
4

1
1

5
4

0
9

5
4

0
7

5
4

0
5

5
4

0
3

5
4

0
1

5421

54
23

5
4
2
5

5
4

2
7

5
4

2
9

5
4

3
1

5
4

3
3

5
4

3
5

5
4

3
7

5
4

3
9

5
4

4
1

5
4

4
5

5
5

0
2

5
5

0
4

5601

5605

5609

5613

5617

5621

5629

5625

5
5

0
3

5
5

0
1

5
5

0
5

5
5

0
7

5
5

0
1

5
5

0
5

5
5

0
9

5
5

1
3

5
5

1
756

38

5634

5630

5626

5622

5618

5614

5610

5606

56025601

5605

5609

5613

5617

5621

5625

5629

5633

5637

5641

5700
570257

0
4

5
7

0
65

7
0

8

57
1
05712

5714

5601

5603

5605

5
9

1
6

5
9

1
8

5
9

2
0

5
9

2
2

5
9

2
4

5
9

2
6

5
6

0
9

5
6

1
1

5
6

1
5

56
1
7

5619

5621

5623

5625

5627

5715

5717

5719

5721

5
7

0
1

5
7

0
3

5
7

0
5

5502

5504

5506

5508

5510

5512

5602

5606

5610

5614

5618

5622

5626

5630

5634

56385723

6
0

1
0

6
0

1
26

0
1

4

6018

6016

6
0

0
8

6
0

0
6

6
0

0
4

6
0

0
2

6
0

0
7

6
0

0
5

6
0

0
3

6
0

0
9

6
0

0
1

5638

5
6

3
3

5
6

3
5

56
37

5636

5
6

3
4

5
6

3
2

5
6

3
0

5
6

3
1

5600

5602

5604

5606

5608

5601

5603

5607

5609

5610
5611

5615 5
6

1
2

5
6

1
4

56
22

5
7

0
5

5
7

0
7

5
7

1
1

5
7
1
5

5717

5723

5721

5719

5624

5714

5716

5718

5720

5722

57245725

5722

5726

57205719

5723

5727

5716

5722

57266
0

0
4

6
0

0
8

6
0

1
2

6
0

1
8

5
7

0
3

5
7

0
1

5
7

0
5

5
7

0
7

5
7

0
9

5
8

0
3

5
8

0
5

5
8

0
7

5
8

0
9

5
8

1
1

5
9

0
5

5
9

0
7

5
9

0
9

5
9

1
5

5
9

1
7

6
0

0
3

6
0

0
5

6
0

0
9

6
0

1
1

6
0

1
7

5416

5420

6
3

2
5

6326

6324

6
3

1
46
3

1
66

3
1
8

63
2
0

63
2
2

6
3
2
3

63
21

63
19

63
17

63
1
5

63
1
3

63
11

6309

6307

6305

6303

6301

6
2

0
1

6
2

0
3

6
2

0
5

6
2

0
7

5505

5500

5614

5612

5610

5506

5504

5502

6
2

0
9

6211

6213

6215

6217

6
2

1
96220

6218

6216

62145507

5503

5501

5702

5818

5820

5822

5821

5819

5817

5815

5813

4
6

0
2 2

3
0

4517

4
6

1
8

4521

3
5

0

1
 4

5
1
3

4505

4501

4502

4402

4406

4410

4416

4420

4426

4
6

2
2

4
6

1
8

4
6

1
4

4
6

1
0

4438

4430

4434
4433

4429

4425

4421

4415

4
6

1
8

4
6

1
4

4
6

2
2

4341

4354

4350

4346

4334

4317

4201

4221

4217

4209

4205A

4117B

4109

4105

4218

4210

4202

4118

4110

4106

4102

4517

4
5

3
0

4
5

2
0

4
5

1
2

4502

4506

4514

4518

4
8

0
9

4802

4522

4
8

0
6

4
8

1
0

4
8

1
8

4
8

2
6

4
8

3
0

4
8

3
4

4
8

1
3

4
8

1
7

4
8

2
1

4
8

2
5

4
8

3
3

4530

4526

4518

4506

4529

4509

4501

4354

4350

4346

4410

4326

4306

4250

4106

4110

4118

4202

4214

4222

4230

4238

4310

4318

4338

5
1

2
6

5
1

2
2

 5
1

0
6

5
1
1

4

5
0

3
8

5
0

0
2

4500

5
0

2
2
B

4513

5102

51
0
1

5
1

0
3

5
1

0
5

5
1

0
7

5
1

0
9

5
1
1

3

5
1
1

7

5
1

2
1

5
1

2
5

5
1

2
9

5
1

3
3

5
1

3
7

5
1

4
1

4313

4249

4251

4301

4303

4305

4307

4309

4247

4245

4243

4239

4235

4231

4227

51
0
4

5
1

0
6

4238

4234

4230

4226

4222

5
1

2
2

5
1

0
6

5
1
1

0

5
1
1

4

5
1
1

8

5
1

2
6

5
1

3
8

5
1

0
2

5
1

3
0

5
1

3
4

5
1

4
2

5
1

0
1

5
1
1

7

5
1
1

9

5
1

2
5

5
1

0
5

5
1

0
9

5
1
1

3

5
1

2
9

5
1

3
3

5
1

3
7

5
1
1

0

5
1
1

4

5
1
1

8

5
1

2
2

5
1

2
6

5
1

3
0

5
1

3
4

5
1

4
2

5
3

1
3

5
3

1
7

5
3

0
9

5
3

0
5

5
2

0
1

5
2

0
5

5
2

0
9

5
2

1
3

5
2

1
7

5
2

2
1

5
2

2
5

5
2

2
9

5
2

3
3

5
3

0
1

5
3

2
1

5
3

0
6

5
3

0
4

5
3

3
0

5218

5
2

2
6

11

5870

5874

5
8

6
8

5
8

6
6

58
64

5860

5858

5865

5
8
5
7

58
2
7

58
25

58
17

58
15

58
0
9

5802

58
1
0

5818

5826

5834

5
8

3
85

8
4

2

5844

5846

5850

5
8

5
5

5
8

5
3

5
8

4
9

5
8

4
1

5
8

3
7

5
8

3
3

5
8

3
9

5
8

0
1

4202

4302

5
8

1
4

3802

3802

3902

4002

5
8

0
0

5905

5909

59
13

60
1
9

6
1
1

9

6
2

1
9

4302

3 5

6004

6
1

2
0

6020

6
2

2
0
B

6
3

2
0

6
4

2
0

6
3

1
0

6
3

0
8

6
2

1
4

6
2

1
0

6
1
1

6

6010

4402

4408

4504

4514

6
3

1
9

6
4

1
9

6
6

1
9

1
5

1
7

4511

6
3

1
2

11

3702

3700

3550

3721

3901

5
6

3
2

5
6

3
0

5
6

2
8

5
6

2
6

5
6

2
4

5
6

2
2

5
6

2
0

5
6

1
8

5
6

1
6

5
6

1
4

5
6

3
3

5
6

3
1

5
6

2
9

5
6

2
7

5
6

2
5

5
6

2
3

5
6

2
1

5
6

1
9

5
6

1
7

5
6

1
5

5
6

1
3

5601

5603

5605

5607

56095611

4024

4022

4020

4018

4016

4014

4012

4010

5
5

2
0

5
5

1
4

5
5

1
0

5
5

0
6

5
5

0
4

5
4

1
8

5
4

1
6

5
4

1
4

5
4

1
2

5511

5507

5503
5501

5411

5407

5405

5
4
0
3

5
4

0
1

4238

4229

5
6

0
3

5
6

0
7

5
6

1
1

5
6

1
5

5
6

1
9

5
6

2
7

5
6

3
1

5
6

0
1

5
6

0
2

5
6

0
4

5
6

0
6

5
6

0
8

5
6

1
0

5
6

1
2

56
1
4

5616

5615

56
1
3

5
6

1
1

5
6

0
9

5
6

0
7

5
6

0
5

5
6

0
3

5
6

0
1

5
6

2
9

5
6

2
5

4
5

2
2

4
5

2
6
A

4302

4306

4310

4314

4402

4406

4410

4414

4
5

2
9

4
5

1
8

5
6

3
3

56
025

6
0

65
6

1
8

5622

5626

5630

5
6

1
0

5
6

1
4

5601

5605
56095613561756

2
1

4418
4422

4502450645104
5

1
4

5
6

4
2

5
6

2
2

5
6

1
8

5
6

1
0

5
6

0
2

5
5

1
0

4402

4406

4410

4414

4418

4422

4426

4430

4502

4506

4510

4514

4401

4405

4409

4413

4417
4421

4425

45054509

45
1
3

4501

5

4

3

2

1

7

4
5

3
7

4
5

3
3

4
5

2
5

4
5

2
1

4
5

1
7

401

402

403

4
0

4

40
5

406

407 307

306

30
5

3
0

4

303

302

301 207

206

20
5

2
0

4

20
3

202

201 107

106

10
51

0
4

103

102

101

4123

5
3

2
5

5
3

1
7

5
3

0
9

5
3

0
1

4121

4119

4117

4115

4113

4111

4109

4107

4105

4103

4101

4112

4110

4108

4106

4104

4102

4114

4116

4118

4120

4122

4100

5
3

1
3

5
3

0
5

5
3

2
1

5
3

2
9

4231

4233

4235

4301

4305

4309

4313

4317

5
4

0
2

5
4

1
8

5
4

2
2

5426

5430

4302

4314

4306

4301 4302

4429

4421

4417

4413

4409

4407

4319
4318

4322

4326

4330

4334

4402

4404

4410

4414

4314

4310

4306

4309

4418

4313

4305

45024501

4505
4506

4509

4
5

1
4

4513

4517

5
4

1
8

4
5

3
0

5
4

0
6

5
4

1
0

5
4

1
4

5
2

2
9

5
2

2
5

5
2

2
1

5
2

1
7

5
2

1
3

5
2

0
9

5
2

0
5

5
2

0
1

5
2

3
0

5
2

2
6

5
2

2
2

5
2

1
8

5
2

1
4

52
10

5
2

2
9

5
2

2
5

5
2

2
1

5
2

1
7 5

2
1

3

5209

5206

4010

4014

4018 5
2

3
0

5
2

2
6

5
2

2
2

5
2

1
8

5
2

1
4

5
2

1
0

5
2

0
6

5
2

0
2

5
1

3
8

5
1

3
4

5
1

3
0

4005

4001

3925

3921

3917

3913

3909

3901 3902

3906

3910

3914

3918

3922

3926

4002

4010

4014

4006

5
2

2
9

5
2

2
5

5
2

2
1

5
2

1
7

5
2

1
3

5
2

0
9

5
2

0
5

5
2

0
1

5
1

4
1

5
1

3
7

5
1

3
3

5
1

4
2

5
1

4
0

5
1

3
6

5
1

3
2

5
2

3
0

5
2

2
6

5
2

2
2

5
2

1
8

5
2

1
4

5
2

1
0

5
2

0
6

5
2

0
4

4018

402251
2
5

5
1

2
9

5
1

3
4

5
1

3
0

5
1

3
8

5
1

4
4

5
3

2
9

5
3

2
5

5
3

2
1

5
3

1
7

5
3

1
3

5
3

0
9

5
3

0
5

5
3

0
1

5261

5257

5253

5249

5
2
4
5

5
2

0
1

5
2

0
5

5
2

0
9

5
2

1
3

5
2

1
7

5
2

2
1

5
2

2
5

5
2

2
9

5
2

3
3

5
2

3
7

5
2

4
1

5
1

4
1

5
1

3
7

5
1

3
3

5
1

2
9

5
3

2
2

5
3

1
8

5
3

1
4

5
3

1
0

5
3

0
6

5
3

0
2

5
2

3
8

5
2

3
0

5
2

2
6

5
2

3
4

5
2

2
2

5
2

3
7

5
3

0
1

5
3

0
5

5
3

0
9

5
3

1
3

5
3

1
7

5
2

0
1

5
2

2
1

5
2

1
7

5
2

1
3

5
2

0
9

5
2

0
5

5
2

3
3

5
3

2
1

5
3

2
2

5
2

3
4

5
3

1
8

5
3

1
4

5
3

1
0

5
3

0
6

5
3

0
2

5
2

3
8

5
2

0
6

5
2

1
0

5
2

1
4

5
2

1
8

5
2

2
2

5
2

0
2

5
2

2
5

5
2

2
6

5
2

2
9

5
2

3
0

5
2

1
8

5
2

1
4

5
2

1
0

5
2

0
6

5
2

0
2

4
7

0
3

4
7

0
7

4408

5812

5902

5
6

0
1

6
1

0
1

6
1

0
3

6
1

0
5

6
2

0
1

6
2

0
3

6
1

0
2

6
1

0
4

6
1

0
6

6
2

0
2

6
2

0
4

6
2

0
6

6
2

0
8

6
2

0
2

6
2

0
4

6
2

0
6

6
2

0
8

6
2

1
0

6
2

0
1

6
2

0
3

6
2

0
5

6
2

0
7

6213

6214

6
2

0
9

62
1
2

62
07

62
06

62
05

62
04

62
03

62
02

62
01

61
0
7

62
00

61
0
6

61
0
5

6
6

2
0

5
6

3
5

5619

5615

5611

5607

5601

5623

5602

5606

5610

5614

5618

5622

5626 5627

5
4

1
7

5
4

1
3

4
2

4
0

3
8

3
63
4

3
2

3
0

2
82

6

1

2468

1

3

5

7

9

11

16

18

20

22

24

10

12

14
15

17

19

21

10

12

14

16

18

20

12

2
6

1
7

1
9

61
0
3

6
1
0
1

6
0

1
7

6
0

1
5

61
0
4

6
1

0
2

6
0

1
8

6
0

1
6

22

24

2
6

9

11

15

17

19

21

23

2
5

11

26

2
8

5210

25

3
5

3
7

3
9

4
1 4
3

4
5

4
7

4
9

5
1 5
3

3
0

3
2

3
4

3
6

3
8

4
0

4
2

4
4

4
6

4
8

5
0

5
2 5
4

5
6

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

9

15

17

19

21

23

1
5

2
8

2
4

2
2

2
0

1
8

1
6

1
4

5618

5616

5704

5706

5708

5810

5812

5814

5816

1 2 3

7

8

91
0

111
21
3

14

15

16

17

101

102

1
0

3

1
0

4

105

106

107100

25

2
7

2
9 3
1 3
3

3
5

4
4

5
1
2
3

51
2
1

5119

5117

5115

5111

5109

51
07

51
0
5

51
0
3

5
1

0
1

5
0

3
7

5
0

3
5

5
0

3
3

1

3

5

7

9

11

15

17

19

21

23

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

3
2 3
4

3
6

3
8 4
0

4
2

4
6

4
8

5
0

52

54

4215

4217

4223

4219

5101

5103

5105

5107

5109

5111

5
1
1

9

5
1

2
1

5
1

2
3

5
1

2
5 5

1
1

7

5
1
1

5

5
1

2
8

5
1

2
6

5
1

2
4

5
1

2
2

5
1

2
0

5
1
1

8

4218

4 5

6

5901

5901A

5901

5
1
1

6

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

1
2

5
1

3
0

5309

5007

7

61
1
0

4815

5
1
1

4

5
1

2
3

3621

3501

6
9

7
0

6
9

2
0

4601

4603

U
N

IT
S

 2
5
-4

6

4
4

5
1
 -

 5
3

 S
T

6
3

0
9

5
0

1
3

4603

4502

5
0

1
6

5
0

2
0

4
8

0
7

4342

4
6

1
3

5839

5
3

2
5

6
1
1

0

6
1

0
2

5832

15

17

19

21

23

25

3
0

3
7

3
5

3
3

3
1 2
9 2

7

3
2

3
43
6

3
8

5303 -

46 AVE

5820

5
5

0
7

5
8

1
6

5903

5
5

1
3

6
0

1
0

6
0

0
8

6
0

0
6

6
0

0
4

6
0

0
2

5
9

1
8

5
9

1
6

5
9

1
4

6
0

1
1

6
0

0
9

6
0

0
7

6
0

0
5

6
0

0
3

8
0

7
8 7
6 7
4

7
2

70

68

66

64

62

7
9

7
7

7
5

61

59

57

55

53

51

49

4
7

4
5

4
3

4
1

3
9

60

56

52

4
8

4
4

4
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

1

3

5

7

9

11

15

17

19

2
1

2
2

2
4

2
6

2
8

3
0

5
1

0
9

5
9

2
1

5
9

1
7

5
9

1
1

5
9

1
9

5
9

1
5

5
9

0
9

4
8

1
8

1
0

1

1
0

9

11
5

11
9 12

7

1
5

4

1
5

0

1
4

6

1
4

2

1
3

8

1
3

4

5
9

1
2

5
9

1
0

5
8

2
4

5
8

2
2

5901

5903

5905

5907

5902

5904

5906

5908

5910

5
9

0
7

5
9

0
5

5
9

0
3

5
9

0
1

5
8

2
5

5
8

2
3

5
8

2
1

5
8

1
9

5912

5914

5916

5909

5911

5946

5944

5942

5940

5938

5936

5915

5917

5947

5945

5943

5941

5939

5937

5935 5918

59
1
9

5
9

2
3

5
9

2
1

5
9

2
5

5
9

2
7

5
9

2
9

5
9

3
1

5933

5409

1

2

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

30

29

28

27

26

2538

37

36

35

2
4

2
3

2
2

2
12
0

1
91
8

1
7

1
61
5

3
4

3
3

3
2

3
1

39

3

4
0

27

3
2

3
6

3
8

3
4

26

30

29

20

24

18

23

25

21

29

10

8

6

2

4

16

14

12

19

17

32

3
0

31

33

2
0

2
6 2

4

2
7 2
3

2
5

2
1

111

10
7

109

108

110

1
0

6

10
5

104

103

101

102

1
7

112

1
61

8

1
2

1
4 1
0

1
5

11 9

100

6 4

57 3

2
1

1
9

5
1

2
8

4820

#
1

0
0
, 

6
5

0
9

#
2

0
0
, 

6
5

0
9

2
1

5

9

11

18

15

17

21

25

27

29

36

38

42

39

43

4

20

34

40

44

33 11
4

1
0

0

1
0

1

1
0

2

11
2

11
1

11
0

1
0

9 10
8

1
0

3 1
0

4

10
5

106

107

3600

3500

3450

3300

3

5

7

9

11

15

17

19

21

23

2
5

2
7

3

5

7

9

11

15

17

19

21

23

25

27

29

31

33

35

37

3
94
14
3

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

26

28

30

4
7

3
1

4414

2
 4

5
1
3

3
 4

5
1
3

5
5

0
7

4
8

0
6

4
8

0
8

6
3

0
8
B

4
8

3
6

4
8

1
2

5
 4

5
1
3

60

62

64

66

68

70

72

74

50

48

44

42

40

38

36

51

49

47

45

43

41

39

37

35

3
3

3
1 2
9

5
55

7

59

61

63

65

67

69

71

73

75

46

4
 4

5
1
3

6
 4

5
1
3

4
8

3
8

5
8

1
7

5
8

1
5

5
8

1
3

5
8

1
1

4
3

3
9

3
5

3
1 2
7

2
3

1
9

1
5

11 7 3

3
8

3
4 3
0

2
6

2
2

1
8

1
4

1
0 6 2

58

54

50

46

42

70

66

62

6

4
5

3
0
A

1
0

5

1
2

3

131

62
11

5
4

0
9

5
4
0
5

5401

5631

4501

4912
4914

4601A

4
9

0
2

4
9

0
64
9

1
8
A

4
9

2
6

4
9

3
0

4920A

5120

4501

4318A

4318B

5710

5311

3102

4
6

3
0

4
8

1
0

#
4

0
0
, 

6
9

0
0

#
6

0
0
, 

6
9

0
0

#
3

0
0
, 

6
9

0
0

#
1

0
0
, 

6
9

0
0

#
2

0
0
, 

6
7

0
0

#
3

0
0
, 

6
7

0
0

#
9

0
0
, 

6
7

0
0

#
8

0
0
, 

6
7

0
0

#
7

0
0
, 

6
7

0
0

#
6

5
0
, 

6
7

0
0

#
6

0
0
, 

6
7

0
0

#
5

0
0
, 

6
7

0
0

#
4

0
0
, 

6
7

0
0

#
3

0
0
, 

6
5

0
9

5321

3

5

7

9

11

13

15

17

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

2
4

2
3

21

19

4
7

1
7

5206

3001

3001

60026001

600160026001

5701

5401

5101

5310

6502

6402

7002

4
5

0
4

4102

4098

4301

3201

3002

3002

3801

6001

5000

4403 - 67A AVE

4
6

1
6

4901A

5707

6
7

A
 A

V
E

 (
P

R
IV

A
T

E
 R

O
A

D
)

4
6

0
9

4
6

1
1

4
6

1
3

4
6

1
5

4
6

1
7

4
6

1
9

4
6

2
1

4
6

2
3

4411
4409

5

7

9

11

13

3

15

6

8

10

12

14

4

16

18

17

1
9

5

1

9

13

17

21

25

29

33

37

41

45

49

53

57

61

65

69

87654321

1
D

1
C

1
B

1
A

1 2
43

5600

5600

D
C
B
A

B A
CD

5017

21
4 3

A

B C

D

6
1

0
8

6108

4
4

0
3
A

5
5

1
8

6610

4117A

4916
4918

4
8

1
0

4
8

0
8

4
8

1
3
A

4
6

2
5
B

4
6

2
5
A

4
6

2
3
B

4
6

2
3
A

5827

5815

5901

B A
CD

7

11

15

19

23

27

31

35

39

43

47

51

55

59

63

67

71

75

79

83

87

9
1

9
0

86

82

78

6
5

1
0

6
5

0
6

6
5

0
2

7

3

11

15

19

23

27

31

6

10

14

18

22

26

30

35

39

43

47

34

38

42

4
6

2

3

2
9

3
3

3
7

4
1

4
5

4
9

4
4

4
8

5
2

5
6

6
0

4
0

7 3

11

1
5

19

18

1
4 1
0 6 2

6

6
5

1
1

6
5

1
5

6
5

0
7

6
5

0
3

10

14

2

15

11 7 3

5
0

3
7

5014B

32
30

28

26

24

22

16

14

12
10

8
6

57 ST (TEMPORARY ROAD)

4
9

1
8
B

4
9

2
2
A

4
9

2
2
B

4
9

1
0
A

4
9

1
0
B

5018A5018B

5018C

5
2

2
6

#1, 5104

#2, 5104

#3, 5104

#4, 5104

#5, 5104
#6, 5104

#7, 5104

4
4

7
0
 -

4
8

 S
T

5
1
1

0

4901B

7502

CORNERSTONE C R (PRIVATE)

CORNERSTONE CR (PRIVATE)

4905B

4905A

5810

5902

5914

5922

5809

5913

5921

11
0

3

11
0

5

11
0

7

11
0

9

11
1

1

11
1

3

11
1

5

710 3

710 5

710 7

710 9

7111

6
1
0

4

6
1
0

66
1
0

86
1
1
06
1
1
26
1
1
46
1
1
66
1
1
86
1
2

0

6
1
2

26
1
2

46
1
2

66
1
2

86
1
3

0

6
1
3

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

3

5

7

9

11

15

17

19

21

23

25

3
1

2
9 27

6
5

0
5

6
5

0
3

6
5

0
1

5110

4
9

1
4
A

4
9

1
4
B

2991

4610

4710D

4710C

4710A

4710B

4
8

0
2

4425A

4425B

5712A
5712B

4519

5
2

2
5
B

5
2

2
5
A

5
3

1
4
, 
A

5
3

1
4
, 

B
1

5
3

1
4
, 

B
2

5
3

1
4
, 

C

6
5

0
4

4601C
4601B
4601A

6
2

2
0
C

6
2

2
0
A

4914
4916

4110

6
4

1
1
A

6
4

1
1
B

6
4

1
1
C

6
4

1
1
D

6
4

1
1
E

5200

4
8

1
4

4
8

1
2

7

11

3

15

19

23

27

31

35

39

43

61
0

1
4

1
8

2
2

2
6

3
0

3
4

3
8

4
2

4
650

2

54

7111
5

1
9

2
3 32
7

3
1

3
53
94
34
7

55

51

103, 303 304

101, 301

102, 302
401

5111

A
BC

D

5
3

1
3
B

10

6

2

14

18

22

26

30

34

38

4
2 4
6 5
0

5
4

5
8

9
9

1
0

3

9
5

91

83

87

79

75

71

67

62

4606
4608

4614
4616

4681
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0

2
2

2
4

2
6

2
83

0

3
2

3
4

2

51
2
2

5110

4
6

0
5

4
6

0
1

5
0
9
5

4205B

4
6

0
9

4
7

0
6

5555

6
6

0
3

6
6

0
7

6
6

1
1

6
6

1
5

6
6

1
9

6
6

2
3

6
6

2
7

6
6

3
1

2

4

6

8

10

3

5

7

9

11

13

15

12

14

1
6

7

5

3

9

11

13

15

17

1
8

6

4

2

8

10

12

14

16

4
7

3
4

4
7

3
2

4
8

1
2

4614

5026

50335029

5100

6A

C
O

R
N

E
R

S
T

O
N

E
 L

A
N

E
 (

P
R

IV
A

T
E

)

18

6,10

2

5,9

1

8,12

4

7,11

3

304,404

204

305,405

205

306,406

206
303,403

203

302,402

202

307,407

207

308,408

208

301,401

201

312,412

212
309,409

209

310,410

210

311,411

211

1 2
43

104

308,408

208301,401

201302,402

202
303,403

203

304,404

204

405

305
306,406

206

307,407

207

205

10
3

10
4

10
110

2

20
4

20
1

20
3

20
230

1

30
430

3
30

2

1,2

3,4

5,6

7,8

15,16

13,14

11,12

9,10

D
C
B
A

219,319

119

222,322

122

224,324

124

221,321

121

223,323

123

228,328

128

226,326

126

217,317

316

218,318

118

220,320

120

117

215,315

115

205,305

105

208,308

108
210,310

110212,312

112

207,307

203,303

103

201,301

101

206,306

106

204,304

202,302

214,314

114

209,309

109

107

B A
CD

5017

21
4 3

203,303

103

204,304

104

205,305

105

206,306

106

207,307

107208,308

201,301

101202,302

102

117,127
107

118,128
108

116,126
106

114,124
104

112,122
102

111,121
101

113,123
103

115,125
105

214,224
204

216,226
206

218,228
208

217,227
207

215,225
205

213,223
203

211,221
201

212,222
202

8A8B

6B

10A

12A12B

10B

14A

16A16B

14B

22A

24A24B

22B

91
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

301,401

201

302

202

303,403

203

304,404

204305

205306,406

206

308,408

208

307,407

207

205

305,405

207

307,407

209

309,409

211

311,411

212

312,412

210

310,410

208

308,408

206

306,406 203

303,403

201

301,401

202

302,402

204

304,404

30B 30A

32A32B

28A28B

26B 26A

B A
CD

5037

B A
CD

87654321

6102

4
6

0
7

6508

6608

4
7

0
2

4
6

0
2

4
8

0
2

4
8

1
24
8

2
2

5
5

2
1
B

4
7

3
8

5011

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

3

5

7

9

11

15

17

19

21

23

25

3
5

3
33
9

3
7

4
3

4
1

3
84
2

4
0

5
1

3
7
B

4
5

0
1
 -

 5
3
 S

T

7

5

3

9

11

6

4

2

8

4
7

3
4

4
7

3
2

5
0
1

5

5
0
1

9

5
0
1

9
B

2
2

0

2
1

0 1
0

0

3
4

0

3
3

0

3
2

0

3
1

0

5
1

3
3
B

5
2

0
0

5
8

 S
T

4601D
4601 -

46 AVE

4
4

3
3
 -

 

4
7

 S
T

4
4

7
7
 -

 

4
7

 S
T 4
3

0
3
 -

 

4
7

 S
T

4
3

3
3
 -

 

4
7

 S
T

U
N

IT
S

 2
, 
3

4
5

5
0
 -

 4
9

 S
T

U
N

IT
 1

4
5

5
0
 -

 4
9

 S
T

4
5

3
1
 -

 4
8

 S
T

4
5

3
3
 -

 4
8

 S
T

4
5

3
4
 -

4
9

 S
T

4848 - 43 AVE

4850 - 43 AVE

4
5

0
0
 -

 5
0
 S

T

4951 -

44 AVE

4952 -

44 AVE

5032 -

44 AVE

4902 -

44 AVE

5150 -

44 AVE

5250 -

44 AVE

4
4

5
0
 -

5
3

 S
T

4
5

5
0
 -

5
3

 S
T

5350 -

44 AVE

U
N

IT
S

 1
-2

4

4
4

5
1
 -

 5
3

 S
T

5631 -

45 AVE

UNITS 101-103, 201

5601 - 45 AVE

4
2

0
0
 -

 5
0

 S
T

5
5

5
0
 -

4
2

 S
T

4
2

0
2

4
1

9
0

4
0

0
1
 -

 5
0

 S
T

5170 -

41 AVE

5101 -

42 AVE

5103 - 42 AVE

5201 - 43 AVE

5701 -

42 AVE

5503 -

42 AVE

5501 -

42 AVE

5703 -

42 AVE

4
2

0
1
 -

5
7

 S
T

3
7

0
1
 -

5
0

 S
T

3
7

2
1
 -

5
0

 S
T

4
8

8
1

4
8

6
5

4
8

5
1

5
1

2
4

4
8

3
2

4
8

2
8

4
7

2
9

4
5

7
5

4574

4510

4555

4535

4
7

2
9

10

12

14

16

13

15

17

19

18
21

23

25

20

22

24

5
1

2
05

1
4

0

50 Sierra Drive

5
0
9

9

5
0
9

1

4509

4
7

3
6

4
8

3
0

3901

5
1
1

8
B

4
8

0
8

4
8

0
0

103

105

104

102 101

4
8

0
4

NE 6-33-1-5

NE 32

NE 31-32-1-5

NW 6-33-1-5

NW 29-32-1-5

SW 32-32-1-5

SE 32

NW 32

SW 5

NE 32

SE 5-33-1-5

NE 5-33-1-5

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

T
R

A
N

M
IS

S
IO

N
 L

IN
E

 R
/W

G
A

S
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

SEWER LINE R/W

S
E

W
E

R
 L

IN
E

 R
/W

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

UTILITY R/W

STORM  SEWER R/W

STORM  SEWER R/W

PIPELINE R/W

G
A

S
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W

SE
W

ER
 LIN

E
 R

/W

S
E

W
E
R

 LIN
E

 R
/W

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

G
A

S
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W

UTILITY R/W

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

GAS PIPELINE R/W

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

SE
W

ER
 LIN

E
 R

/W

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

SE
W

ER
 LIN

E
 R

/W

SE
W

ER
 LIN

E
 R

/W

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

G
A

S
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

P
IP

E
L

IN
E

 R
/W

GAS PIPELINE R/W

P
IP

E
L

IN
E

 R
/W

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

PIPELINE R/W

SEWER LINE R/W

UTILITY R/W
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

S
P

U
R

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
TIL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
TI

LIT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
TI

L
IT

Y

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
TIL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

R
/W

UTILITY R/W
UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
TI

L
IT

Y
 R

/W

S
P

U
R

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
TI

LIT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W UTILITY R/W

U
TI

LIT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

REGULATOR
STATION SITE

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

S
P

U
R

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

SE 5

NE 32-32-1-5

S
P

U
R

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

NW 29-32-1-5

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

P
IP

E
L
IN

E
 R

/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

S
E

W
E

R
 L

IN
E

 R
/W

SEWER LINE R/W

N
E

 2
9

-3
2

-1
-5

SW 32-32-1-5

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

SEW
ER LINE R/W

W
LTUI

ACCESS R/W

I

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
/W

Y

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

ACCESS R/W

/R

MAINTENANCE

MAINTENANCE

T

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

SE
W

ER
 LIN

E
 R

/W

UTILITY R/W

SEWER LINE R/W

UTILITY R/W

G
A

S
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/WNW 31-32-1-5

U
TI

LIT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
TIL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
TIL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
TIL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
TILITY

 R
/W

U
TILITY

 R
/W

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

O
V

ER
LAN

D
 D

R
AIN

A
G

E
 R

/W

UTILITY R/W
UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/WUTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
TI

L
IT

Y
 R

/W

NW 33-32-1-5

SW 33-32-1-5

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W

OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
TILITY

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

P
IP

E
L
IN

E
 R

/W

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W

UTILITY R/W

ACCESS R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

DRAINAGE R/W

ACCESS R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W

O
V

E
R

L
A
N

D
 D

R
A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

U
TIL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTIL
IT

Y R
/W

U
TIL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

PARCEL A

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

PIPELINE R/W

P
IP

E
L

IN
E

 R
/W

PIPELINE R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W

OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

G
A

S
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W

W
A

T
E

R
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W

M
A

IN
 T

R
A

N
S

M
IS

S
IO

N
 L

IN
E

 R
/W

P
IP

E
LI

N
E
 R

/W

WATER LINE R/W

P
IP

E
LI

N
E
 R

/W

G
A

S
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W

P
IP

E
LI

N
E
 R

/W

WATER PIPELINE R/W

W
A

T
E

R
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W

WATER LINE R/W

WATER PIPELINE R/W
PIPELINE R/W

SW 31-32-1-5

NW 30-32-1-5 NE 30-32-1-5

SE 29-32-1-5

SW 4-33-1-5

NE 5-33-1-5

UTILITY R/W

OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W

S
E

W
E

R
 L

IN
E

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

P
IP

E
L

IN
E

 R
/W

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
/W

ACCESS R/W

ACCESS R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W U

T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

  
R

/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

  
R

/W

A
C

C
E

S
S

  
R

/W

UTILITY  R/W

SE 32-32-1-5

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

N
E

 3
2

1

3
5

7

8

911

12

15

1617

18

19

20

21
22

23

24

25

27

29

31

33

35

37

39

41

43

45

47

48

46

44

42
40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

14

10

6

4

2

63
6465

66

62

61

60

59
58

5756

55
53

5167

68
69

7071

7273

74

75

76

77

64 63 62 61 60 59
58 57 56 55 54 53 52 51 50

49

48

47

46

45
44

43
42

41
40

39
38

37
36

35
34

33
32

31
30

29

28

1

2

3

4

5

6

27 26
25

24

7 8 9

23
22 21

20
19

1817
16151413121110

51525354555657585960616263

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

41

42

43

44

45

46

48

49

50

40

39

38

37

36

35

34

33

32

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

22

21

47

SEWER LINE R/W

G
A

S
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W
T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W
G

A
S

 P
IP

E
L
IN

E
 R

/W

UTILITY R/W

ACCESS R/W
UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

G
A

S
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

ACCESS R/W

ACCESS R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

32-1-5
32-1-5

33-1-5

33-1-5

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 R
/W

 (
In

s
tr

u
m

e
n

t 
#

 1
0
1

0
5

0
0
2

1
)

EASEMENT R/W  ( Instrument #  101050022)

(I
n

s
tr

u
m

e
n

t 
#

 1
0

1
0

5
0

0
2
3

)

UTILITY R/W

ARE A 'A '

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

 R
/W

 A
R

E
A

 '
A

'

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

 R
/W

 A
R

E
A

 '
A

'

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

 R
/W

 A
R

E
A

 '
B

'

UTILITY R/W AREA 'C'

UTILITY R/W AREA 'C'

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

OV ERLA ND DRAINA GE  R/W

OV ERLA ND DRAINA GE  R/W

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 R

/W

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 R

/W

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 R

/W

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 R

/W

UTILITY R/WUTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
/W

G
A

S
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W
G

A
S

 P
IP

E
L

IN
E

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

  
R

/W

UTILITY  R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

  
R

/W

ACCESS & U TILITY R/W

A
C

C
E

S
S

 &
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

ACCESS & U TILITY R/W

A
C

C
E

S
S

 &
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

A
C

C
E

S
S

 &
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 L
IN

E
 R

/W

UTILITY R/W UTILITY R/W

OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 R

/W

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

UTILITY R/W

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 R

/W
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W UTILITY R/W

A
R

E
A

 "
A

"

A
R

E
A

 "
B

"

U
T
IL

IT
Y

 R
/W

U
TIL

IT
Y

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W

A
R

E
A

 'A
'

AREA 'B '

AREA 'A '
OVERLAND DRAINAGE R/W

A
R

E
A

 'A
'

P
IP

E
L

IN
E

 R
/W

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
/W

UTILITY R/W

G
A

S
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 R

/W

R1
R3

RF

DC-MU1
C-SC

UR

UR

RF

DC4

I1
R4 R2

R2
R2 R3

R1

R5A
R3

RF

R1
R2

R2

R3

R5
R1

R2

I1R2

R2

R3
CHACH

C-SC

R1

R3

R2

R3

UR

I1

R3
R2

CHR3 CHA

IB

CH
R3I1

C1

COL

R3

CH

CH

R3
R2

R3

R3R1

R2R3

C1

R2

I1

R2

R3

R1 CH

I1

R5

CH

R2R3
R2R2

R4I1

R3
R2

R2
R4

DC6

R3

R4

R3

R2

UR

RF

RF

R2

R3

RF

R1

R2

RF

R3
RF

DC5DC2DC1 R2

R3

RF

DC3

R2 R2

R3R2
RF

RF
R2EOS

I1

DC7

IB

UR

URUR

UR

UR

UR UR

UR

UR

R3

DC7

IB

UR

R1

RF
R3

R2
R3

CN

R3

RF

UR

R3 R2

UR

DC7DC7

DC7

R2

I1

RF

R3
RF

R2 R2

RF

C1

µ
0 200 400 600 800 1,000100

Meters
Created by:

Date Saved: Sep. 27, 2019

1:5,000Scale:

Legend
Land Use Districts

Neighbourhood Commercial (CN)

Shopping Centre Commercial
District (C-SC)

Central Commercial (C1)

Highway Commercial (CH)

Highway Commercial A

Direct Control (DC)

College (COL)

Light Industrial (I1)

Industrial Business (IB)

Low Density Residential (R1)

General Residential (R2)

General Residential Narrow Lot
(R2N)

Medium Density Residential (R3)

Manufactured Home (R4)

Country Residential (R5)

Country Residential A

Recreation Facility (RF)

Environmental Open Space (EOS)

Urban Reserve (UR)

Town Boundary

Parcel Boundary

Condo/Modular-Homes Outlines

Easement

Land Use District Map
SCHEDULE A

238

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



239

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Chief Administrative Officer Report 

Request for Decision 
Chief Administrative Officer Report 
October 10, 2023   

 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the Chief Administrative Officer Report be accepted for information. 
 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our residents and town staff actively communicate and engage with us through open dialogue. 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance. 
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships. 
Sound fiscal practices are balanced with a commitment to prioritizing value for our citizens. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
Municipal Government Act Division 9, Part 6, Section 208(1)  

BACKGROUND  
One of the Chief Administrative Officer’s responsibilities is to advise and inform the 
council on the operations and affairs of the municipality. CAO Williams will present his 
monthly report to council for their information.  
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☐ Operating  ☐ Capital ☒ Not Applicable 
Details: 
 
KEY MESSAGES 
A Chief Administrative Officer’s responsibility is to advise and inform the council on the 
operations and affairs of the municipality. The CAO Verbal Report is meant to provide 
information to Council that is more routine in nature and does not require a decision 
from Council.  

ATTACHMENTS – n/a 
 

 
CAO Review: Brent Williams Date: 23 September 2023 

 
 

240

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Correspondence and Information 

Request for Decision 
 
Correspondence and Information  
 
October 10, 2023   

 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the Correspondence and Information Report ending October 10, 2023, be received for 
information. 
 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our residents and town staff actively communicate and engage with us through open dialogue. 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance. 
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
Council Communication Response Policy 

BACKGROUND  
The Correspondence and Information Report is a collection of general information received at 
the Town Office and is provided to the Council as information. The council may choose to 
provide directions to the Administration on any item contained in this report. 
 
LIST OF CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION PRESENTED: 
 
ITEM # FROM / TO REGARDING 

A Mountain View Seniors’ Housing Board September 21 Key Messages 
B Parkland Regional Library Board September 14 Board Talk 

 
 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☐ Operating  ☐ Capital ☒ Not Applicable 
Details: 
 
KEY MESSAGES 
The Town is dedicated to building and maintaining a reputation as a transparent, authoritative, 
and engaged partner in the community and internally with employees. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Correspondence and Information is attached. 

 
CAO Review: Brent Williams Date:  

 
 

241

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

 

 

BOARD MEETINGS │ KEY MESSAGES 
Mountain View Seniors’ Housing (MVSH) Regular Board Meeting of September 21, 2023 

 
Key Messages 

• The Board held their scheduled meeting in-person at the MVSH Administration Office 
Boardroom in Olds, Alberta from 1:00-4:00 pm. 

• The Board reviewed and approved the revised Reserve Policy, with the clarification 
regarding the Lifestyle Reserve and how funds will be allocated.  

• The Board was pleased with the report showing a positive trend in the overall occupancy 
rate for the lodge program. 

• The Board was pleased with the favorable contract that was secured, for long term energy 
rates. 

• The Board reviewed and approved the 2024 Operating Budget.  

• The Mountain View Seniors’ Housing Foundation’s 13th Annual Golf Classic event was held 
on Thursday September 14, 2023 at the Olds Golf Club. This year’s tournament exceeded all 
targets such as sponsorships, registered golfers and funds raised! Thank you to all those 
who worked to organize and run this event. 

 

 

 
Next MVSH Board Meetings 

The next regular Board meeting will be held on Thursday, October 19, 2023 starting at 1:00 PM in 

the MVSH Administration Offices boardroom in Olds, Alberta (or by Zoom Conference Call if 

required). 

 
If you require any information or there are any questions related to this communication please 

contact a Board Director, Alternate Director or Stacey Stilling, CAO for MVSH at 403-556-2957 or 

by email at stacey.stilling@mvsh.ca  

242

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023

mailto:stacey.stilling@mvsh.ca


 

  
Next Meeting: November 16, 2023 (via Zoom) 1 

 

 

PRLS BOARD TALK 

Highlights of the Parkland Regional 
Library Board Meeting 
SEPTEMBER 14, 2023 

Parkland 2024 Budget 
The board passed a motion to approve Parkland’s 2024 
budget with a 43-cent increase to the requisition level 
based on the most current population figures. This 
increase was mandated by the Parkland Executive 
Committee at their March 16th meeting.  

Board members also want to revisit which population 
numbers Parkland uses for invoicing municipalities at the 
November board meeting. Lastly, the board wants 
Parkland to continue their advocacy with the provincial 
government to obtain regular increases to the library 
operating grants to help deal with inflationary pressure.  

In 2022, 43% of Parkland libraries had deficit budgets.  

Compensation Policy Working Group 
The Compensation Policy Working Group held their first 
meeting on August 29th.  

It was a productive first meeting with several 
recommendations being made. The next meeting of the 
committee will be a full day in the beginning of October.  

Website Refresh Project 
The website team continues to work diligently with 
Parkland’s website developer Fishtank Consulting Corp. 
The launch of Parkland’s new websites will occur near 
the end of October or early November.  

It is of note that Parkland is the first region in Alberta to 
have accessibility programming in its website. 

 

Community Services Recovery Fund 
Parkland applied for a $200,000 grant to offset costs for 
PRLS’ website refresher project. The Community Services 
Recovery Fund is a $400 million investment from the 
Government of Canada to support charities and non-
profits as they focus on how to adapt their organizations 
for pandemic recovery. Unfortunately, Parkland was 
unsuccessful in obtaining the grant. No particular reason 
was given.  

Nordegg Library Move  
The hamlet of Nordegg has been gaining in popularity 
over the past few years. The library, in turn, has also 
noticed an increase in usage and interest from the 
community. It was quickly recognized that they were 
outgrowing their existing space and needed to move.  

Clearwater County provided the Nordegg Library with 
the opportunity to move into the same building as the 
local museum. Extensive renovations took place. On 
September 2nd, in conjunction with Nordegg Days, the 
library officially re-opened to the public. Over the two-
day celebration of Nordegg Days, 200+ people toured 
the new library space. The library was unofficially re-
named the Rolf & Cheri Adolph Library to recognize the 
many years of contributions from Rolf Adolph and his 
wife Cheri. The library in Nordegg is run entirely by 
volunteers. 

Indigenous Services 
PRLS now has two women from the community of 
Maskwacis employed at the library. As a result, the 
decision was made to open the library five days per 
week, Monday through Friday. Colette Poitras 
(Indigenous Public Library Services Advisor) and Keri 
Anderson from the Public Library Services Branch visited 
the library on September 13th. They were extremely 
impressed with the little library.  

In addition, the First Nations community of O’Chiese 
recently received a cheque from Parkland for $20,000 to 
assist in developing a library in their community. Their 
vision is to offer literacy programming such as Elders 
story readings to the youth in the health centre tipi, 
book clubs, early years story time, and educational 
sessions. 

These services are paid for through the On Reserve, On 
Settlement grant provided by the Public Library Services 
Branch. 

243

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023



 

  
Next Meeting: November 16, 2023 (via Zoom) 2 

 

Advocacy Report  
For over a year now, the primary efforts of the Advocacy 
Committee were to achieve an increase in provincial 
operating funding for public libraries. This was achieved 
prior to the recent election. Three million dollars in new 
funding has been provided for operating grants. This has 
resulted in a five-cent increase in the per capita rates for 
operating grants for municipal and system boards and 
an adjustment so 2019 population figures are now being 
used to issue grants instead of 2016 population figures. 
A base grant of $9,000 has also been added to all library 
board grants. These changes especially benefit library 
boards serving small populations. They only current 
advocacy effort not achieved was obtaining at least a 
philosophical commitment from the provincial 
government to consider an annual grant adjustment to 
account for inflation.  

As the committee moves into its post-election advocacy 
phase, they set their advocacy priorities for the next few 
months. The want the system board and municipal 
boards to continue building relationships with their local 
MLAs. 

Marketing Report  
Parkland prepared and delivered a webinar in July to 
help library staff navigate important marketing-related 
topics. The presentation covered what to consider and 
how to create brand guidelines for libraries, how to 
identify potential copyright issues on social media, and 
best practices for the ever-changing social media 
landscape. Several libraries have requested these services 
since.  

As part of the website re-design, logos were needed for 
all libraries. Staff collected logos from libraries that had 
them already and created 18 logos for our member 
libraries that did not have one.  

Sue Heuman from Yellowhead Regional Library, along 
with Hailey Halberg are working on an advocacy 
workshop to be presented to library boards for 
advocating to their councils. It will be available by the 
end of October.  

Committee News from Trustees 
The Innisfail Public Library has a new library manager.  

The Amisk Public Library has been in volved with 
Indigenous partnerships along with the Edmonton and 
Calgary libraries.  

The Penhold & District Public Library has involved 
local students to run several programs introducing kids 
to 3D printing, Lego creations, Maker space and Art 
classes. These local students held 25 separate classes 
engaging 161 children.  

Their summer reading program was a success again this 
year. Young readers were issued beads for tracking their 
reading minutes. Over the Summer 1,525 beads were 
issued which represented an impressive 30,500 minutes 
of reading!    

The Camrose Public Library had assistance from the 
city to add rooms to the library for greater efficiency of 
the building.  

The Stettler Public Library is one of several other 
Stettler organizations that hosted Alberta Culture Days 
from September 1-30. Friends of the Stettler Library 
group have been successful in accessing grant funding 
the past few years for the event.   

This year’s focus was on the Asian culture, particularly 
the Filipino culture. When new Canadians come to 
Stettler they often find the library helpful with supports 
and skills. One Filipino mother and her son were 
frequent visitors to the library and she recently accepted 
a position on the Stettler Library Board.  

Board Members Present 
Teresa Rilling (Board Chair), Doug Booker, Deb Coombes, 
Jaime Coston, Edna Coulter, Teresa Cunningham, Cal David, 
Richard Forsberg, Elaine Fossen, Dwayne Fulton, Clark 
German, Barb Gilliat, Pam Hansen, Connie Hueslman, Rick 
Manning (undeclared alternate for Jeff Eckstrand), Joy-Anne 
Murphy, Jackie Northey, Leonard Phillips, Ray Reckseidler, 
Bill Rock, Diane Roth, Deb Smith, Les Stulberg, Michelle 
Swanson, Delaney Thoreson, Doug Weir, Carlene Wetthuhn, 
Shannon Wilcox, Darren Wilson, Bill Windsor, Janice Wing, 
Patricia Young 

Regrets Alison Barker-Jevne, Amanda Derksen, Barbara 
Gibson, Twyla Hale, Kathy Hall, Cody Hillmer, Dana Kreil, 
Gord Lawlor, Julie Maplethorpe, Ricci Matthews, Marc 
Mousseau, Shawn Peach, Norma Penney, Pat Toone 

Absent Jul Bissell, Jeff Eckstrand, Michael Hildebrandt, 
Stephen Levy, Sandy Shipton 

For more information, or if you want a copy of the draft 
minutes from this board meeting, please contact PRLS.  

244

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 10, 2023


	0 - Oct 10 25 RC Agenda
	2A) Sept 25 RC Mtg Minutes - Prior
	PRIOR TO ADOPTION

	3A) 10 10 2023 Citizen budget survey RFD
	3A.1) Budget Presentation 2023_Redacted
	4A) 2023-22 - RFD Public Hearing
	4A.1) 2023-22 Site Context Aerial
	4A.2) 2023-22 Bylaw DRAFT
	TOWN OF OLDS

	4B) 2023-32 - RFD Public Hearing
	4B.2) 2023-32 Attachment 2-Amended ASP Proposed
	1.0 Introduction
	1.1 PURPOSE
	1.2 definition of plan area
	1.3 BACKGROUND

	2.0 Site Context & Development Considerations
	2.1 topography, SOILS & vegetation
	2.2 HISTORICAL RESOURCES
	2.3 Existing features
	2.4 eXISTING LAND USE
	2.5 SURROUNDING DEVELOPMENT

	3.0 Development Objectives & Principles
	3.1 Development Objectives
	3.1.1 Residential
	3.1.2 Municipal Reserves and Educational / Community Facilities
	3.1.3 Transportation
	3.1.4 Ecological Stewardship


	4.0 Development Concept
	4.1 NEIGHBOURHOOD UNIT
	4.2 RESIDENTIAL
	4.2.1 Low Density Residential
	4.2.2 Medium Density Residential (R2 / R3)
	4.2.3 Commercial

	____________________________________________________________________
	4.3 PARKS AND OPEN SPACES
	4.3.1 School Central Park Site
	4.3.2 Linear Park Sites
	4.3.3 Walkways and Multi-Use Trail
	4.3.4 Utility Corridors and Stormwater Management Facilities

	4.4 transportation
	4.4.1 Collector Roads
	4.4.2 Local Roads
	4.4.3 Laneways


	5.0 Conceptual Servicing
	5.1 stormwater drainage
	5.2 Sanitary Servicing
	5.3 Water distribution
	5.4 shallow utilities

	6.0 Implementation
	6.1 DEVELOPMENT STAGING
	6.2 RE-DISTRICTING & SUBDIVISION


	4B.3) 2023-32 Bylaw DRAFT
	4C) 2023-34 - RFD First Reading
	4C.1) 2023-34 Bylaw DRAFT
	4D) RFD - Bylaw 2023-35
	4D.1) Bylaw 2023-35 Ad Hoc P&P Bylaw Review
	5A) RFD Council P&P Committee
	5B) RFD Sponsorship Small Business Week Kick Off Breakfast
	5C) RFD Housing Assessment
	5C.1) 2023-10-04-FINAL Olds Housing Needs Assessment
	6A) RFD CAO Report- Verbal Update
	7A) RFD Correspondance and Information
	MVSH Board Key Messages September 21, 2023
	PRLS Board Talk - September 14, 2023



